# The original documents are located in Box 6, folder "Budget - FY 1975 (2)" of the John Marsh Files at the Gerald R. Ford Presidential Library.

#### **Copyright Notice**

The copyright law of the United States (Title 17, United States Code) governs the making of photocopies or other reproductions of copyrighted material. Gerald R. Ford donated to the United States of America his copyrights in all of his unpublished writings in National Archives collections. Works prepared by U.S. Government employees as part of their official duties are in the public domain. The copyrights to materials written by other individuals or organizations are presumed to remain with them. If you think any of the information displayed in the PDF is subject to a valid copyright claim, please contact the Gerald R. Ford Presidential Library.

#### THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

November 26, 1974

MEMORANDUM FOR:

PHIL AREEDA ANNE ARMSTRONG BILL BAROODY PHIL BUCHEN DEAN BURCH KEN COLE BILL EBERLE ALAN GREENSPAN ROBERT HARTMANN JACK MARSH RON NESSEN DON RUMSFELD BILL SEIDMAN BILL TIMMONS

FROM:

SUBJECT:

FY 75 Budget Reduction Materials

Attached for your information is a copy of the supplemental materials that will be submitted to the Congress with the President's Message on FY 1975 budget reductions at 3:00 p.m. today. The materials are embargoed until that time.

Attachment



SUPPLEMENT

TO

MESSAGE ON

BUDGET RESTRAINT

\* \* \* \* \*

ACTIONS RECOMMENDED



November 1974

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
INDEX	i
SUMMARY OF REVISED BUDGET ESTIMATES	1
1975 Budget Totals	4
Receipts	4
Change in 1975 Base Outlay Estimates	5
Congressional and Other Changes in 1975 Base Outlay Estimates	6
Outlays by Agency	7
Outlays by Function	8
ACTIONS TO REDUCE 1975 SPENDING	9
Part 1 - New Substantive Legislation Proposals	10
Part 2 - Requests for Congressional Action on Pending Substantive Legislation	15
Draft Substantive Bills*	18
Part 3 - Pending Appropriations Bills	75
Part 4 - Amendments to 1975 Budget Requests	87
Part 5 - Executive Actions Under Current Law	90
Part 6 - Proposed Rescissions	R75-8
Part 7 - Deferrals	D75-90

<sup>\*</sup> Apply to Parts 1 and 2.

## INDEX

	Page	Rescission number	Deferral number
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE: Child Nutrition Conservation Export Credit Sales Food Stamps Other	90 84 90 90 85	R75-8 to 10	D75 <b>-9</b> 0
ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION		• • • • • • • • • • • • •	D75-110 to 123
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE		R75-11 to 16	D75-91 to 100
CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION	86		
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE - MILITARY: Aircraft Procurement	15 : 91	R75-27 to 28	
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY	86		
GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION: Federal Buildings Fund Stockpile Disposals	17	R75-44	
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE:  Education  Elementary, Secondary, and Vocational  Higher Education	49, 50		D75-103 to 105
Medicaid	11-12, 10 45-57, 91	5,	
Medicare		5,	
Other	76-77, 81-83, 87-88	R75-29	D75-101 to 102

	Page	Rescission number	Deferral number	**************************************
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE (continued):				
Public Assistance (AFDC)	12-13, 16, 23-33, 92			
Social Security (OASDI)	13, 16, 19-23	. •		
Other	79, 88		D75-106	
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT: Comprehensive Planning Grants Policy Research and Development Tandem Plan			D75-107 D75-108	
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR	•	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	D75-109	
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE	• • • • • •	R75-30 to 34		
NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	D75-124 to 1	26
NATIONAL FOUNDATION ON THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	D75-127	
NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	D75-128 to 1	29
PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT - Government-wide	94			
SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	D75-130	
SPECIAL ACTION OFFICE FOR DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION.	• • • • • •	R75-45 to 46		
STATE DEPARTMENT	• • • • • •	R75-35 to 36		
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:  Coast Guard Urban Mass Transit User Fees and Charges	93		SO TO SO	
DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY	•••••	R75-37 to 43		
VETERANS ADMINISTRATION:  Education Bill	14, 68-7 14 17 17	<b>'</b> 4		

# (E)

#### SUMMARY OF REVISED BUDGET ESTIMATES

This section provides further detail on the current status of the 1975 budget estimates and the 1975 and 1976 outlay impact of the reductions identified in this Message.

As Table 1 shows, the current base estimate of 1975 outlays is now \$306.8 billion, \$1.4 billion above the June estimate. Completion of the actions outlined in this Message will bring the outlay total down to \$302.2 billion. Based on current receipts estimates, this would result in a budget deficit of \$9.2 billion.

Receipts for fiscal year 1975, as shown in Table 2, are now estimated at \$293 billion, \$1 billion below the June estimate. This estimate includes the effect of the President's income tax surcharge and investment tax credit proposals announced in the Economic Message on October 8, along with the tax bill reported by the Ways and Means Committee last week. Together these proposals raise 1975 receipts by about \$1 billion.

Individual income taxes have been revised downward by \$3 billion since June, in large part due to a downward reestimate of capital gains income. Taxes on corporate profits are expected to be somewhat higher than the June estimate due to higher-than-anticipated inventory profits. Other tax receipts have been revised upward by over \$1 billion based on collection experience during the first 4 months of the fiscal year.

Table 3 summarizes the major program changes that have caused the 1975 base estimates of outlays to rise by \$1.3 billion since June. The largest change in outlays is in aid to the jobless, which is now estimated

to be \$2.7 billion higher than in June. Estimated outlays by the unemployment trust fund are up by \$2.0 billion due to both higher-than-anticipated rates of unemployment and the extended benefits program enacted by the Congress. In addition, outlays for the proposed National Employment Assistance program of special unemployment assistance and community improvement projects in areas of high unemployment are estimated to be \$1.5 billion. This increase is offset in part by the Congress' decision not to enact the proposed extended benefits proposal, estimated at \$0.8 billion, which was included in the June estimates.

In addition, estimated outlays for veterans benefits and interest on the public debt have increased significantly since June. The \$1.4 billion increase in veterans benefits is largely due to congressional increases in veterans education. Higher-than-anticipated interest rates are responsible for the \$1.5 billion upward revision in estimated interest on the public debt.

Estimated outlays for several programs — notably defense — are now lower than in June. Congressional cuts in the defense appropriations reduced outlays by \$3.1 billion. This is in part offset by congressional rejection of the Federal pay raise deferral proposed by the President and other changes. As a result, spending for the Department of Defense military programs is now estimated to be \$2.2 billion less than in June. In addition, estimated outlays for grants for sewage plant construction are down by \$1.0 billion because anticipated construction schedules have not been met. Estimated outlays for Medicare and social security are also running below previous estimates.

Table 4 summarizes the changes in the 1975 base estimates in terms of congressional changes and reestimates and other changes. As the table shows, the congressional reduction of defense spending is more than offset by congressional increases in other programs. On a net basis, the Congress has increased 1975 outlays by \$1 billion.

Additional information on the revisions in the base estimates and the proposed reductions is shown in Table 5, which shows outlays by agency, and Table 6, which shows outlays by function.

Table 1

1975 BUDGET TOTALS
(fiscal years; in billions of dollars)

	June estimate	Current base	Revised estimate
Outlays	305.4	306.8	302.2
Receipts	294.0	293.0	293.0
Deficit (-)	-11.4	-13.8	-9.2

Table 2

RECEIPTS
(fiscal years; in billions of dollars)

	*	1975		
	1974 Actual	June estimate	Current estimate <sup>1</sup>	Change
Individual income taxes	119.0	131.0	128.1	-2.9
Corporation income taxes	38.6	44.5	45.1	+.6
Social insurance taxes and contributions	76.8	86.1	86.9	+.8
Other	30.6	32.4	32.9	+.5
Total	264.9	294.0	293.0	-1.0

These estimates include the effect of the income tax surcharge and investment tax credit proposed by the President on October 8, and the tax bill reported by the Ways and Means Committee in November. Together, these proposals reduce individual income tax receipts by \$0.2 billion and increase corporation income taxes by \$1.0 billion.

## Table 3

# CHANGE IN 1975 OUTLAYS (in billions of dollars)

	Amount
June estimate (Mid-Session Review)	305.4
Change in outlays related to unemployment:  Unemployment trust fund, including effects of P.L. 93-368 on extended benefits	
Subtotal, unemployment	2.7
Change in defense outlays: Congressional changes to defense appropriations (including 1974 supplemental)	-2.2
Other changes:  Veterans benefits	
Subtotal, other	0.8
Current base estimate	306.8

## Table 4

# CONGRESSIONAL AND OTHER CHANGES IN 1975 OUTLAYS (in billions of dollars)

	Amount
June estimate (Mid-Session Review)	305.4
Congressional changes           Appropriations changes:         Congressional changes to defense appropriations           (including second 1974 supplemental)         -3.1           Comprehensive manpower assistance:         Second 1974 supplemental         0.5           1975 Labor-HEW appropriations         0.2           Subtotal, comprehensive manpower         0.7           Other changes         -0.2           Subtotal, appropriations changes         -2.6           Mandatory changes:         Veterans education benefits extend delimiting period (P.L. 93-337)         0.6           Veterans education benefits increase (H.R. 12628)         0.6           Rejection of postponement of pay raise deferral (S.Res. 394)         0.7           Unemployment benefits extension (P.L. 93-368)         0.7           All other         0.2           Subtotal, mandatory changes         2.8           Inaction on Administration savings proposals:         0.3           OASI retroactive benefit options         0.3           AFDC income disregard         0.2           Medicaid revisions         0.1           Veterans duplicate burial benefits         0.1           Veterans medical care reimbursable from private	305.4
insurers	1.0
Re-estimates and other changes  Change in outlays related to unemployment:  Unemployment trust fund, excluding effect of P.L. 93-368 on extended benefits	0.3
Current base estimate	306.8

Table 5

1975 OUTLAYS BY AGENCY
(in billions of dollars)

				1975			
	1974	June		Current base	Proposed	Revised	Effect on
	Actual '	<u>estimate</u>	Revisions	<u>estimate</u>	reductions	total	<u> 1976</u>
Department of Defense, including							
military assistance	78.4	85.8	-2.2	83.6	-0.4	83.2	-0.3
Agriculture	9.8	8.9	-0.1	8.8	-0.6	8.2	-0.7
Commerce	1.5	1.7	-0.1	1.7	*	1.6	*
Corps of Engineers	1.7	1.7	0.1	1.8	*	1.8	-
Health, Education, and Welfare	93.7	111.0	-0.8	110.2	-1.7	108.5	-3.5
Social security trust funds	(67.2)	(79.3)	(-0.6)	(78.7)	(-0.7)	(77.9)	(-2.1)
Housing and Urban Development	4.8	6.1	-0.4	5.7	-0.1	5.6	-0.1
Interior	1.9	2.5	-0.1	2.4	-0.1	2.4	*
Justice	1.8	2.1	-0.1	2.0	*	2.0	***
Labor	9.0	11.6	3.7	15.3	3000 June 400	15.3	<b></b>
Unemployment trust fund	(6.1)	(8.0)	(2.0)	(10.0)	()	(10.0)	()
State	0.7	0.8	*	0.8	*	0.8	
Transportation	8.1	9.3	-0.2	9.1	-0.1	8.9	-0.3
Treasury	36.0	38.7	1.4	40.1	*	40.1	-0.1
Interest on the debt	(29.3)	(31.5)	(1.5)	(33.0)	()	(33.0)	()
General revenue sharing	(6.1)	(6.2)	()	(6.2)	()	(6.2)	()
Atomic Energy Commission	2.3	3.0	`*	3.1	-0.1	3.0	
Environmental Protection Agency	2.0	4.1	-1.1	2.9	*	2.9	-
General Services Administration	-0.3	-0.8	0.1	-0.8	-0.2	-0.9	-0.5
National Aeronautics and Space							·
Administration	3.3	3.3	*	3.3	-0.1	3.2	
Veterans Administration	13.3	14.2	1.5	15.6	-1.1	14.5	-1.3
All other agencies	17.1	19.6	0.3	19.9	*	19.8	
Allowances		0.9	-0.1	0.8	-	0.8	*
Undistributed offsetting receipts1.	<u>-16.6</u>	-18.9	-0.6	<u>-19.5</u>		-19.5	***************************************
Total	268.4	305.4	1.3	306.8	-4.6	302.2	-6.7

<sup>1</sup> Includes offshore oilland receipts.

<sup>\* \$50</sup> million or less.

Table 6

OUTLAYS BY FUNCTION
(fiscal years; in billions of dollars)

		1975			
	1974	June		Proposed	Revised
	<u>Actual</u>	<u>estimate</u>	Revisions	reductions	estimate
National defense	79.4	87.9	-2.1	-0.6	85.1
International affairs and finance	3.5	4.4	-0.1	-0.3	4.1
Space research and technology	3.3	3.3	<b>-*</b>	-0.1	3.2
Agriculture and rural development	5.2	2.1	-0.1	-*	1.9
Natural resources and environment	5.7	8.5	-0.6	-0.1	7.7
Commerce and transportation	12.6	13.8	-0.2	-0.2	13.4
Community development and housing	5.2	6.2	-0.3	-0.1	5.8
Education and manpower	10.6	11.6	+0.6	-0.2	12.0
Health	21.5	26.3	-0.3	-1.1	25.0
Income security	84.1	102.1	+2.3	-0.9	103.6
Veterans benefits and services	13.4	14.2	+1.5	-1.1	14.5
Interest	28.1	30.1	+1.5		31.7
General government	6.5	7.0	-0.1	-0.1	6.8
General Revenue Sharing	6.1	6.2	*	~ -	6.2
Allowances		0.9	-0.1		0.8
Undistributed offsetting receipts1	<u>-16.6</u>	<u>-18.9</u>	-0.6		<u>-19.5</u>
Total	268.4	305.4	+1.3	-4.6	302.2

<sup>\* \$50</sup> million or less.

<sup>1</sup> Includes offshore oilland receipts.

#### ACTIONS TO REDUCE 1975 SPENDING

A variety of actions are needed to achieve the reductions proposed by the President in today's message. Some can be achieved by the Executive Branch under current law. Others require congressional action on appropriations or other legislation. Still others propose withdrawal (rescission) or deferral of funds previously provided.

A summary of these actions follows:

	deral Spending ns of dollars)  1976
Enact new legislation transmitted with this message (Part 1)1,783	-3,250
Enact legislation previously trans- mitted and pending before the Congress (Part 2)896	-1,798
Modify appropriation bills now pending before the Congress (Part 3)337	-281
Consider revised appropriations requests transmitted with this message (Part 4)50	-30
Rescind (withdraw) funds previously provided (Part 6)224	-227
Defer use of funds previously provided (Part 7)	+18
Total, actions for consideration by the Congress3,607	-5,568
Executive actions under current law (Part 5)	-1,110
Total, proposed reductions4,586	-6,678

## Part 1. New Substantive Legislation Proposals

The Congress is requested to enact legislation that would make possible 1975 outlay savings of \$1,783 million and 1976 outlay savings of \$3,250 million. The draft bills included in this part would accomplish savings in the programs listed below. The draft bill entitled "Social Security Cost Control Amendments of 1974" repeats proposals that have previously been transmitted to the Congress (and are discussed in Part 2) for Medicaid; Old Age, Survivors, and Disability Insurance; and Aid to Families of Dependent Children.

(Dollars in millions)

Current 1975 Effect on Action
Outlay Estimate on Outlays
1975 1976

### Department of Defense

Reduce reserve component strength..... 1,550 -63 -13

The average Reserve Forces strength plan would be reduced by approximately 22,000 from the currently planned level as follows: Army National Guard, 12,000; Air National Guard, 1,000; Army Reserve, 5,000; Naval Reserve, 4,000. A bill to amend the Department of Defense Procurement Authorization Act of 1975 (P.L. 93-365) to make possible these changes is included in this part. The bill would make the minimum average strengths in each of the Reserve components the same as requested in the President's budget. The changes in the plan would not go as low as the proposed floors in the draft bill, thus providing some flexibility among components in achieving the overall plan. Enactment of the bill would make it possible to achieve savings to partially offset higher pay costs arising from pay raises effective October 1, 1974.

#### Department of Health, Education, and Welfare

Medicare..... 13,823 -465 -1,311

The draft bill would reform cost-sharing provisions to provide financial incentives for appropriate utilization and to better protect beneficiaries against large out-of-pocket expenses. Current hospital cost-sharing provisions include a \$92 deductible, no cost-sharing from the 2nd to 60th hospital day, \$23/day for the 61st to 90th day, and \$46/day for the 91st to 150th day. There are presently no cost-sharing limits and a beneficiary could be subject to \$4,462 in copayments for inpatient services and unlimited liability for physician services.

Current 1975 Outlay Estimate Effect of Action on Outlays 1975 1976

#### Department of Health, Education, and Welfare (continued)

The need for re-designed cost-sharing for inpatient services is evidence by wide variation in utilization that reflect the availability of free services. For example, in the West--which has 5.9 hospital beds for 1,000 population--lengths of stay for Medicare beneficiaries average 10.1 days. In the Northeast--which has 8.7 hospital beds per 1,000 population--lengths of stay average nearly 50% longer--15.0 days.

Modest cost-sharing can introduce some cost awareness into utilization decisions and help to assure that the taxpayers' money is going only for necessary care. The proposed reform would establish a 10% coinsurance rate after the \$92 deductible, and a \$750 limit would be placed on maximum cost-sharing. The \$750 limit would end cost-sharing after about the 60th hospital day, providing better protection for the aged against catastrophic expenses than the present program.

For physician and other services covered by supplementary medical insurance, the fixed \$60 deductible would be adjusted with increases in social security cash benefits and a limit would be set on maximum cost-sharing. The deductible would rise to \$67 in 1975, reflecting the 11% cash benefit increases in 1974. The open-ended patient liability would be replaced by an annual cost-sharing limit of \$750.

Effect of proposals for Medicare and Aid to Families of Dependent Children on Medicaid....

6,752

+37

+105

These estimates simply reflect the impact on Medicaid of legislative proposals elsewhere in this part for Medicare costsharing and changes in the Aid to Families of Dependent Children program.

Current 1975 Outlay Estimate Effect of Action on Outlays 1975 1976

#### Department of Health, Education, and Welfare (continued)

Medicaid, Federal matching provisions....

6,752

-295

-636

Legislation is proposed to reform the provisions for Federal matching funds. The present matching formula is based on State per capita income, but assures that the highest income States will receive at least 50% Federal matching. This provision has disproportionately distributed Federal funds toward these highest income States.

The reform would lower the floor on Federal matching to 40% and thus target the growth of Federal outlays more toward improving the low eligibility and benefits in lower income States. Only the thirteen highest income States would be affected.

Impact aid program.....

458

-65

-30

The draft bill would revamp the payment schedule to local educational agencies, for both "A" (those whose parents both live and work on Federal Property) and "B" (those whose parents either live or work on Federal property) category students. Payments would be scheduled to each eligible district that would derive in excess of 5% of its total operating budget from impact aid funds. If the district's entitlement was less than 5% of its total operating budget, impact aid payments would not be made.

The proposed change would affect only those districts which derive a relatively minor share (5% or less) of their total operating budgets from the impact aid program. These school districts have sufficient alternative sources of revenue to absorb the reduction in Federal support. There would be continuing support for the more heavily supported districts (those which derive more than 5% of their total operating budgets from this program).

Public assistance, Aid to Families of Dependent Children (AFDC), support from absentee parents.....

5,101

-15

-90

Legislation is proposed to provide incentives for State and local law enforcement officials to pursue and obtain support from

Current 1975 Outlays Estimate effect of Action on Outlays 1975 1976

#### Department of Health, Education, and Welfare (continued)

absentee parents who are liable for such support. The goal of this action is to adhere more closely to the objectives of the welfare system. This action will more strongly place the burden of family support on those who have a legal obligation to bear it.

Public assistance, Aid to Families of Dependdent Children (AFDC), matching formula.....

5,101

-30

-60

The State option of using the liberal AFDC matching formula to obtain Federal funds would be eliminated by the proposed legislation and the Medicaid formula would be used exclusively. This proposal would bring the AFDC program more into line with other welfare programs and promote administrative simplicity.

Social Security Administration; Old Age,
Survivors, and Disability Insurance.....

64,879

-35

-215

Retirees may now earn unlimited amounts in any single month and still get benefits for the other 11 months of the year. The proposed legislation would eliminate the monthly earnings test, but retain the yearly test which makes ineligible those who earn more than \$2,400 during the course of the year.

#### Department of Transportation

Inland waterways user charges.....

**-** 25

-100

New legislation is recommended which, if enacted, would improve equity of treatment for users of Federally-funded transportation facilities. This bill is designed to assess users for the costs of operation and maintenance of inland waterway facilities by charging for transporting goods on specified segments of inland waterways on "ton-mile" basis. In addition, a lockage fee will be charged to vessels for each transit of a lock. Full year receipts are estimated at \$100 million. The estimate for 1975 is based on an effective date of April 1, 1975.

Current 1975 Outlays Estimate Effect of Action on Outlays 1975 1976

#### Department of Transportation (continued)

Airport landing fees.....

<del>-</del> 25

**-**95

Draft legislation would institute general aviation airport landing fees at airports with Federal Aviation Administration-operated air traffic control towers by amending the Airport and Airway Revenue Act of 1970, Public Law 91-258. The Secretary of Transportation, in the Congressionally-mandated "Airport and Airway Cost Allocation Study," found that general aviation users are responsible for \$500 million of the Airport and Airway System cost and are currently paying only about \$90 million in user fees. The proposed fee, to be imposed on full stop landings, will relieve the general taxpayer from a small portion of this general aviation subsidy and will insure that costs are assessed against those creating the demand for services.

#### Veterans Administration

Repeal of 2-year GI Bill Extension.....

618

-300

-618

Draft legislation would restore the 8-year period within which veterans, wives, and widows pursuing programs of education under the GI Bill and the War Orphans' and Widows' Educational Assistance Act, have to complete their programs. Public Law 93-337, enacted July 10, 1974, revised the delimiting period granted under the current programs from 8 years to 10 years.

Veterans education.....

814

-502

-187

The enrolled veterans education bill containing a 22.7% rate increase, a direct student loan program, a fifth year of entitlement for undergraduate college students, and many other program changes is unacceptable. An alternative (as set forth in the revised draft legislative proposal) would provide for a simple 18.2% rate increase, effective January 1, 1975. This will give a married veteran with a child \$352 per month, or \$3,168 of tax-free money for a school year, nearly \$500 more than at present.

# Part 2. Requests for Congressional Action on Pending Substantive Legislation

Outlined below are actions now proposed on legislation pending before the Congress in eight areas. In three of these areas--Medicaid; Old Age, Survirors, and Disability Insurance; and Aid to Families of Dependent Children--legislation to carry out the proposals is again being submitted in the Social Security Cost Control Amendments of 1974, included in Part 1. The recommendations would permit outlay savings of \$896 million in 1975 and \$1,798 million in 1976 as follows:

(Dollars in millions)

Current 1975 Effect of Action
Outlay Estimate on Outlays
1975 1976

#### Department of Defense

Navy petroleum reserves...

-0-

-125

-148

Senate Joint Resolution 176 authorizing production and sale of oil from Petroleum Reserve No. 1 (Elk Hills, California) for one year was passed by the Senate last December, but there has been no action on this bill by the House. Prompt passage by the House will permit the Department of Defense to move forward with sales of this oil and to use the proceeds from these sales to finance costs of exploring for and developing additional petroleum reserves (Receipts from such sales are counted as offsets to budget outlays.)

## Department of Health, Education, and Welfare

Health resources planning....

20

-10

-15

Upon enactment of the Administration's new health planning legislation, the Administration will request a funding level for FY 1975 of \$50 million (\$41.5 million in budget authority in "Health Resources", \$8.5 million to be transferred to this activity from the Social Security trust funds). This represents a \$25 million reduction from the budget authority amount proposed for later transmittal for this new legislation in the February budget.

The lower budget estimate for health resources planning reflects the delay by the Congress in enacting the legislation. The revised amount will still enable the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare to make a good start on implementing the new legislation during the last half of the fiscal year.

	Current 1975 Outlay Estimate	Effect of Act on Outlays		
		1975	1976	
Medicaid	6,752	<b>-</b> 35	<b>-</b> 76	

A draft bill that would accomplish these savings has been previously made available to the Senate Finance Committee and is again being submitted (see Part 1). It would eliminate Federal payments for non-emergency adult dental services. States, at their discretion, could continue to finance such services with their own funds.

Federal matching for children's preventive dental care -- the most important area of dental care -- will be continued for Medicaid eligible children up to age 21.

All applicants for social security cash benefits have the option of setting their effective retirement date back as much as one year and taking a lump sum retroactive payment, if they could have qualified during that period. For some, this means permanently reduced future payments. Administration legislation pending as S. 2312 is also resubmitted in Part 1. It would bar retroactive entitlement if such entitlement would result in retirement before age 65 and, therefore, in reduced future benefits. While this legislation will result in budget savings in the next few years, individual benefits will be maintained at higher levels in the longer term.

Public assistance, Aid to Families of Dependent Children..... 5,101 -95 -203

Administration legislation pending as S. 2311 and resubmitted in Part 1, would reduce the amount of income which may be disregarded for work-related expenses in ascertaining welfare eligibility. The legislation provides a more realistic basis for calculating work-related expenses than the current special allowance does.

í

(Dollars in millions)

Current 1975 Outlay Estimate Effect of Action on Outlays 1975 1976

#### General Services Administration

Stockpile disposals.....

-964

-150

-443

Enactment of disposal legislation (H.R. 15495, H.R. 11557, and one of the following three bills: H.R. 14845, H.R. 15914, H.R. 15953) for 1,000,000 long tons of tin, 118 million troy ounces of silver, and 455,000 short tons of lead will permit GSA to hold additional stockpile sales and realize the savings shown.

#### Veterans Administration

Pension reform.....

2,852

-250

-361

The Administration recommends that its proposals (contained in the 1975 budget) for reform of the Veterans Administration pension program be deferred, but that the Congress continue its review of reform alternatives.

Medical care.....

3,177

-61

-122

H.R. 5936 would authorize the Veterans Administration to be reimbursed from private health insurance policies for medical treatment of non-service-connected disabilities. Prompt action will yield the savings shown.



The draft bills follow.

#### A BILL

- To amend provisions of the Department of Defense Appropriation Authorization Act of 1975 which provide for the authorized personnel strength of the Selected Reserve of each Reserve component of the Armed Forces and for other purposes.
- 1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of
- 2 the United States of America in Congress assempled, That
- 3 Section 401 of Public Law 93-365, approved August 5, 1974
- 4 (88 Stat. 402) is amended to read as follows:
- 5 "SEC. 401. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1974, and
- 6 ending June 30, 1975, the Selected Reserve of each Reserve com-
- 7 ponent of the Armed Forces will be programed to attain an average
- 8 strength of not less than the following:
- 9 (1) The Army National Guard of the United States, 379,848;
- 10 (2) The Army Reserve, 215,842;
- 11 (3) The Naval Reserve, 107,526;
- 12 (4) The Marine Corps Reserve, 36,703;
- 13 (5) The Air National Guard of the United States, 89,128;
- 14 (6) The Air Force Reserve, 51,319;
- 15 (7) The Coast Guard Reserve, 11,700."
- SEC. 2. Section 403(a) of Public Law 93-365, approved August 5,
- 17 1974 (88 Stat. 403) is amended by deleting "91 flying units" and
- 18 inserting in lieu thereof the number "86 flying units".

#### ABILL

To amend the Social Security Act to improve and control the cost of the program of old-age, survivors, and disability insurance, the program of grants to States for aid to families with dependent children, the program of health insurance for the aged and disabled, and the program of grants to States for medical assistance programs.

Be it enacted by the Senate and the House of

Representatives of the United States of America in

Congress assembled, That this Act may be cited as the

"Social Security Cost Control Amendments of 1974".

ELIMINATION OF CERTAIN OPTIONAL PAYMENT PROCEDURES UNDER THE OASDI PROGRAM

- Sec. 2. (a) (1) The first sentence of section 202(j) (1) of the Social Security Act is amended by striking out "An individual" and inserting "Subject to the limitations contained in paragraph (4), an individual" in lieu thereof.
- (2) Section 202(j) of such Act is further amended by inserting at the end thereof the following new paragraph:
- "(4)(A) Except as provided in subparagraph (B), no individual shall be entitled to benefits under subsections

- (a), (b), (c), (e), or (f) for any month prior to the month in which he files an application for such benefits if the effect of such payment would be to reduce, pursuant to subsection (q), the monthly benefits to which such individual would otherwise be entitled.
- "(B)(i) If the individual applying for retroactive benefits is applying for such benefits under subsection (a), and there are one or more other persons who would, except for subparagraph (A), be entitled for any month, on the basis of the wages and self-employment income of such individual and because of such individual's entitlement to such retroactive benefits, to retroactive benefits under subsection (b), (c), or (d) not subject to reduction under subsection (q), then subparagraph (A) shall not apply with respect to such month or any subsequent month.
- "(ii) If the individual applying for retroactive benefits is a widow, widower, or surviving divorced wife who is under a disability (as defined in section 223(d)), and such individual would, except for subparagraph (A), be entitled to retroactive benefits as a disabled widow, widower, or surviving divorced wife for any month before he or she

attained the age of 60, then subparagraph (A) shall not apply with respect to such month or any subsequent month.

- "(iii) If the individual applying for retroactive benefits has excess earnings (as defined in section 203(f)) in the year in which he files an application for such benefits which could, except for subparagraph (A), be charged to months in such year prior to the month of application, then subparagraph (A) shall not apply to so many of such months immediately preceding the month of application as are required to charge such excess earnings to the maximum extent possible."
- (3) Section 226(h) of such Act is amended by inserting at the end thereof the following new paragraph:
- "(4) For the purposes of determining entitlement to hospital insurance benefits under subsection (b) in the case of an individual described in clause (iii) of subsection (b)(2)(A), the entitlement of such individual to widow's or widower's insurance benefits under section 202(e) or (f) by reason of a disability shall be deemed to be the entitlement to such benefits that would result if such entitlement were determined without regard to the provisions of section 202(j)(4)."

(b) The amendments made by this section shall apply with respect to applications for benefits under title II of the Social Security Act filed after November 30, 1974.

# REVISION OF THE RETIREMENT TEST UNDER THE OASDI PROGRAM

Sec. 3. (a) Section 203(f)(l)(E) of the Social Security Act is amended to read as follows: "(E) in which such individual did not engage in self-employment and did not render services for wages (determined as provided in paragraph (5) of this subsection) of more than the exempt amount as determined under paragraph (8), but only if the month is in that taxable year in which occurs the first month that is both (i) a month for which the individual is entitled to benefits under subsection (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), or (h) of section 202 without regard to any previous entitlement under any other of such subsections, and (ii) a month in which the individual did not engage in self-employment and did not render services for wages (determined as provided in paragraph (5) of this subsection) of more than the exempt amount as determined under paragraph (8)."

(b) The amendment made by this section shall apply with respect to taxable years beginning after

December 31, 1974.

ADJUSTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF INCOME
TO BE DISREGARDED IN DETERMINING NEED UNDER
THE AFDC PROGRAM

- Sec. 4. (a) Section 402(a)(7) of the Social Security

  Act is amended by striking out "as well as any expenses

  reasonably attributable to the earning of any such income".
- (b) Section 402 (a) (8) (A) (ii) of such Act is amended by striking out "the first \$30 of the total of such earned income for such month plus one-third of the remainder of such income" and inserting in lieu thereof "the first \$60 of the total of such earned income for such month plus an amount equal to any expenses (subject to such limitations as to amount or otherwise as the Secretary may prescribe) which are for the care of a dependent child and are reasonably attributable to the earning of any such income plus one-third of the remainder of such income".

- striking out "was in excess of their need" and inserting in lieu thereof "was in excess of their need (after deducting from such income \$60 plus an amount equal to any expenses, subject to such limitations as to amount or otherwise as the Secretary may prescribe, which are for the care of a dependent child and are reasonably attributable to the earning of any such income)".
- (d) The amendments made by this section shall be effective with respect to payments under section 403 of the Social Security Act for quarters beginning after December 31, 1974.

# CHILD SUPPORT OBLIGATIONS UNDER AFDC PROGRAMS

- Sec. 5. (a) (1) Section 1106(c) (1) (A) of the Social Security Act is amended by inserting "that such information is to be used to locate a parent for the purpose of enforcing support obligations against such parent pursuant to the provisions of the plan of the State approved under part A of title IV required by section 402(a)(17), or immediately after "if such agency certifies".
  - (2) Section 1106(c)(2) of such Act is amended by--

- (1) inserting "where applicable" immediately
- (2) inserting at the end thereof the following:

  "Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (1), the

  Secretary may by regulation provide for the denial of
  information requested under that paragraph for the
  purpose of protecting the privacy of individuals
  with respect to whom information is requested."
- (b) (1) Section 402 (a) (17) (A) of the Social Security

  Act is amended by inserting at the end thereof the following new clauses:
  - "(iii) to identify and locate absent parents

    of children receiving such aid, including utilization

    of information available from the Secretary pursuant

    to section 1106(c), and
    - "(iv) provide for the equitable distribution
      between the State and political subdivisions of the
      State involved in obtaining any support payment under
      the program so much of the payment as is, under
      section 403(b)(2)(B)(ii), retained by the State from
      the pro rata share of a recovery to which the United
      States is equitably entitled, and".

- (2) Section 402(a)(17) is further amended by redesignating clause (B) as clause (D) and inserting the following new clauses after clause (A):
  - "(B) that in carrying out the program required by clause (A), voluntary or administrative arrangements to recover child support obligations will be made only if enforceable by law, and that any such arrangements will provide that support payments will not cease if the family ceases to receive assistance under this part,
    - "(C) for compliance with such other requirements as the Secretary determines to be necessary to the establishment of an effective program for locating absent parents, determining paternity, obtaining support orders, and collecting support payments, and consistent with the rights of affected individuals, including, but not limited to, requiring a full record of collections and disbursements, and".
  - (3) Section 402 (a) (22) (A) is amended by inserting "in establishing the paternity of a child with respect to whom aid is being provided under the plan of such other State," before "in locating a parent".

- (c) (1) Section 403(a) (3) (B) of such Act is amended by inserting ", including all expenditures for conduct of the activities required by section 402(a)(11), (17), (18), (21), and (22)" immediately before the period at the end thereof.
  - (2) Section 403(b)(2)(B) of such Act is amended by--
  - (1) inserting "(i)" immediately after "a sum
    equivalent to",
  - (2) inserting ", other than the amount recovered under the program required by section 402(a)(17)," immediately after "the net amount recovered"; and
  - (3) inserting ", and (ii) the pro rata share to which the United States is equitably entitled, as determined by the Secretary of Health, Education, and Welfare, of the amount recovered during any prior quarter by the State or any political subdivision thereof with respect to such aid under the program required by section 402(a)(17) less 20 percent of such amount immediately after "furnished under the State plan".
- (d) (1) Section 402(a) (10) is amended by inserting immediately before "be furnished" the following: ", subject to paragraphs (25) and (26),".
  - (2) Section 402(a) is further amended --

- (A) by striking out "and" at the end of paragraphs (22) and (23);
- (B) by striking out the period at the end of paragraph (24) and inserting a semicolon in lieu thereof; and
- (C) by inserting at the end thereof the following new paragraphs:
- "(25) provide that, as a condition of eligibility under the plan, each applicant for or recipient of aid shall furnish to the State agency his social security account number (or numbers, if he has more than one such number); and
- "(26) provide that, as a condition of eligibility m Welfare, of the amount recovered during any prior quarter for aid, each applicant or recipient will be required, State or any political subdivision thereof with consistent with regulations prescribed by the Secretary to d under the program required by protect the rights of such applicant or recipient, to cooperate with the State or local agency administering ately after "furnished under the State plan". the State plan, (A) in establishing the paternity Section 402(a)(10) is amended by inserting of a child born out of wedlock with respect to whom aid is claimed, and (B) in obtaining support payments for such applicant or recipient and for a child with respect to whom such aid is claimed, or in obtaining any other payments or property due such applicant or recipient or such child.".

- (e) Section 405 of the Social Security Act is amended by adding at the end thereof the following new subsection:
- "(f) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (b), the term 'aid to families with dependent children' does not mean payments with respect to a dependent child, a relative with whom any dependent child is living, or any other individual (living in the same home as such a child and relative) whose needs such State determines should be considered in determining the need of the child or relative claiming aid under the plan of such State approved under this part, who for any month is the parent of a child with respect to whom such aid is claimed who fails to cooperate with any agency or official of the State or of the United States in obtaining support payments for herself or such child."
- (f) Section 402 of such Act is amended by inserting at the end thereof the following new subsection:
- "(d) A State plan approved under this part

  (1) may provide that, as a condition of eligibility for aid,
  each applicant or recipient will be required to assign any
  rights to support from any other person such applicant may
  have in his own behalf or in behalf of any other family member
  for whom the applicant is applying for or receiving aid and
  which have accured at the time such assignment is executed;

- (2) may provide that any such rights assigned to the State shall constitute an obligation owed to the State by the individual responsible for providing such support; and (3) may provide that payments collected pursuant to any such assignment will be paid directly to the State."
- (g) The amendments made by this section shall be effective with respect to payments under section 403 of the Social Security Act for quarters beginning after December 31, 1974.

MODIFICATION OF PATE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL
PARTICIPATION IN STATE PROGRAMS OF AID TO NEEDY
FAMILIES WITH CHILDREN AND AGED, BLIND, OR DISABLED
INDIVIDUALS

Sec. 6. (a) (1) Section 3(a) of the Social Security

Act is amended by striking out clauses (1) and (2) and

inserting in lieu thereof the following:

- "(1) in the case of any State, an amount equal to the Federal percentage (as defined in section 1101(a)(8)); of the total amount expended during such quarter as old-age assistance under the State plan;".
- (2) Section 403(a) of that Act is amended by striking out clauses (1) and (2) and inserting in lieu thereof the following:
  - "(1) in the case of any State, an amount equal to the Federal percentage (as defined in section 1101(a)(8)) of the total amount expended during such quarter as aid to families with dependent children under the State plan; and".
- (3) Section 1003(a) of that Act is amended by striking out clauses (1) and (2) and inserting in lieu thereof the following:
  - "(1) in the case of any State, an amount equal to the Federal percentage (as defined in section 1101(a)(8)) of the total amount expended during such quarter as aid to the blind under the State plan; and".
- (4) Section 1403(a) of that Act is amended by striking out clauses (1) and (2) and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

- "(1) in the case of any State, an amount equal to the Federal percentage (as defined in section 1101(a)(8)); of the total amount expended during such quarter as aid to the permanently and totally disabled under the State plan; and".
- (5) Section 1603(a) of that Act is amended by striking out clauses (1) and (2) and inserting in lieu thereof the following:
  - "(1) in the case of any State, an amount equal to the Federal percentage (as defined in section 1101(a)(8)) of the total amount expended during such quarter as aid to the aged, blind, or disabled under the State plan; ".
- (6)(A) Section 1101(a)(8)(A) of that Act is amended to read as follows:
  - "(8)(A) The Federal percentage for any State is

    100 percent less the State percentage; and the State

    percentage is that percentage which bears the same

    ratio to 45 percent as the square of the per capita

    income of the State bears to the square of the per capita

    income of the continental United States (including

Alaska) and Hawaii; except that (i) the Federal percentage shall in no case be less than 50 percent or more than 83 percent, and (ii) the Federal percentage for Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, and Guam is 50 percent."

- (B) Section 1101(a)(8)(B) of that Act is amended by striking out everything after "such promulgation" and inserting a period in lieu thereof.
- (C) Section 1101(a)(8) of that Act is further amended by striking out subparagraphs (C) and (D).
  - (7) Section 1118 of that Act is repealed.
- (b) The amendments made by this section shall be effective with respect to payments under section 3, 403, 1003, 1403, or 1603 of the Social Security Act for quarters beginning after December 31, 1974.

## REFORM OF MEDICARE HOSPITAL INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLES AND COINSURANCE

- Sec. 7. (a) Paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of section 1813 of the Social Security Act is amended to read as follows:
- "(1) Except as provided in paragraph (4), the amount payable for inpatient hospital services furnished

an individual during any spell of illness shall be reduced by a deduction equal to the inpatient hospital deductible or, if less, the charges for such services imposed with respect to such individual for such services, and by a coinsurance amount equal to one-tenth of the charges imposed for such inpatient hospital services, other than--

- "(A) charges subject to the inpatient hospital deductible, and
- "(B) charges imposed for the first three pints of whole blood (or equivalent quantities of packed red blood cells, as defined in regulations) furnished to such individual during such spell."
- (b) Paragraph (3) of such subsection is amended to read as follows:
- "(3) Except as provided in paragraph (4), the amount payable for post-hospital extended care services during any spell of illness and post-hospital home health services during the period after the beginning of one spell of illness and before the beginning of the next spell of illness shall be reduced by a coinsurance amount equal to one-tenth of the charges imposed for such services, other than charges

imposed for the first three pints of whole blood (or equivalent quantities of packed red blood cells, as defined in regulations) furnished to such individual during such spell."

- (c) Subsection (a) of such section is further amended by adding at the end thereof the following:
- "(4)(A) The total amount of the reductions imposed under paragraphs (1) and (3) with respect to inpatient hospital services and post-hospital extended care services during a spell of illness and post-hospital home health services during the period after the beginning of that spell of illness and before the beginning of the next spell of illness shall not exceed \$750 if such spell of illness begins in calendar year 1975, or the amount determined under subparagraph (B) if such spell of illness begins in calendar year 1976 or any year thereafter, and when such limit is reached no further reductions shall be imposed under paragraph (1) or (3).

The Secretary shall, during October of 1975, "(B) and of each year thereafter, determine and promulgate the limitation on reductions to be applied under subparagraph (A) with respect to spells of illness beginning in the succeeding calendar year. Such limitation shall be computed by increasing or decreasing \$750 by the same percentage (rounded to the nearest one-tenth of one percent) by which the representative primary insurance amount exceeds or is less than \$393.50. For the purpose of such computation the representative primary insurance amount shall be the primary insurance amount used to determine the amount payable under section 202 for January of the year succeeding the year in which such determination is made to an individual whose primary insurance amount (as determined under section 215(a)(1)(A)) is based on an average monthly wage of \$750, taking into account all applicable laws and administrative determinations which have been enacted and promulgated, respectively, at the time of such computation, even if not yet effective. If the limitation derived from such computation is not a multiple of \$10, it shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$10.

- "(5) In determining the reductions required under paragraphs (1) and (3), the customary charges of a provider for services furnished an individual, other than the services described in clause (B) of paragraph (1), shall be deemed to be the charges imposed for such services by such provider if such customary charges are greater than the charges imposed."
- (d) Section 1861(y) of such Act is amended by striking out paragraph (3) and renumbering paragraph (4) as paragraph (3).
- (e) The amendments made by this section shall be effective with respect to spells of illness, as defined in section 1861(a) of the Social Security Act, beginning after December 31, 1974.

## REFORM OF MEDICARE SUPPLEMENTARY MEDICAL INSURANCE COINSURANCE

Sec. 8. (a) Section 1833(a) of the Social Security
Act is amended to read as follows:

"Sec. 1833. (a) Except as provided in section 1876, and subject to the succeeding provisions of this section, there shall be paid from the Federal Supplementary Medical

Insurance Trust Fund, in the case of each individual who is covered under the insurance program established by this part and incurs expenses for services with respect to which benefits are payable under this part, amounts equal to-

"(1) in the case of services described in section 1832(a)(1), the reasonable charges for the services reduced by a coinsurance amount equal to 20 percent of such reasonable charges; except that (A) an organization which provides medical and other health services (or arranges for their availability) on a prepayment basis may elect to be paid the reasonable cost of services for which payment may be made under this part on behalf of individuals enrolled in such organization reduced by a coinsurance amount equal to 20 percent of such reasonable cost if the organization undertakes to charge such individuals no more than the amount of any such reduction plus the amount of any reduction under subsection (b), (B) with respect to expenses incurred for radiological or pathological services for which payment may be made under this part, furnished to an inpatient of a hospital by a physician

in the field of radiology or pathology, the amounts paid shall equal the reasonable charges for such services reduced by a coinsurance amount equal to ten percent of the charges imposed for such services (or ten percent of the customary charges for such services if the customary charges for such services are greater than the charges imposed), (C) with respect to expenses incurred for those physicians' services for which payment may be made under this part that are described in section 1862(a)(4), the amounts paid shall be subject to such limitations as may be prescribed by regulations, and (D) with respect to diagnostic tests performed in a laboratory for which payment is made under this part to the laboratory, the amounts paid shall be equal to the negotiated rate for such tests (as determined pursuant to subsection (g) of this section), and

- "(2) in the case of services described in section 1832(a)(2)--
  - "(A) the lesser of (i) the reasonable cost of such services, as determined under

with respect to such services; or

- "(B) if such services are furnished by
  a public provider of services free of charge
  or at nominal charges to the public, the amount
  determined in accordance with section 1814(b)(2); or
- "(C) if such services are services to which the second sentence of section 1861(p)

applies, the reasonable charges for such services, reduced, in the case of home health services, by a coinsurance amount equal to ten percent of the charges imposed for such services (or ten percent of the customary charges for such services if the customary charges for such services are greater than the charges imposed), and, in the case of other services, by a coinsurance amount equal to 20 percent of the amount otherwise payable."

- (b) Section 1833(f)(1) of such Act is amended by striking out "the 20 precent coinsurance amount" and inserting "any coinsurance amount" in lieu thereof.
  - (c) Section 1833 of such Act is further amended by reassignating the second subsection (g) as subsection

- (h) and by inserting at the end thereof the following new subsection:
  - "(i)(l) The total amount of--
  - "(A) the reductions imposed under subsection (a)(1) (other than clause (C)),
  - "(B) the reductions imposed under subsection (a) (2) with respect to home health services, and
  - "(C) the amounts chargeable under section 1866(a)(2)(A)(ii),

with respect to empenses incurred by an individual in any calendar year shall not exceed \$750 for calendar year 1975 and the amount determined under paragraph (2) for calendar year 1976 and each year thereafter, and when such limit is reached no further reductions shall be imposed under subsection (a) (other than clause (1)(C)) or under the first sentence of subsection (b) with respect to such expenses incurred by such individual in such year.

"(2) The Secretary shall, during November of 1975
and of each year thereafter, determine and promulgate the
limitation on reductions to be applied under paragraph (1)
for the succeeding calendar year. Such limitation shall be

computed by increasing or decreasing \$750 by the same percentage (rounded to the nearest one-tenth of one percent) by which the representative primary insurance amount exceeds or is less than \$393.50. For the purpose of such computation the representative primary insurance amount shall be the primary insurance amount used to determine the amount payable under section 202 for January of the year succeeding the year in which such determination is made to an individual whose primary insurance amount (as determined under section 215(a)(1)(A)) is based on an average monthly wage of \$750, taking into account all applicable laws and administrative determinations which have been enacted and promulgated, respectively, at the time of such computation, even if not yet effective. If the limitation derived from such computation is not a multiple of \$10, it shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$10."

- (d). Section 1866(a)(2)(A) is amended to read as follows:
- "(2)(A)(i) A provider of services may charge such individual or other person the amount of any deduction or

coinsurance amount imposed pursuant to section 1813(a)(1) or (a)(3) with respect to such items and services.

- "(ii) A provider may charge such individual or other person the amount of any deduction imposed pursuant to section 1833(b) with respect to such items and services (but such amount may not exceed the amount customarily charged for such items and services by such provider); and may also, except as provided in paragraph (iii), charge such individual or other person an amount equal to 20 percent of the reasonable charges for such items and services for which payment is made under part B (but such amount may not exceed 20 percent of the amount customarily charged for such items and services by such provider), except that such charges may not be imposed to the extent that, pursuant to section 1833(i), payment under part B for such items and services is not reduced by a coinsurance amount.
- "(iii) In the case of home health services described in section 1833(a)(2), a provider may charge such individual or other person the amount of any coinsurance amount imposed pursuant to section 1833(a)(2) with respect to such services."
  - (e) The amendments made by this section shall be effective with respect to items and services provided after

December 31, 1974, for which payment is made under title XVIII of the Social Security Act.

## AUTOMATIC ADJUSTMENT OF MEDICARE SUPPLEMENTARY MEDICAL INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE

- Sec. 9. (a) The first sentence of subsection (b) of section 1833 of the Social Security Act is amended by striking out "a deductible of \$60" and inserting "a deductible of \$60 for calendar year 1974, \$67 for calendar year 1975, and the amount determined under paragraph (2) of this subsection for calendar year 1976 and each year thereafter in lieu thereof.
- (b) Subsection (b) of such section is further amended by redesignating clauses (l) and (2) as clauses (A) and (B), respectively, by inserting "(l)" after "(b)", and by inserting at the end thereof the following new paragraph:
- "(2) The Secretary shall, during November of 1975 and of each year thereafter, determine and promulgate the deductible to be applied under paragraph (1) of this subsection for the succeeding calendar year. Such deductible shall be computed by increasing or decreasing \$67 by the same percentage (rounded to the nearest one-tenth of one percent) by which the representative primary insurance amount

effective with respect to items and services provided

exceeds or is less than \$393.50. For the purpose of such computation the representative primary insurance amount shall be the primary insurance amount used to determine the amount payable under section 202 for January of the year succeeding the year in which such determination is made to an individual whose primary insurance amount (as determined under section 215(a)(1)(A)) is based on an average monthly wage of \$750, taking into account all applicable laws and administrative determinations which have been enacted and promulgated, respectively, at the time of such computation, even if not yet effective. If the deductible derived from such computation is not a multiple of \$1, it shall be reduced to the next lower multiple of \$1."

SCOPE OF DENTAL SERVICES FOR WHICH
FEDERAL MATCHING PAYMENTS WILL BE MADE UNDER STATE MEDICAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

- Sec. 10. (a) Paragraph (10) of subsection (a) of section 1905 of the Social Security Act is amended by inserting "for individuals under the age of 21" immediately after "dental services".
- (b) The matter after clause (17) in subsection (a) of such section is amended by --
  - striking out "or" at the end of clause (A);

- (2) striking out the period at the end of the control of the clause (B) and inserting "; or" in lieu thereof; and
- (3) inserting after clause (B) the following was a more new clause:
- "(C) any such payment with respect to dental
  services for any individual who is 21 years of age or
  older, other than emergency dental services (as defined
  in regulations prescribed by the Secretary), and oral
  surgical services and treatment related thereto which
  legally may be performed by a doctor of medicine or
  osteopathy or of dentistry."
- (c) Clause (I) of section 1902(a)(10) of such Act is a mended by inserting ", (10)," immediately after "paragraph (4)".
- (d) The amendments made by this section shall be effective with respect to payments under section 1903 of the Social Security Act for quarters beginning after December 31, 1974.

MINIMUM RATE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL PARTICIPATION UNDER STATE MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

Sec. 11. (a) The first sentence of section 1905(b) of the Social Security Act is at indeed by striking out

"less than 50 per centum" and inserting "less than 40 per centum" in lieu thereof.

(b) The amendment made by this section shall be effective with respect to payments under section 1903 of the Social Security Act for quarters beginning after December 31, 1974.

To amend the program of financial assistance for local educational agencies in areas affected by Federal activity to reduce payments to certain local educational agencies.

Be it enacted by the Senate and the House of

Representatives of the United States of America in Congress

assembled, That, effective July 1, 1974, section 5(b) of

the Act of September 30, 1950 (Public Law 874, Eighty-first

Congress) is amended to read as follows:

"Payments by the Commissioner

- "(b)(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of section 2,

  3, and 4 of this title and subsection (c) of this section,
  the Commissioner shall pay to each local educational agency
  for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1975, and the three
  succeeding fiscal years, the total of the amounts specified
  in subparagraphs (A) through (E) of this paragraph less 5 per
  centum of the current expenditures for such agency during the
  preceding fiscal year:
  - "(A) 100 per centum of the amount such agency would receive under section 2 of this title;
  - "(B) in the case of an agency in which 25 per centum or more of the children in average daily attendance

"(2) Some appropriated, for any fiscal year, to comb

are eligible under section 3(a) of this title,

100 per centum of the amount such agency would receive

under section 3(a) of this title;

- "(C) in the case of an agency in which less than 25 per centum of the children in average daily attendance are eligible under section 3(a) of this title, 90 per centum of the amount such agency would receive under section 3(a) of this title;
- "(D) 68 per centum of the amount such agency would receive under section 3(b) of this title, less any amount such agency would receive on account of children described in such section 3(b) residing with a parent employed on Federal property situated in a State other than the State in which the district of such agency is located; and
- "(E) 100 per centum of the amount such agency would receive under section 4 of this title.

"(2) Sums appropriated, for any fiscal year, to enable the Commissioner to make payments pursuant to this title shall, notwithstanding any other provision of law unless enacted in express limitation of this subsection, remain available for obligation and payments with respect to amounts due local educational agencies under this title for such fiscal year, until the end of the fiscal year succeeding the fiscal year for which such sums are appropriated."

Sec. 2. Section 305 of the Education Amendments of 1974 is repealed.

any amount such agency would receive on account of party amount such section 1(b) children described in such section 1(b) residing with a parent employed on Federal property situated in a State other than the State in which

the district of such agency is located; and

"(E) 100 per centus of the amount such agency sould receive under section 4 of this title

#### A BILL

To provide for the imposition of waterway user taxes and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and the House of

Representatives of the United States of America in Congress

assembled.

TITLE I--WATERWAY USER TAX ACT OF 1974
SECTION 101. SHORT TITLE, ETC.

- (a) Short Title. -- This title may be cited as the "Waterway User Tax Act of 1974".
- (b) Amendment of 1954 Code. -- Except as otherwise expressly provided, whenever in this title an amendment or repeal is expressed in terms of an amendment to, or repeal of, a section or other provision, the reference shall be considered to be made to a section or other provision of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954.

#### SEC. 102. WATERWAY USER TAX.

(a) Imposition of Tax. -- Chapter 36 (relating to certain other excise taxes) is amended by adding at the beginning thereof the following new subchapter:

"Subchapter A - Waterway User Tax

"Sec. 4451. Imposition of tax

"Sec. 4452. Definitions

"Sec. 4453. Exemptions

"Sec. 4454. Cross reference

#### "SEC. 4451. IMPOSITION OF TAX

"(a) In General. -- There is hereby imposed upon any person who transports property by vessel over segments of the inland waterways of the United States specified in or designated pursuant to subsection (c) a tax determined under subsection (b).

#### "(b) Amount of Tax. --

- "(1) Computation of Tax. -- The tax imposed by subsection (a) shall be an amount determined by multiplying --
  - "(A) the number of vessel ton-miles performed by a transporter of property within each waterway segment, by
  - "(B) the ton-mile unit rate for the waterway segment specified in or designated pursuant to subsection (c).
  - "(2) Ton-Mile Unit Rate. -- Except as provided in paragraph (4), the ton-mile unit rate for a calendar year (or, in the case of 1975, portion of a calendar

year) for each waterway segment shall be determined by dividing--

"(A) the projected total navigation-related costs of operation and maintenance with respect to such waterway segment to be incurred during such calendar year (or portion thereof) by "(B) the total vessel ton-miles projected to be performed within such waterway segment during such calendar year (or portion thereof).

The ton-mile unit rate for each calendar year (or portion thereof) shall be determined by the Secretary of the Army (after consultation with the Secretary of Transportation) and shall be certified to the Secretary of the Treasury. The Secretary of the Treasury shall publish in the Federal Register the rate certified for calendar year 1975 as soon as possible after the date of enactment of this section. Thereafter, the Secretary of the Treasury shall publish in the Federal Register the rate certified for a calendar year not later than December 1 of the preceding calendar year.

- "(3) Special Rules. --
- "(A) For purposes of paragraph (2) (A) of
  this subsection, the projected total navigation-related
  costs of operation and maintenance with respect
  to each waterway segment for a calendar year
  shall be based upon an average of such costs
  incurred in the period of five fiscal years (or
  such shorter period as a portion of a waterway
  segment has been opened to and operated for
  commercial traffic as a commercial waterway)
  ending on June 30 of the year immediately preceding
  such calendar year.
- "(B) In any case where a portion of a waterway segment has been opened to and operated for commercial traffic as a commercial waterway for less than five fiscal years ending on June 30 of the year immediately preceding the calendar year, the projected total navigation-related costs of operation and maintenance for such portion of a waterway segment shall be reduced, in determining the ton-mile unit rate for the segment under paragraph (2) of this subsection, by the

following percent of such total:

Fiscal Years of Operation As a Commercial Waterway

				Percent
		5 or	more	None
		4	·	20
		3		40
	•	2		60
		1	•	80
less	than	1		100

- "(4) Continuation of Rate. -- The ton-mile unit rate determined for a waterway segment with respect to a calendar year shall remain in force and effect until such time as a new rate is computed in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (2) and published by the Secretary of the Treasury in the Federal Register.
- "(c) Designation of Inland Waterway Segments. -For purposes of the tax imposed by this section
  the inland waterways described in this subsection
  are hereby designated waterway segments:

### SEGMENT

	FROM	TO
Allegheny River	East Brady, Pennsylvania	Confluence with the Monongahela River
Apalachicola- Chattahooche Rivers	Columbus, Georgia	Intersection with Gulf Intracoastal Waterway
Arkansas River	Catoosa, Oklahoma	Confluence with the Mississippi River
Atlantic Intra- coastal Waterway	Norfolk, Virginia	Miami, Florida
Columbia River	Point 10 miles Upstream of Pasco, Washington	The Dalles
Cumberland River	A point 8 miles upstream from Carthage, Tennessee	Confluence with the Ohio River
Green and Barren Rivers	Bowling Green, Kentucky	Confluence with the Ohio River
Gulf Intracoastal	Brownsville, Texas	Carrabelle, Florida
Illinois Calsag Waterway	Indiana Harbor	Confluence with the Mississippi River
Kanawha River	Deepwater, West Virginia	Confluence with the Ohio River
Kentucky River	Confluence of North and Middle Forks	Confluence with the Ohio River
Lower Mississippi River	Confluence of Ohio and Mississippi Rivers	Baton-Rouge, Louisiana
Missouri River	Sioux City, Iowa	Confluence with the Mississippi River

	-FROM	TO	
Mobile - Tombigbee- Warrior-Black Warrior Rivers	Head of Navigation on Mulberry and Locust Forks	Head of Mobile I	Bay at Chickasaw
Monongahela River	Fairmont, West Virginia	Confluence with	the Allegheny River
Ohio River	Confluence of the Allegheny and Monongahela Rivers	Confluence with	the Mississippi River
Ouachita-Black Rivers	Camden, Arkansas	Confluence with	the Mississippi River
Tennessee River	Confluence of Holston and French Broad Rivers	Confluence with	the Ohio River
Upper Mississippi River	Minneapolis, Minnesota	Confluence with	the Ohio River
Willamette River	Eugene, Oregon	Confluence with	the Columbia River

At any time after 24 months after the date of enactment of this, section, the President of the United States may, by regulation add to, delete from, alter, or modify the inland waterway segments designated in this subsection.

"(d) Liability for Tax. -- The transporter of property
by vessel over designated inland waterway segments shall be
liable for the tax imposed by subsection (a).

"SEC. 4452. DEFINITIONS.

- "(a) Vessel. --For purposes of this subchapter,
  the term "vessel" includes every description of watercraft
  or other artificial contrivance used, or capable of being
  used, for transporting property by water. Two or more
  watercraft or other artificial contrivances navigated as a
  unit shall be considered to be a single vessel.
- "(b) Ton-mile. --For purposes of this subchapter
  the term "ton-mile" means the movement one mile of one
  short ton of property.

"SEC. 4453. EXEMPTIONS.

"No tax shall be imposed under section 4451 in respect of:

- "(a) Any vessel operated by the United States
  Coast Guard; or
- "(b) Any vessel operated by the Secretary of the Army while engaged in the construction, operation, maintenance, or protection of the waterways of the United States.

"For penalties and other general and administrative provisions applicable to this subchapter, see subtitle F."

(b) Clerical Amendments, etc.--The table of sub-chapters for chapter 36 of subtitle D is amended by adding at the beginning thereof the following new subchapter:

"Subchapter A. Waterway User Tax".

SEC. 103. EFFECTIVE DATE.

The amendments made by this title shall take effect on April 1, 1975.

TITLE II -- CHARGE FOR USE OF LOCKS WITHIN THE
INLAND WATERWAYS

SEC. 201. IMPOSITION OF CHARGE.

The Secretary shall charge and collect a lockage fee of \$10.00 for each lockage occurring at any location within any waterway segment specified in or designated pursuant to section 4451 (c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (26 U.S.C. 4451).

SEC. 202. REGULATIONS.

The Secretary is empowered to make and amend such regulations as he considers necessary to carry out the provisions of, and to perform his powers and duties under, this title.

SEC. 203. EXPLANATION OF TERMS.

As used in this title --

(1) "Secretary" means the Secretary of the

Army. However, wherever in this title

a function, power, or duty of the Secretary

applies to any lock along the Tennessee River,

such function, power, or duty shall be deemed

to be that of the Tennessee Valley Authority.

- (2) "Lockage" means the passing of a vessel through a lock.
- of watercraft or other artificial contrivance
  used, or capable of being used, as a means
  of transportation by water. For purposes of
  this title, the term does not include any vessel
  operated (a) by the United States Coast Guard;
  (b) by the Secretary while engaged in the
  construction, operation, maintenance, or
  protection of the waterways of the United
  States; or (c) in the transportation of property
  by water, whether or not laden.

SEC. 204. AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS.

There are authorized to be appropriated such sums as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this title.

SEC. 205. REPEALS.

All other Acts or parts of Acts inconsistent with section 201 of this title are repealed.

SEC. 206. EFFECTIVE DATES.

Section 201 of this title shall take effect on April 1, 1975. Sections 202 through 205 of this title shall take effect upon the date of enactment of this title.

#### . A BILL

To provide for the imposition of an airport user tax; to amend the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970 to permit the financing of certain airport and airway system operating costs from the Airport and Airway Trust Fund, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and the House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled

#### TITLE I -- AIRPORT USER TAX

- Sec. 101. SHORT TITLE, ETC.
- (a) Short Title. This title may be cited as the "Airport User Tax Act of 1974."
- (b) Amendment of 1954 Code. Except as otherwise expressly provided, wherever in this title an amendment or repeal is expressed in terms of an amendment to, or repeal of, a section or other provision, the reference shall be considered to be made to a section or other provision of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954.
- Sec. 102. AIRPORT USER TAX. Chapter 33 (relating to excise taxes on facilities and services) is amended by adding at the beginning thereof the following new subchapter:

"Subchapter A - Airport User Tax

"Sec. 4231. Imposition of tax.

"Sec. 4232. Definitions.

"Sec. 4233. Exemption.

"Sec. 4231. Imposition of tax.

- "(a) In general. There is hereby imposed on each departure by an aircraft in noncommercial aviation from an airport at which there is in operation a Federal Aviation Administration control tower a tax of \$5. If there also is in operation at the airport Federal Aviation Administration radar facilities for providing terminal air traffic control, the tax shall be \$10 for each departure.
- "(b) By whom paid. The tax imposed by this subchapter shall be paid at the time of the departure by the person operating the aircraft.
- "(c) Termination. On and after July 1, 1980, the tax imposed by subsection (a) shall not apply.

"Sec. 4232. Definitions.

- "(a) Departure. For purposes of this subchapter, the term 'departure' means a takeoff from an airport from a full stop position.
- "(b) Noncommercial aviation. For purposes of this subchapter, the term 'noncommercial aviation' has the same meaning that term has in section 4041(c)(4).

"Sec. 4233. Exemption for military aircraft.

"The tax imposed by this subchapter shall not apply in the case of military aircraft within the meaning of 'vessels of war of the United States or any foreign nation' as defined in section 4221(d)(3)."

Sec. 103. REQUIREMENT TO COLLECT TAX. Section 4291 is amended to read as follows:

"Sec. 4291. Cases where persons operating airports or receiving payment for other facilities or services must collect tax.

"Every person operating an airport where tax is imposed by subchapter A shall collect the amount of the tax from the person operating the aircraft at the time of a departure; and, except as otherwise provided in section 4263(a), every person receiving any payment for facilities or services on which a tax is imposed by subchapters B or C shall collect the amount of the tax from the person making such payment."

Sec. 104. CONFORMING AMENDMENT. The table of subchapters for Chapter 33 is amended by adding at the beginning thereof the following new subchapter:

"Subchapter A - Airport User Tax."

Sec. 105. 'AIRPORT AND AIRWAY TRUST FUND.

(a) Transfer to Trust Fund. - Section 208(b) of the Airport and Airway Revenue Act of 1970 is amended by deleting from paragraph (1) thereof the words "sections 4261, 4271, and 4491 (taxes on transportation by air" and by inserting in their place "sections 4231, 4261, 4271, and 4491 (taxes on use of airports, on transportation by air,".

- (b) Management of Trust Fund. Section 208(e) of the Airport and Airway Revenue Act of 1970 is amended as follows:
  - (1) Paragraph (2) (A) is amended by deleting the period at the end of the first sentence and inserting in lieu thereof ", except that amounts appropriated to the Trust Fund under subsection (d) of this section may not be invested."
  - (2) Paragraph (3) is repealed.
- Sec. 106. EFFECTIVE DATE. The amendments made by this title shall take effect on April 1, 1975.

# TITLE II - USE OF AIRPORT AND AIRWAY TRUST FUND Sec. 201. The first sentence of section 14(d) of the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970, as amended (49 U.S.C. 1714(d)), is amended to read as follows:

"(d) Other Expenses. -- The balance of the moneys available in the trust fund may be allocated for necessary expenses incident to the administration of programs for which funds are to be allocated as set forth in subsections (a), (b), and (c) of this section, for the maintenance and operation of air navigation facilities and the conduct of other functions under section 307(b) of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958 not otherwise provided for in those subsections, and for research and development activities under section 312(c) (as it relates to safety in air navigation) of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958."

- Sec. 202. (a) Paragraph (1) of section 14(e) of the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970, as amended (49 U.S.C. 1714 (e) (1)), is repealed, and paragraphs (2) and (3) of section 14(e) are redesignated as paragraphs (1) and (2), respectively.
- (b) Paragraph (2) of section 14(e) of the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970 as redesignated herein is amended to read as follows:
- "(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, in any fiscal year, not more than 80 per centum of the total costs for which funds may be allocated from the trust fund under subsection 13 of this part and subsections (a), (b), (c), and (d) of this section may be financed from amounts transferred to the trust fund under section 208(b) of the Airport and Airway Revenue Act of 1970."

  Sec. 203. The amendments made by this title shall take effect on July 1, 1975.

#### A BILL

To amend title 38, United States Code, to increase the rates of vocational rehabilitation, educational assistance, and special training allowances paid to eligible veterans and other persons, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

That this Act may be cited as the "Veterans' Education and Rehabilitation Amendments Act of 1974".

SEC. 2. The table contained in section 1504(b) of title 38, United States Code, is amended to read as follows:

"Column I	Column II :	Column	Column IV	Column V
. Type of training	No de- pend- ents	One de- pend- ent	Two de- pend- ents	More than two dependents
				The amount in column IV, plus the following for each dependent in excess of two:
Institutional: Full-time	\$201	<b>\$</b> 249	\$293	321
Three-quarter- time	151 100	188 126	221 147	17 11
ing: Full-time	175	212	245	17".

- SEC. 3. Chapter 34 of title 38, United States Code, is amended as follows:
- (1) by striking out in the last sentence of section 1677(b) "\$220" and inserting in lieu thereof "\$260";
- (2) by amending the table contained in section 1682(a)(1) to read as follows:

11	Column I	Column II	Column III	Column IV	Column V
Тур	e of program	No de- pend- ents	One de- pend- ent	Two de- pend- ents	More than two dependents
					The amount in column IV, plus the following for each dependent in excess of two:
Inst	titutional: Full-time Three-	\$260	\$309 ·	\$352	\$ 21
Con	quarter- time Half-time pperative	195 130 209	232 155 246	265 176 279	17 11 17'';



(3) by striking out in section 1682(b) "\$220" and inserting in lieu thereof "\$260";

(4) by amending the table contained in section 1682(c)(2) to read as follows:

"Column I	Column II	Column III	Column IV	Column V
Basis	No de- pend- ents	One de- pend- ent	Two de- pend- ents	More than two dependents
Full-time Three-quarter- time Half-time	\$209 157 105	\$246 184 123	\$279 209 139	The amount in column IV, plus the following for each dependent in excess of two:  \$17  13  8";

and

- (5) by striking out in section 1696(b) "\$220" and inserting in lieu thereof "\$260".
- SEC 4. Chapter 35 of title 38, United States Code, is amended as follows:
  - (1) by amending section 1732(a)(1) to read as follows:
- "(a)(1) The educational assistance allowance on behalf of an eligible person who is pursuing a program of education

consisting of institutional courses shall be computed at the rate of (A) \$260 per month if pursued on a full-time basis, (B) \$195 per month if pursued on a three-quarter-time basis, and (C) \$130 per month if pursued on a half-time basis.";

- (2) by striking out in section 1732(a)(2) "\$220" and inserting in lieu thereof "\$260";
- (3) by striking out in section 1732(b) "\$177" and inserting in lieu thereof "\$209"; and
  - (4) by amending section 1742(a) to read as follows:
- "(a) While the eligible person is enrolled in and pursuing a full-time course of special restorative training, the parent or guardian shall be entitled to receive on his behalf a special training allowance computed at the basic rate of \$260 per month. If the charges for tuition and fees applicable to any such course are more than \$82 per calendar month, the basic monthly allowance may be increased by the amount that such charges exceed \$82 a month, upon election by the parent or guardian of the eligible person to have such person's period of entitlement reduced by one day for each \$8.66 that the special training allowance paid exceeds the basic monthly allowance.".

- SEC. 5. Chapter 36 of title 38, United States Code, is amended as follows:
- (1) by striking out in section 1786(a)(2) " $$2 \angle 0$ " and inserting in lieu thereof "\$260";
- (2) by amending the table contained in paragraph (1) of section 1787(b) to read as follows:

"Column I	Column II	Column III	Column IV	Column V
Periods of training	No de- pend- ents	One dc- pend- ent	Two de- pend- ents	More than two dependents
,	-			The amount in column IV, plus the following for each dependent in excess of two:
First 6 months Second 6 months Third 6 months Fourth and any	\$189 142 95	\$212 164 117	\$232 184 137	\$9 9 9
succeeding 6- month periods	47	70	90	9";

and

- (3) by amending section 1787(b)(2) to read as follows:
- "(2) The monthly training assistance allowance of an eligible person pursuing a program described under subsection (a)

shall be (A) \$189 during the first six-month period, (B) \$142 during the second six-month period, (C) \$95 during the third six-month period, and (D) \$47 during the fourth and any succeeding six-month period.".

- SEC. 6. Secion 1662 of title 38, United States Code, is amended as follows:
- (1) by striking out in subsection (a) "10" and inserting in lieu thereof "8";
- (2) by striking out in subsection (b) "10-year" and inserting in lieu thereof "8-year";
- (3) by striking out in subsection (c) "10-year" each time it appears and inserting in lieu thereof "2-year"; and
- (4) by striking out in subsection (d) "10-year" and inserting in lieu thereof "8-year".
- SEC. 7. Section 1712 of title 38, United States Code, is amended as follows:
- (1) by striking out in subsection (b) "10" and inserting in lieu thereof "8"; and
- (2) by striking out in subsection (f) "10" and inserting in lieu thereof "8".

- SEC. 8. Section 604(a) and (b) of Public Law 92-540 (82 Sta+. 1333, October 24, 1972) is amended by deleting "10" and inserting in lieu thereof "8".
  - SEC. 9. This Act shall be effective January 1, 1975.

SEC. 10. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 6 of this Act, any veteran who is otherwise entitled and whose eligibility would be terminated as the result of the enactment of such section and who is enrolled in and pursuing a program of education on the effective date of this Act, shall be permitted to continue such program of education to the termination of the unexpired quarter or semester in which he is enrolled where he is enrolled in an institution operated on a quarter or semester system, or to the end of the course or for twelve weeks, whichever is the lesser period, where he is enrolled in an institution which is not operated on a quarter or semester basis.

#### Part 3. Pending Appropriation Bills

Three appropriation bills--Labor-Health, Education, and Welfare, the First Supplemental for 1975, and Agriculture-Environmental and Consumer Protection--are nearing completion in the Congress. In order to restrain 1975 spending, the Congress is requested to revise its action on these bills as follows:

#### Labor-Health, Education, and Welfare Appropriations Act (H.R. 15580)

The Congress is requested to reconsider its actions on the Labor-HEW bill before this bill is enrolled and sent to the President for his action. In summary, the President is asking the Congress to reconsider many of his initial requests for the bill, is accepting some Congressional increases and all Congressional decreases to the bill, and is reducing several of his previous requests. The following table summarizes the action that the President is now requesting the Congress to take on the pending bill:

	dollars in millions) 1975		
	Budget Authority	Outlays	
Presidential requests considered			
by the Senate  Plus acceptable increases	33,531 +283	22,174 +181	
Minus Congressional reductions and reduced Presidential requests	-306	<u>-199</u>	
Total revised requests	33,508	22,156	
Effect on 1976	xxx	-100	

Unless a revised request is noted below, the requests made by the President in time for Senate consideration are renewed. The revised requests follow:

(dollars in thousands);
Appropriation
now requested

Center for Disease Control:
Preventive health services....

123,627

As indicated in Secretary Weinberger's July 25, 1974, letter to the Chairman of the Senate Appropriations Committee, the President accepts the \$2 million Congressional increase for the National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health to support 95 additional positions. The purpose of the additional positions is to expand the Institute's criteria development activities.

This increase can be more than offset by two proposed reductions for the Center for Disease Control: \$1.642 million for administrative overhead expenses and \$1.445 million for low priority research contracts, similar to what is being proposed for other health agencies. These economies will still enable the Center for Disease Control to perform fully its essential responsibilities.

National Institutes of Health.....

1,724,884

Accepted by the Administration is a \$2.7 million increase that will provide salaries for an additional 200 positions allocated to the National Institutes of Health in 1974.

Congress is requested, however, to reduce other appropriations by \$112 million. These reductions would result in a 25% lower level in new research grants and contracts and a 5% savings for continuation grants and contracts. Additional reductions would be taken against certain administrative expenses, travel, and the use of consultants. The additional cost of the physician's bonus pay would be absorbed within the amounts remaining.

The proposed savings can be accomplished without seriously altering the momentum in biomedical research achieved by sustained and substantial growth in the National Institutes of Health in recent years. The lower amounts for continuation grants can be accomplished without terminating any ongoing research. The savings from a lower level of grants and contracts will only result in the deferral of some lower priority research activities. The administrative and travel savings are in line with reductions suggested by the Senate Appropriations Committee.

(dollars in thousands)
Appropriation
now requested

Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and
Mental Health Administration.....

715,888

The Administration accepts the \$3.5 million increase for the restoration of 226 positions. It also accepts the \$2 million reduction in the Senate version of the Labor-HEW appropriation bill for management information and program direction activities.

The Administration recommends, however, that Congress decrease research and demonstration activities \$13 million below the previous request. Awards for new research and demonstration projects would be reduced by about 25%. Continuing support for existing research and demonstration projects would be reduced by about 5%.

The Administration is also proposing a related savings of \$7 million from the 1975 budget which reflects a lower level of general overhead, travel, information, consultants, grants and contracts to national organizations, and other administrative activities.

These savings can be accomplished with only a minimal impact on the Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Administration's program goals. The lower level of new and continuation awards for research and demonstration projects would not delay ongoing efforts to gain new knowledge. The demonstration of innovative or more effective service delivery approaches that appear to be the most promising would also continue because there would still be sufficient funds to support the new higher priority and necessary program efforts. Moreover, the 5% reduction in continuation support would not cause any project to terminate.

The overall savings in administrative overhead and travel would only be about 5% below the budget request and can be accomplished through the more frugal use of administrative support services and through the curtailment of low priority travel. Information activities, the number of consultants, and other related management activities would be held to an essential minimum and no loss in the ability to manage alcoholism, drug abuse, and mental health programs should result.

Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health....

73,637

The Administration accepts \$22.084 million of the \$29.084 million reduction contained in the Senate version of the Labor-HEW appropriation bill--\$20.900 million of which is for the Professional Standards Review Organizations program and \$1.184 million of which is for GSA rent and administrative expenses. The resulting funding level for the Professional Standards Review Organization program is \$37 million.



# (dollars in thousands) Appropriation now requested

National Institute of Education (NIE) ...... 70,000 The Administration accepts the conference reduction of \$60 million. Assistant Secretary for Education, Salaries and expenses..... 2,307 The Administration accepts the conference reduction of \$1.364 million. Administrative overhead in the Office of the Assistant Secretary will be reduced. Assistant Secretary for Education, Fund for improvement of postsecondary education...... 11,500 The Administration accepts the conference reduction of \$3.5 million. This level of funding will permit a moderate increase in activity above FY 1974. Social and Rehabilitation Service, Salaries and expenses..... 63,819 The revised estimate reflects the Administration's acceptance of the amount included in the conference report. Assistant Secretary for Human Development, Human development..... 160,378 The revised estimate reflects the Administration's acceptance of the reduction for salaries and expenses included in the conference report. Office of the Secretary, Office for Civil Rights..... 22,207 The amount appropriated by the Senate for this program is acceptable. Office of the Secretary, Departmental management..... 82,722 The revised estimate reflects the Administration's acceptance of

most of the reductions which the House and Senate have made.

# FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT FOR 1975 (H.R. 16900)

The Congress is requested to reconsider its actions on the First Supplemental bill before it is enrolled and sent to the President for his action. In summary, the President is asking the Congress to reconsider many of his initial requests for the bill, is accepting Congressional decreases to the bill, and is reducing several of his previous requests.

The President also requests deletion of those provisions added by the Congress which would require the use of funds or authority available under Section 202 of the Housing Act of 1959, Section 235 and 236 of the National Housing Act, and The United States Housing Act of 1937.

Further, the Congress is hereby requested to consider proposed fiscal year 1975 supplemental language for the Department of Transportation as follows:

#### Department of Transportation

#### Federal Aviation Administration

Section 313 of the Department of Transportation and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 1975 (88 Stat. 781) is repealed.

Section 313 of the Department of Transportation and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 1975 (Public Law 93-391) prohibits the Secretary from implementing through regulations a user fee program applicable to various Federal Aviation Administration functions unless the program is reviewed and approved by the appropriate committees of the Congress. It is the Administration's view that such a provision is an unconstitutional limitation on Executive establishment of such fees. However, we believe that it would eliminate potential legal uncertainties if the Congress would repeal Section 313. This supplemental would repeal that provision.

The Department plans to proceed expeditiously to establish by regulation a schedule of fees for the use of various safety-related services afforded to all segments of aviation. These charges would not duplicate user taxes imposed to offset costs of improving and operating the airport and airway system, but would be designed to offset expenses incurred by the Federal Aviation Administration in connection with certain regulatory

functions. The Department would continue to consult with the appropriate Congressional committees on such fees, following customary practice.

The following table summarizes the action that the President is now requesting the Congress to take on amounts in the pending bill:

(dollars in millions)

		1975
	Budget	Budget
	Authority	Outlays
Presidential requests considered by the Senate.	5,955	2,438
Acceptable Congressional reductions	-67	-38
Reduced Presidential requests	-29	<b>-23</b>
Revised request	5,858	2,377
Effect on 1976	xxx	-18

<sup>1/</sup> Includes \$1.8 million for Saint Elizabeth's Hospital and \$16 million for the Federal Energy Administration (S. Doc. 93-126).

Unless a revised request follows, the requests made by the President in time for Senate consideration are renewed. The revised requests follow:

(dollars in thousands)

Appropriation now requested

### Department of Health, Education, and Welfare

Health Resources Administration, Health resources.....

128,673

The President accepts Congressional decreases of \$8.6 million to the pending bill and proposes additional reductions. Together, these reductions would result in the following revised appropriation levels for three programs:

(dollars in thousands)

Health statistics	21,511
Health services research	35,905
National Health Service	•
Corps scholarships	12,500

These savings are in program areas that will not jeopardize essential ongoing activities of the Health Resources Administration. The decreased level for health statistics funding would still provide approximately \$2 million more than was appropriated in 1974 and would permit continued development of the cooperative health statistics system. The lower spending for health services research would permit meeting commitment costs on prior year grants and contracts, as well as initiating approximately \$10 million of new research awards.

The lower funding level for National Health Service Corps scholarships would concentrate scholarship assistance on medical students close to graduation and thus available for service in the near future. It still represents a four-fold increase over the 1974 funding level and will assist approximately 1,250 upper class medical students in meeting their educational costs. Assisting these students will do much to assure meeting the probable future physician manpower requirements of the Indian Health Service, the National Health Service Corps, and other direct care programs of the Public Health Service.

Health Services Administrati	ion.
Health services	1,722

The President accepts Congressional decreases of \$4 million to the pending appropriations as follows:

(dollars in thousands)

Health maintenance	
organizations (HMO)	500
Community and migrant	
health centers	1,222

The remaining level for HMO technical assistance contracts will still enable the HMO program to sufficiently supplement technical assistance provided by the HMO staff and through individual grantee funds. Similarly, the lower level of funding for technical assistance to Community and migrant health centers will still permit an adequate level of program activity.

Office of Education,
Elementary and secondary
education.....

2,106,000

The President accepts Congressional decreases of \$55 million to the pending appropriations and revises his request for the Title V program of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, strengthening State departments of education, to \$20 million.

This reduction will require State education departments to assume the support of both staff and planning activities that were previously provided through this program.

## AGRICULTURE-ENVIRONMENTAL AND CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT (H.R. 16901)

(dollars in millions)

	Budget authority	Outlays
As passed by the House	13,379	11,986
inspection (S. Doc. 93-128) Reductions now recommended below	+16	+16
the House bill	-205	-62
Total revised request	13,190	11,940
Effect on 1976	XXX	-138

To help restrain the 1975 budget, the Congress is requested to take further action to reduce the pending Agriculture-Environmental and Consumer Protection Act. Some of these further reductions are requested to offset the recent increase requested for screw-worm and brucellosis eradication and for grants to the States for meat and poultry inspection programs. The Congress is requested to make the following revised appropriations to several of the accounts included in the House-passed version of H.R. 16901:

(dollars in thousands)
Appropriation
now requested

#### Department of Agriculture

Agriculture conservation program.....

42,750

Reducing the program to this level for 1975 would discontinue the program, but sufficient funds would be left to cover long-term contracts entered into under the 1974 program. This is a reduction from the \$190 million recommended by the House.

(dollars in thousands)
Appropriation
now requested

#### Department of Agriculture (cont.):

Water bank program.....

0

This program would be discontinued by this action and by a rescission (proposed in Part 6) of carryover funds. The House recommended \$10 million for this program.

Forestry incentives program.....

0

This new program would be discontinued. The House recommended this program.

Extension Service: Payments for the nutrition and family education program for low-income areas......

47,360

This program would be held to the level proposed in the 1975 budget rather than the \$50,560,000 level passed by the House.

Rural development grants.....

10,000

This program would be held to the level proposed in the 1975 budget rather than the \$13,750,000 level passed by the House.

Rural community fire protection grants.

0

Initiation of this new program would be postponed indefinitely. The House recommended \$3,500,000 for these grants.

(dollars in thousands)
Appropriation
now requested

#### Environmental Protection Agency

Abatement and control......

266,801

The reduced appropriation would limit grants to State and local air and water pollution control agencies to the President's budget level of \$91.5 million. This is \$10 million below the level in the House bill and will result in a \$10 million reduction in 1975 outlays.

#### Consumer Product Safety Commission

Salaries and expenses.....

35,000

The Administration accepts the \$5 million reduction included in the House version of H.R. 16901. The Administration proposes a further decrease of \$2.5 million in budget authority. The new funding level of \$35 million still represents a 22% increase over the 1974 program level and allows for continued substantial growth in all of the Commission's program activities. The Commission will continue to be able to fulfill its statutory responsibilities to assure consumer product safety and discharge its essential program mission at this lower funding level.

#### Part 4. Amendments to 1975 Budget Requests

The Congress is hereby requested to consider amendments to the requests for appropriations transmitted in the budget for the fiscal year 1975 for the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare in the following amounts:

#### Department of Health, Education, and Welfare

Budget Appen- dix Page	Heading	Requested in Budget Appendix	Considered in H.R.15580 & H.R.16900	Proposed Amendment	Revised Request
	Health Services Adminis- tration				
387	Health services	923,405,0001/	499,135,000	-45,000,000	379,270,000

<sup>1/</sup> Includes \$27 million for emergency health services requested under the heading: "Health Resources Administration, Health resources".

The proposed budget amendment would result in an outlay savings of \$25 million in 1975 by reduced spending in the comprehensive health State formula grant program. These grants have traditionally been awarded to State health agencies to assist these agencies in the provision of adequate public health services. Many of the activities supported by this program, however, are already supported by other Federally-funded health programs.

This savings will result in a slight decrease (about 2%) in total Federal assistance funds available to State and local health agencies. The decrease is about .2% of total State and local spending for health and hospitals.

Budget Appen- dix Page	Heading	Requested in Budget Appendix	Considered in H.R. 16900	Proposed Amendment	Revised Request	
	Health Resources Adminis- tration					
413	Health resources	456,880,000	<u>-</u> /127,757,000	-9,900,000	319,223,000	

Excludes \$27 million for emergency health services requested under this heading.

The proposed budget amendment would restrain 1975 outlays by \$5 million and 1976 outlays by \$15 million. These savings are in program areas that will not jeopardize essential ongoing activities of the Health Resources Administration.

Funding for health manpower special projects would be reduced by \$7.1 million, lowering the total from \$125 million to \$118 million. These savings will be distributed in relatively small amounts among several activities. An ample number of new grant awards will be made in the higher priority areas, such as improving the geographic and specialty distribution of health professionals.

Program management funds for the Health Resources Administration would be reduced by \$2.8 million, which represents the agency's share of an overall restraint in the health agencies' general overhead expenses. These savings will result in less travel and fewer consultants, but are not expected to cause major disruption or inability to manage the programs for which the agency is responsible.

Budget Appen- dix Page	Heading	Requested in Budget Appendix	Proposed Amendment	1975 Revised Request
	Social and Rehabilitation Service			
447	Assistance to refugees in the United States	60,000,000	18,000,000	78,000,000

This request would provide for initiation of the orderly phase-out of this program, beginning January 1, 1975. In the budget submitted to the Congress on February 4, 1974, it was proposed to

phase-out this program starting July 1, 1974. The phase-out is currently being postponed because the program is being funded at the 1974 level under the provisions of the Continuing Resolution (P.L. 93-448, as amended). The 1974 appropriations level is more than double that requested for 1975. Assuming enactment of this revised request in the Foreign Assistance Appropriations Act for 1975, the planned phase-out of the Cuban Refugee program would be instituted for the second half of FY 1975, to proceed through FY 1978. Immigration from Cuba has virtually ceased for more than a year. This action would progressively transfer caseload to regular, national welfare programs.



#### Part 5. Executive Actions Under Current Law

Executive actions to be taken under current law in five agencies--Agriculture; Defense; Health, Education, and Welfare; Housing and Urban Development; and Transportation--and improved personnel management in all Executive Branch agencies will yield \$979 million in 1975 outlay savings and \$1,110 million in 1976 outlay savings. The cooperation of the committees of the Congress in approving several associated reprogramming actions is sought. A brief description of the actions to be taken follows:

(Dollars in millions)

Current 1975 Effect of Action
Outlay Estimate on Outlays
1975 1976

#### Department of Agriculture

Child nutrition program..

1,269

-10

-24

Federal enforcement of State program administration in the 300 largest school systems will be intensified. Careless administration and poor records have resulted in excessive claims for reimbursement of meals served. There will be minimal increase in Federal employment and administrative costs (\$3 million) in FY 1975.

Commodity Credit Corporation, special export credit sales........

700

-250

+80

The effect of this action will be to hold the level of special export credit sales of farm products to \$450 million. Commitments to extend credit have reached \$432 million so far this fiscal year. With crops short and demand high, a credit inducement to increase exports of farm products is unnecessary.

Food stamp program.....

3,998

-325

-650

The purchase price of food stamps will be raised to 30 percent of monthly household income, the maximum permitted by law, effective March 1, 1975. This action will result in an increase in what an eligible household has to pay for food stamps and a comparable decrease in benefits. Those entitled to free food stamps will not be affected by this action.

Current 1975 Outlay Estimate

Effect on Action on Outlays
1975 1976

#### Department of Defense

Rephase payment of lump sum reenlist-ment bonuses.....

-0-

-58

-1

Reenlistment bonuses have been paid largely as a lump sum upon reenlistment. New procedures will make these payments annually over the entire reenlistment period. Savings from these new procedures will be made available to offset requirements for higher pay costs arising from pay raises effective October 1, 1974.

#### Department of Health, Education, and Welfare

Medicare....

13,822

-48

-193

A number of reforms to improve Medicare program administration will be undertaken. Implementation of cost control regulations will be accelerated. A tighter definition of reasonable hospital costs will be established to limit reimbursement for exceptionally high cost providers. The extra Medicare payment for routine hospital nursing services will be terminated. Non-interest-bearing intermediary bank balances will be reduced.

Medicaid.....

6,752

-35

-20

The implementation of utilization review regulations will be accelerated. States will be encouraged to collect from private insurance for dual coverage. The lower definition of reasonable hospital costs proposed herein for Medicare will be reflected in Medicaid reimbursements. Special review of high volume providers will be initiated.

	Current 1975 Outlay Estimate	Effect on on Out:	
Public assistance regulations	5,101	-100	-172

Public assistance regulations will be amended to (1) tighten definition of incapacity and put it more in line with Supplementary Security Income criteria; (2) require quarterly redetermination of income of Aid to Families with Dependent Children recipients, with monthly reporting by recipients, and lengthen the accounting period from one to three months of determination of eligibility on the basis of income; and (3) limit training under the State and local training program and insure it is not a substitute for regular personnel costs. These actions would improve administration and tend to reduce errors and fraud.

#### Department of Housing and Urban Development

Government National
Mortgage Association,
Special Assistance
Functions Fund...... 650 -75 -80

The interest rate on the mortgages to be purchased under the Tandem Plan announced in May will be increased from 8% to 8-1/2%. This is consistent with the rate on mortgages to be purchased under the Tandem Plan for conventional mortgages authorized by the Emergency Home Purchase Assistance Act of 1974. The higher interest rate will not prevent the program from achieving its goal of increasing the supply of mortgage credit.

#### Department of Transportation

U.S. Coast Guard..... 931 -28 -0-

Due to extraordinary price increases for the fuel, maintenace, and supplies necessary for Coast Guard operational missions (e.g., search and rescue and maintenance of aid to navigation), maintaining the same level of effectiveness as 1974 is requiring \$52M in additional funds. This \$52 million, already in the current budget plan, will be reduced by \$28 million: \$15.5 million will be absorbed by decreases in support missions, deferral of commissioning two icebreakers, advancing planned decommissioning of two icebreakers and one buoy tender, deferral

Current 1975 Outlay Estimate

Effect on Action on Outlays 1975 1976

#### Department of Transportation, U.S. Coast Guard (continued)

of selected program expansion scheduled for 1975 and suspension of escort and some pollution sensor flights. The remaining \$12.5 million will be transferred from a combination of the acquisition, construction and improvements, and research and development appropriations through rescheduling of lower priority projects.

Urban Mass Transit
Program.....

850

-50

-50

Currently pending before the Congress is legislation to establish a long-term, comprehensive public transportation assistance program (S. 386, the National Mass Transportation Act). This legislation, which the Administration believes should be enacted before the end of the 93rd Congress, would establish a new formula program which permits State and local officials to use, at their option, Federal public transportation assistance funds for transit capital or operating purposes.

With FY 1975 obligations for this new formula estimated at \$300 million, it is anticipated that enactment of this new legislation will increase FY 1975 Federal outlays by approximately \$200 million. This additional increment was included in the June 1974 outlay estimate submitted to the Congress.

In view of the need to restrain all Federal outlays to a non-inflationary minimum, this new formula program will be financed by redirecting approximately \$300 million of existing FY 1975 obligational authority in the urban mass transit program. This step, coupled with a more gradual phase-in of the new provision, will result in a savings of \$50 million from prior estimates. To realize the savings, the Congressional appropriations committees are requested to interpose no objection to the proposed \$300 million reprogramming.

Current 1975
Receipts Estimate

on Receipts
1975
1976

#### All Executive Branch Agencies

Improved personnel management.....

Agencies will be directed to: reorganize work, as vacancies occur, so that fewer and lower graded positions are needed; eliminate unnecessary organizational layers; use more parttime rather than full-time employees to handle peak workloads; reduce costly overtime by finding new ways to accomplish essential work; and use internal evaluation systems to help bring about reduced personnel costs. Comparable measures will be applied to military personnel.

\*While the specific effect on outlays cannot be identified at this time, savings generated are expected to be used to help offset the October 1974 pay increase costs.

#### Part 6. Proposed Rescissions

A total of 39 new rescissions are proposed: 37 totalling nearly \$862 million in budget authority are transmitted under the provisions of Title X of the Impoundment Control Act of 1974, (P.L. 93-344). Two rescissions totalling \$2.1 million in budget authority are proposed under provisions of the Antideficiency Act (31 U.S.C. 3679) and reported to the Congress under the provisions of Title X.

An agency summary of the outlay reductions that would result from Congressional approval of the proposed rescissions follows:

EFFECT OF RESCISSION ACTIONS ON OUTLAYS (outlay reductions in millions of dollars)

	<u>1975</u>	$\frac{1976}{}$
Agriculture	- 13	- 6
Commerce	- 6	- 4
Defense	- 136	- 169
Health, Education, and Welfare	- 15	- 35
Justice	- 16	-
State	- 2	
Treasury	- 24	
General Services Administration	- 10	- 10
Special Action Office for Drug Abuse		
Programs	- 2	- 3
Total	- 224	- 227

The outlay reductions for each item are identified in the reports in this part.

As noted in the individual reports, the withholdings associated with new rescissions proposed will generally be delayed until December 16, 1974.

The reports transmitted herein are not the only rescissions proposed to the Congress in this fiscal year that are needed to restrain the 1975 budget. Special messages of the President of September 20 and October 4, as amended by the supplementary reports of November 13, proposed seven rescissions totalling \$672 million in budget authority. Prompt approval of these rescissions is also requested to reduce Federal spending by nearly \$160 M in 1975 and \$250 M in 1976.



## SUMMARY OF PROPOSED RESCISSIONS

#### (dollars in thousands)

Resci- sion #	Item	Budget Authority
	Rescissions:	
	A mari mul tarana	
	Agriculture: Agricultural Stabilization and	
	Conservation Service:	
R75-8	Water Bank Act Program-1974	11,213
	Forest Service:	
	Forest Protection and Utilization:	4 001
R75 <b>-9</b>	Cooperation in Forest Fire Control	4,921
	Reforestation and Stand	10,000
R75-10	Improvement	10,000
	Social and Economic Statistics	
	Administration:	
R75-11	Salaries and Expenses	373
200	Economic Development Administration:	
	Economic Development Assistance	2 000
R75-12	Programs	2,000
	Domestic and International Business Administration:	" · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Financial and Technical	
R75-13	Assistance	12,000
10,5 15	United States Travel Service:	•
n75-14	Salaries and Expenses	250
	National Oceanic and Atmospheric	
	Administration:	
	Operations, Research and	
R75-15	Facilities	500
	Patent Office:	
R75-16	Salaries and Expenses	700
	Defense, Military:	
D75 17	Operation and Maintenance	41,000
R75-17 R75-18	Army Navy	27,500
R75-19	Marine Corps	5,000
R75-20	Air Force	40,000
R75-21	Defense Agencies	1,900
R75-22	Army Reserve	1,800
R75-23	Navy Reserve	1,100
R75-24	Air Force Reserve	400
R75-25	Army National Guard	1,400
R75-26	Air National Guard	500
D75 27	Aircraft Procurement:	13,500
R75-27 R75-28	ArmyAir Force	248,000
K/J-20	177T TOTOC: 111111111111111111111111111111111111	2.0,000

Resci- sion #	Item	Budget Authority
	Rescissions: (continued)	
	Health, Education, and Welfare:	
	Health Resources Administra-	
R75-29	tion: Health Services Planning and Development	372,466
11,3 23	Justice:	372,100
	Federal Bureau of Investigation:	
R75-30	Salaries and Expenses Immigration and Naturalization	5,300
	Service:	
R75-31	Salaries and Expenses Bureau of Prisons:	1,300
R75-32	Salaries and Expenses	5,250
R75-33	Buildings and Facilities  Drug Enforcement Administration:	1,750
R75-34	Salaries and Expenses	2,400
	State:	
	International Organizations and Conferences:	
	Contributions to International	
R75-35	Organizations	2,000
R75-36	International Trade Negotiations	100
	Treasury:	
	Office of the Secretary:	
R75-37	Salaries and Expenses	310
	Federal Law Enforcement Training Centers:	
	Salaries and Expenses	60
R75-38	Bureau of Accounts:	00
R75-39	Salaries and Expenses	630
K/3-39	U.S. Customs Service:	
R75-40	Salaries and Expenses	3,000
	Internal Revenue Service:	75.20
R75-41	Salaries and Expenses	530
R75-42	Accounts, Collection and Taxpayer Service	9,230
R75-43	Compliance	10,240
	General Services Administration	20,210
	Public Buildings Service:	
R75-44	Federal Buildings Fund	20,023
	Special Action Office for Drug	
<b>55.</b>	Abuse Programs:	
R75-45	Pharmacological research	2,760
R75-46	Special fund for drug abuse	2,240
	Total rescissions	863,646

## PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

New budget authority	\$
(P.L.	Province and Apply and App
Other budgetary resources	17,543,635
Total Budgetary Resources	17,543,635
Amount proposed for	
rescission	11,212,940
	(P.L. ) Other budgetary resources Total Budgetary Resources

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Under the Water Bank Program, authorized by the Water Bank Act (P.L. 91-559), the Federal Government shares with farmers and landowners the cost of keeping certain wetlands out of production for the purpose of improving habitats (nesting and feeding areas) for migratory waterfowl and other wildlife. The Act provides that participants in the program enter into its long-term (10 year) agreements with the Secretary of Agriculture not to drain or otherwise alter the condition of these wetlands which have been designated as wildlife nesting and feeding areas. Under the Act, funds appropriated remain available until expended.

This program duplicates to a large degree an Interior Department program (Migratory Bird Conservation Fund).

#### Estimated Effect

This program provides little conservation benefits to the Nation and can therefore be eliminated with little consequence. Outlay reductions would be \$1M in FY 1975 and \$4M in FY 1976.

The funds remaining are needed to fund commitments under the 1974 program.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	3,8
Without rescission (current estimate) With rescission (revised estimate)	2.8 1.8 -4.0)
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-4.0)

# DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation Service Water Bank Program

Appropriations provided in the Agriculture-Environmental and Consumer Protection Act of 1974 to carry into effect the provisions of the Water Bank Act (16 U.S.C. 1301-1311), are rescinded in the amount of \$11,212,940.

## PROFOCED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Department of Agriculture	New budget authority	\$ 25,088,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-404) Other budgetary resources	Total Blad
Forest Service Appropriation little & Symbol	other budgetary resources	The British of the second section of the se
Forest Protection and Utilization: 1251100 (State and Private	Total Budgetary Resources	25,088,000
Forestry Cooperation: Cooperation in Forest Fire Control)	Amount proposed for rescission	4,921,000

#### Justification

Rescission of \$4,921,000 of the annual appropriation for cooperation in forest fire control is one of the special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. This program provides technical support and financial assistance to the States as an incentive to the States in their efforts to protect non-Federal land from fire. \$20,167,000 has been made available for assistance to States for FY 1975. Protection of these lands is primarily a State and local responsibility. In FY 1973, the latest year for which complete data is available, \$20 million of Federal funds was made available to the States. State and local governments provided more than \$116 million. In addition, although no precise statistics exist, it is believed that private landowners expend annually amounts considerably in excess of all governmental expenditures for these purposes.

#### Estimated Effects

The estimated effect of the proposed rescission on forest fire control on State and private lands is negligible for two reasons. First, the amount of the rescission is estimated to be only about 1 to 2 percent of the total expenditures for this purpose. Secondly, it is reasonable to expect that highest priority activities will be accomplished within the funds available. Therefore, the funds proposed for rescission would affect the lowest priority activities.

The proposed rescission will bring the cooperative Forest Fire Control Program to the same level as FY 1974 and will result in outlay savings of \$3.5 million in FY 1975 and \$1.4 million in FY 1976. Direct Federal employment would be reduced by an estimated 5 man-years. Other employment would also be expected to be less than if the \$4,921,000 were allocated to the States.

Total 1975 Outlays	<u>Dollars in Millions</u>
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	20.3
Without rescission (current estimate)	23.8
With rescission (revised estimate)	20.3
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-1.4)

# DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Forest Service

#### Forest Protection and Utilization

Appropriations for the fiscal year 1975 for "Forest Protection and Utilization" for "State and Private Forestry Cooperation" are rescinded in the amount of \$4,921,000.

Agency Department of Agriculture	New budget authority	\$ 50,079,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-404</u> )	
Forest Service	Other budgetary resources	
Appropriation Title & Symbol Forest Protection and Utilization: 1251100 (Forest Land Management:	Total Budgetary Resources	50,079,000
Reforestation and Stand Improve- ment)	Amount proposed for rescission	10,000,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions preposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Rescission of \$10,000,000 of the annual appropriation for reforestation and stand improvement is proposed as part of the overall program of budgetary restraint. The program would then be \$40,079,000, which is \$6,748,000 more than the FY 1974 program. In addition, trust funds totaling \$44,440,000 will be used for similar purposes on areas affected by timber sales. Reduction in the level of investments is possible without severe impacts on the on-going program.

#### Estimated Effects

It is estimated that the funds proposed for rescission would be sufficient to reforest about 22,000 acres and to accomplish stand improvement on about 108,000 acres. Annual growth would be reduced by about 40 million board feet. Direct Federal employment would be reduced by about 200 man-years. Non-Federal employment would also be reduced by about 200 man-years. Outlays would be reduced by \$9M in FY 1975 and \$1M in FY 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal	35.3
Without rescission (current estimate)	49.3
With rescission (revised estimate)	<u>40.3</u>
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-1.0)

#### DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Forest Service

#### Forest Protection and Utilization

Appropriations for the fiscal year 1975 for "Forest Protection and Utilization" for "Forest Land Management" are rescinded in the amount of \$10,000,000.



Rescission Proposal No.: R75-11

## PROPOSED RECISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433 )	\$ 47,977,000
Bureau Social and Economic Statistics		
Administration	Other budgetary resources	• • •
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total budgetary resources	\$ 47,977,000
Salaries and Expenses		
1350401		
	Amount proposed for rescission	\$ 373,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The programs of the Social and Economic Statistics Administration (SESA) provide for the collection, compiling, and publishing of a broad range of demographic, economic, and social statistics. In the current economic analysis programs, data is prepared and analyzed on the import and export of all types of merchandise and their method of transportation.

It is proposed to defer \$373,000 for the reconciliation of discrepancies in bilaterial merchandise trade balance figures as reported by the U.S. and Japan. Initial exploratory discussions were to be held with both Japan and West Germany in FY 1975 to develop implementation plans. An agreement to proceed with a joint undertaking has been reached with West Germany. The efforts with Japan will be deferred until FY 1976.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS: .

The remaining funds will still permit the completion of the U.S.-Canada reconciliation now underway.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	49.5 47.7
With rescission (revised estimate)	<u>47.3</u> 0)

#### DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

### Social and Economic Statistics Administration

#### Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Commerce

Appropriation Act, 1975 are rescinded in the amount of \$373,000.

Rescission Proposal No.: R75-12

### PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433 )	\$ 184,200,000
Bureau		
Economic Development Administration		
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Other budgetary resources	\$
Economic Development Assistance Programs	Total budgetary resources	\$ 184,200,000
1352050		
	Amount proposed for rescission	\$ 2,000,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The EDA appropriation provides funds for the full range of programs including public works, business development, planning, technical assistance and research. The total amount currently appropriated for all EDA programs in fiscal 1975 is \$184,200,000.

It is proposed to rescind \$2,000,000 of the \$9,281,000 allocated to technical assistance. EDA's technical assistance program finances projects related to particular economic adjustment problems of distressed areas. The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

The rescission will reduce the amount of funding available for new technical assistance efforts in 1975, but it is not expected to seriously delay economic adjustment activities being funded by the EDA.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	268
Without rescission (current estimate)	275
With rescission (revised estimate)	<u>274</u>
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	<del>-1</del> )

#### DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Economic Development Administration

Economic Development Assistance Programs

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Commerce

Appropriation Act, 1975 are rescinded in the amount of \$2,000,000.

Rescission Proposal No: R75-13

#### PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY

#### Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority \$
Bureau Domestic and International Business Administration	Total Budgetary Resources 19,821,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Financial and Technical Assistance 13x1210	Amount proposed for rescission 12,000,000

#### Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The Financial and Technical Assistance program was authorized by the Trade Expansion Act of 1962. The program provides financial and/or technical assistance to firms who are injured or threatened by increased imports, when the increase is due to a trade agreement entered into by the United States. Firms, which have been certified eligible by the Tariff Commission and the Department, may receive this financial assistance in the form of a direct loan, a loan guarantee and/or technical assistance. These funds are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

To date, 34 firms have received approval of eligibility to apply for assistance. Of the 34 firms, 18 adjustment proposals have been approved, 1 is pending, and 15 have not yet been received. The proposed Trade Reform Act of 1974 establishes new criteria for financial and technical assistance. When the Act is passed, significant changes to the present program are anticipated. This proposed rescission will terminate funding for the existing program, when the remaining funds are used.

#### Estimated Effects:

Rescission of the \$12,000,000 will leave an available balance of approximately \$7,821,000. This balance will be sufficient to honor pending proposals from firms which have received approval of eligibility where preproposal technical assistance has been committed, or where a firm is well along in its proposal development. It is expected that the Trade Reform bill will be enacted, and that the new adjustment assistance program under that Act will assist firms in adjusting to imports in the future.

#### 

#### DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

#### Trade Adjustment Assistance

#### Financial and Technical Assistance

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Commerce

Appropriation Act, 1972 are rescinded in the amount of \$12,000,000.

Agency Department of Commerce	New budgetary authority (P.L. 93-433 )	\$ 11,250,000
Bureau		
United States Travel Service		
Appropriate Title & Symbol	Other budgetary resources	\$
Salaries and Expenses	Total budgetary resources	\$ 11,250,000
1350700	-	
	•	,
	Amount proposed for rescission	\$ 250,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Funds have been appropriated for the 1975 programs to encourage foreign travel to the U.S. with emphasis concentrated on travel from 6 major tourism markets. It is proposed that USTS will reduce its consumer advertising, brochures and display programs, and research programs by \$250,000 in FY 1975. The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

Consumer Advertising: The \$100,000 reduction will decrease the frequency of print inserts in advertising campaigns by approximately 20% in U.K. and 7% in Germany.

Brochures and Displays: \$80,000 proposed reduction will cause a deferral in the production of 4,700 cube displays and 450,000 VISIT USA maps.

Research and Analysis: \$70,000 proposed reduction in Research and Analysis will defer the following projects for FY 1975: Canadian/Mexican Exits Survey; follow up to 1974 German Market Study; evaluation of Public Information activities.

-2-	
Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	10.8 10.7 <u>10.4</u> 0)

# DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE United States Travel Service Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Commerce

Appropriation Act, 1975 are rescinded in the amount of \$250,000.

R75-15

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433 )	\$	440,930,000
Bureau National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration	Other budgetary resources	\$	4,175,851
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	\$	445,105,851
Operations, Research and	DEFARCHER OF COMMERCE	* 1	
Facilities 13X1450	Amount proposed for rescission	\$	500,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The Interstate Marine Fisheries Commissions encourage cooperative interaction between state and industry fishery interests through meetings on fisheries problems and management programs.

The Congress appropriated \$500,000 in FY 1975 for the Atlantic, Gulf and Pacific Commissions to be used for data gathering leading to the development of a national fisheries policy. It is proposed that these funds be rescinded. NOAA is currently in the advanced stages of developing a national fisheries plan. Since the plan is due to be completed in 1975, the input that would be provided by this research would not be available in time for inclusion in the plan. The funds proposed for rescission are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

NOAA has a direct program of fisheries research which contributes a broad range of scientific knowledge on fisheries problems. This, along with public comment and input from private research groups, should provide adequate information for development of the national plan.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	0
Without rescission (current estimate)	.5
With rescission (revised estimate)	<u>0</u>
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	0)

#### DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
Operations, Research, and Facilities

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Commerce Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$500,000: Provided, That no part of the remaining sums shall be subject to the second proviso of said appropriation.

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433)	\$	76,300,000
Bureau Patent Office	Other budgetary resources	\$	
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	\$	76,300,000
Salaries and Expenses		٠	
	Amount proposed for rescission	\$	700,000
13X51006		•	"i v

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated. Funds are appropriated to the Patent Office in FY 1975 in order to examine patent and trademark applications, print patents and trademarks, and for related activities. It is proposed to defer the examination of 2,160 patents in 1975 at a savings of \$625,000. Additional miscellaneous economies in patent classification, trademark examination, and customer services will allow the savings of an additional \$75,000. The total amount of \$700,000 is proposed for rescission in 1975. The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

At the current patent examiner productivity and the current rate of receipt of applications, rescission of funding for patent examination will have no impact on the achievement of the Patent Office's longstanding goal of reducing processing time of a patent application to 18 months by 1977. Disposal of patent applications has exceeded receipt of new applications by over 10,000 cases annually in 1973 and 1974. Productivity of the patent examining corps increased to an all time high in 1974, 116,003 application disposals. If apportioned, these funds would of necessity be used for additional examiner overtime. Miscellaneous economies in patent classification, trademark examination and customer services will result in a savings of \$75,000. Rescinding this amount will have no serious impact on these programs in 1975.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal). Without rescission (current estimate). With rescission (revised estimate). (Effect of action on 1976 outlays.	76.1 75.4 74.7

#### DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

#### Patent Office

#### Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Commerce

Appropriation Act, 1975 are rescinded in the amount of \$700,000.

R75-17

## PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Defense	New hudget such and to	A: 6 177 E72 000
Department of Defense Bureau	New budget authority	\$ 6,137,532,000
buteau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> ) Other budgetary resources	922,997,294
Appropriation Title & Symbol Operation and Maintenance, Army 2152020	Total Budgetary Resources	7,060,529,294
	Amount proposed for rescission	41,000,000
		The second secon

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of about ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$41 million and result in outlay reductions of \$34.6 million in 1975 and \$5.5 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions	
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$6,701.0	
Without rescission (current estimate)	6,395.4	
With rescission (revised estimate)	6,360.8	
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-5.5)	

Operation and Maintenance
Operation and Maintenance, Army

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$41,000,000,

to be derived from the sum provided for the maintenance of real

property facilities.

			~~~ 10
Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-18
	r		

Agency Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ 7.151.175.000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> ) Other budgetary resources	190,000,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Operation and Maintenance, Navy 1751804	Total Budgetary Resources	7.341.175.000
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Amount proposed for rescission	27,500,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of about ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$27.5 million and result in outlay reductions of \$20.6 million in 1975 and \$6.1 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$6,763.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	6,876.0
With rescission (revised estimate)	6,855.4
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-6.1)

## Operation and Maintenance Operation and Maintenance, Navy

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$27,500,000,

to be derived from the sum provided for the maintenance of real

property facilities.



Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-19
------------	----------	------	--------

Agency Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ 449,284,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> ) Other budgetary resources	3,828,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
Operation and Maintenance,	Total Budgetary Resources	453,112,000
Marine Corps 1751106	Amount proposed for	
1.	rescission	5,000,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$5 million and result in outlay reductions of \$4 million in 1975 and \$.9 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$437.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	462.1
With rescission (revised estimate)	458.1
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	9)

## Operation and Maintenance Operation and Maintenance, Marine Corps

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$5,000,000,

to be derived from the sum provided for the maintenance of real

property facilities.

Rescission	Proposal	No.:
------------	----------	------

R75-20

### PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency		
Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ 7,062,030,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> )	
	Other budgetary resources	987,147,974
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
Operation and Maintenance,	Total Budgetary Resources	8,049,177,974
Air Force 5753400	Amount proposed for	No. 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1,
	rescission	40,000,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of about ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$40 million and result in outlay reductions of \$34.8 million in 1975 and \$4.9 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$7,146.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	7,122.3
With rescission (revised estimate)	7,087.5
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-4.9)

## Operation and Maintenance Operation and Maintenance, Air Force

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$40,000,000,

to be derived from the sum provided for the maintenance of real

property facilities.

Rescission Pr	oposal No.:	R75-21
---------------	-------------	--------

Agency		
Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ _2,350,159,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> )	
	Other budgetary resources	172.658.822
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
	Total Budgetary Resources	2.522.817.822
Operation and Maintenance,		,
Defense Agencies 9750100	Amount proposed for	
	rescission	1,900,000
	•	

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$1.9 million and result in outlay reductions of \$1.7 million in 1975 and \$.2 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$1,827.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	2,314.2
With rescission (revised estimate)	2,312.5
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	2)



Deferral No.:

D75-130

## DEFERRAL OF SUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency	Nova hardest sutherstan	٠	227 500 000
Small Business Administration Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433)	Þ.	327,500,000
	Other budgetary resources		78,696,721
Appropriation Title & Symbol	<u> </u>		
	Total Budgetary Resources		406,196,721
Business Loan & Investment Fund	Assessed Assessed		
73X4154	Amount to be deferred part of year		
.	Amount to be deferred for entire year		36,000,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The SBA's Business Loan and Investment Fund is used to provide direct loans to small businesses, and to meet Government obligations arising from the SBA guarantee of loans by private financial institutions to small businesses. Outlays for direct loans occur when SBA provides direct loan funding, so these outlays are controllable by the agency. Outlays to meet commitments of SBA guarantees result from the failure of loan recipients to meet the requirements of the loan agreement, which results in a demand upon SBA to honor its guarantee.

It is proposed to defer the use of \$36 million in budget authority which otherwise would be available for direct loans in 1975. A total of \$199 million would remain available in 1975 for direct loans, and available funds will permit SBA to guarantee up to \$2,094.5 million in loans made to small businesses. These funds are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

#### Estimated Effects

The deferral will result in about 518 fewer loans to small businesses in 1975, or about 2.1% less than would be possible without the deferral. This action would affect less than 0.01% of the small businesses in the country. The reduction will be made in those program areas where there is the best chance that the small businesses will be able to obtain financing from other sources. Even after this reduction, SBA expects to provide direct loans or guarantee loans for over 23,700 small businesses in 1975.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$471
Without deferral (Current estimate)	420
With deferral (revised estimate)	398
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	

## Operation and Maintenance Operation and Maintenance, Defense Agencies

Appropriations provided only for the maintenance of real property facilities under this head in the Department of Defense Appropriation Act, 1975, in the amount of \$100,000 for the Defense Mapping Agency, in the amount of \$1,000,000 for the Defense Supply Agency, and in the amount of \$800,000 for Intelligence and Communications activities; in all: \$1,900,000, are rescinded.



Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-22

Agency		
Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$276.600.000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> )	
	Other budgetary resources	200,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
•	Total Budgetary Resources	276,800,000
Operation and Maintenance,		
Army Reserve 2152080	Amount proposed for	
	rescission	1,800,000
	,	

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$1.8 million and result in outlay reductions of \$1.6 million in 1975 and \$.2 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$277.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	293.0
With rescission (revised estimate)	291.4
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	2)

## Operation and Maintenance Operation and Maintenance, Army Reserve

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$1,800,000,

to be derived from the sum provided for the maintenance of real property
facilities.

Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-23

Agency		
Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ 245,200,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> )	
	Other budgetary resources	1,600,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
Operation and Maintenance, Navy Reserve 1751806	Total Budgetary Resources	246,800,000
(wy nobolite liveling	Amount proposed for	
	rescission	1,100,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$1.1 million and result in outlay reductions of \$.8 million in 1975 and \$.2 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$228.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	245.6
With rescission (revised estimate)	244.8
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	2)

## Operation and Maintenance Operation and Maintenance, Navy Reserve

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$1,100,000,

to be derived from the sum provided for maintenance of real property
facilities.

wescreator troposat wo: w/J-z4	Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-24
--------------------------------	------------	----------	------	--------

Agency Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ 286,680,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> ) Other budgetary resources	3,114,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	289,794,000
Operation and Maintenance, Air Force Reserve 5753740	Amount proposed for rescission	400,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a recission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$.4 million and result in outlay reductions of the same amount in 1975.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions		
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$274.0		
Without rescission (current estimate)	289.6		
With rescission (revised estimate)	289.2		
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-0-)		

## Operation and Maintenance Operation and Maintenance, Air Force Reserve

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$400,000, to

be derived from the sum provided for maintenance of real property

facilities.

Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-25
------------	----------	------	--------

	<b>A</b>	
Agency Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ _589,500,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> )	
	Other budgetary resources	
Appropriation Title & Symbol	·	
	Total Budgetary Resources	589,500,000
Operation and Maintenance,		
Army National Guard 2152065	Amount proposed for	
	rescission	1,400,000
		·

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$1.4 million and result in outlay reductions of \$1.3 million in 1975 and \$.1 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$601.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	613.9
With rescission (revised estimate)	612.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	1)

Operation and Maintenance
Operation and Maintenance, Army National Guard

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$1,400,000,

to be derived from the sum provided for the maintenance of real property
facilities.

Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-26
	-		

Agency Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ _642,500,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> ) Other budgetary resources	10.510.000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Operation and Maintenance,	Total Budgetary Resources	653,010,000
Air National Guard 5753840	Amount proposed for rescission	500,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Real property maintenance levels can be varied from year to year. A one-time reduction of ten percent in this annual account is proposed. This would result in a twenty percent reduction over the last half of fiscal 1975. If this reduced level of maintenance were continued over a period of time, it could become serious; however, a one-time reduction would have minimal adverse impact.

The appropriation language specifies that funds appropriated for real property maintenance may be used only for that purpose. Thus, savings in this area of activity may not be reprogrammed for increased pay costs, and a rescission is necessary to achieve this savings.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$.5 million and result in outlay reductions of \$.4 million in 1975 and \$.1 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions		
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$592.0		
Without rescission (current estimate)	659.5		
With rescission (revised estimate)	659.1		
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	1)		

## Operation and Maintenance Operation and Maintenance, Air National Guard

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense

Appropriation Act. 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$500,000, to

be derived from the sum provided for maintenance of real property

facilities.

Agency Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$_	242,800,000
'Rureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> ) Other budgetary resources		984,900,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol  Aircraft Procurement, Army	Total Budgetary Resources	tado -	1,227,700,000
1975/1977 212031	Amount proposed for rescission		13,500,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This rescission of multi-year funds results from the decision not to procure any UH-1H aircraft in 1975. These items are considered marginal in light of the present and projected aircraft inventory.

#### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$13.5 million and result in outlay reductions of \$1.9 million in 1975 and \$6.7 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$119.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	77.1
With rescission (revised estimate)	75.2
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-6.7)

### DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE - MILITARY

### Procurement

Aircraft Procurement, Army

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of Defense Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$13,500,000.

Agency Department of Defense	New budget authority	\$ 3.062.800.000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-437</u> ) Other budgetary resources	718,600,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Aircraft Procurement, Air Force	Total Budgetary Resources	3,781,400,000
1975/1977 573010	Amount proposed for rescission	248,000,000

# Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This rescission of multi-year funds results from the decision not to procure 24 A-7D's and 12 F-111's in 1975. These items were not requested by the Air Force, nor included in the President's budget and are considered marginal in light of present and projected aircraft inventory.

### Estimated Effects

This rescission will reduce 1975 budget authority by \$248 million and result in outlay reductions of \$33.6 million in 1975 and \$143.6 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$2,888.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	2,669.0
With rescission (revised estimate)	2,635.4
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-143.6)

# DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE - MILITARY

### Procurement

Aircraft Procurement, Air Force

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of

Defense Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of

\$248,000,000.

Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-29

	•	
Agency Health, Education, and Welfare	New budget authority	\$
Bureau Health Resources Administration Appropriation Title & Symbol	(P.L) Other budgetary resources	372,465,933(est.)1/
Health Services Planning and Development	Total Budgetary Resources	372,465,933
753/50321 754/60321	Amount proposed for rescission	372,465,933

# Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays.

Elimination of these Hill-Burton expenditures would avoid needless stimulation of further hospital construction, at a time of a generally recognized national oversupply of hospital beds. The suboptimal occupancy rates associated in large part with that oversupply are a factor contributing to the growing cost of medical care generally, and of hospital costs in particular.

# Estimated Effects:

This is a proposed rescission of unobligated balances of 1973 and 1974 appropriations for medical facilities construction allotted to States, but not approved or obligated for specific construction projects by the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.

Approp/Symbol		Activity		Budget Authority
753/50321 754/60321	Medical	Facilities "	Construction	\$187,832,353.18 184,633,580.38
				\$372.465.933.56

The withholding of these funds is expected to result in estimated 1975 outlay savings of \$15 million, and 1976 outlay savings of \$35-40 million, depending upon the rate at which the funds might otherwise be obligated. Based upon the spending history of the Hill-Burton program, \$372 million in Federal matching grants could be expected to help fund construction projects totalling about \$1.4 billion. This sum translates to the potential addition of approximately 28,000 new hospital beds. Although many of these new beds would be replacing obsolete ones, a significant percentage would represent an increment to the current national oversupply of hospital beds.

<sup>1/</sup> This amount represents the unobligated balance brought forward on 7/1/74.

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE Health Resources Administration Health Resources Planning and Development

The unobligated balance of funds appropriated for grants under part A of Title VI of the Public Health Service Act are rescinded.

Agency		
Department of Justice	New budget authority	\$ <u>433,100,000</u>
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-433</u> )	
Federal Bureau of Investigation	Other budgetary resources	4,485,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
	Total Budgetary Resources	437.585.000
Salaries and Expenses,		
Federal Bureau of Investigation	Amount proposed for	•
(1550200)	rescission	5.300.000

### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds have been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The proposed rescission will be accomplished through a reduction in personnel costs by normal attrition, postponement of equipment procurement, reduction in headquarter's administrative overhead costs, reduction in the level of training provided to State and local law enforcement officers, and extension of the replacement schedule for new vehicles.

The overall level of the FRI's investigative program will be reduced slightly by this rescission, although the Bureau's highest priority investigative matters are not expected to be significantly affected.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### Estimated Effects

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$425.300
Without rescission (Current estimate)	\$424.889
With rescission (Revised estimate)	\$419.589
(Effect of action on 1976 Outlays	0)

# DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Federal Bureau of Investigation Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the State,

Justice, Commerce, Judiciary and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$5,300,000.

			R75-31
Rescission	Proposal	No.:	

Agency Department of Justice	New budget authority	\$ 175,850,000
Bureau Immigration and Naturalization Service	(P.L. 93-433 ) Other budgetary resources	7,850,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Salaries and Expenses	Total Budgetary Resources	183,700,000
Immigration and Naturalization Service	Amount proposed for rescission	1,300,000
1551217		an respective to the second

### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds have been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The proposed action reduces funds available for detention and deportation of aliens unlawfully residing in the U.S. from \$19.1 million to \$17.8 million. Even though the program level previously planned for 1975 will be reduced by this rescission, remaining funds still permit an expanded program over previous years.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### Estimated Effects

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$178.200
Without rescission (Current estimate)	\$171.103
With rescission (Revised estimate)	\$169.803
(Effect of action on 1976 Outlays	0 )

# DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Immigration and Naturalization Service Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the State,

Justice, Commerce, Judiciary and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$1,300,000.

Rescission I	Proposal	No:	R75-32	
--------------	----------	-----	--------	--

Agency		***************************************
Department of Justice	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433)	\$169,000,000
Bureau	Other budgetary	
	resources	\$ 2,920,000
Bureau of Prisons		
Appropriation Title and Symbol	Total Budgetary resources	\$171,920,000
Salaries and Expenses 1551060		,
•	Amount proposed for rescission	\$ 5,250,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated. The items to which this proposed action would be applicable are:

\$4,650,000 - Delays in activation of new facilities. The savings are available during FY 1975 because of late activation of the Butner FCCR, the Miami Youth Center, and the Chicago MCC due to delays in construction.

\$300,000 - Drug Abuse Community Treatment (Aftercare)
The Bureau of Prisons will reduce the number of participants in
aftercare programs and/or reduce the level of services currently
being provided. The average number of clients to be served will
be slightly less than the 2,600 participants in the program at
the end of FY 1974.

\$300,000 - Per Capita Care population increase. Current population is running somewhat below the 23,500 average funded in FY 1974. If this trend continues, we will not achieve the population projection for FY 1975 of 24,000.

The budget activities affected by the proposed action are:

Budget Activity	Amount
Care	\$3,007,000
Education	375,000
Maintenance and Operations	1,017,000
Medical	551,000
Drug Abuse	300,000
Total	\$5,250,000

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### Estimated Effects

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$168.900
Without rescission (Current estimate)	\$166.291
With rescission (Revised estimate)	\$161.041
(Effect of action on 1976 Outlays	0 )

The proposed actions will have minimal impact on programs during FY 75. The delay in activation of new facilities will not affect current-year programs; however, funds being rescinded will have to be recovered during FY 76 if these new facilities are to be activated on schedule. In the Drug Aftercare Program, it will be necessary to hold the program participation at or near the FY 74 year-end level and possibly reduce slightly the level of services to be provided by the Bureau of Prisons.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Prison System
Bureau of Prisons
Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the State,

Justice, Commerce, Judiciary and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of

\$5,250,000.

# Recission Proposal No:

# PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency		
Department of Justice	New budget authority	\$27,690,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-433</u> )	•
	Other budgetary	
Bureau of Prisons	resources	\$52,015,73 <u>5</u>
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
	Total budgetary	
Buildings and Facilities 15X1003	resources	\$79,705,735
	Amount proposed for	_
	rescission	\$ 1,750,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated. This proposed action would be applicable to Site and Planning activities. There would be a reduction of \$1,050,000 from the \$2,550,000 currently available for the Northeast Adult Facility and a reduction of \$700,000 from the \$2,700,000 available for the Northeast Youth Complex. Efforts will be intensified to acquire sites at no cost to the Government and, if necessary, initial site development will be delayed until the total construction funds are appropriated.

The funds proposed for rescission have been made available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

### Estimated Effects

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$24.300
Without Rescission (Current estimate)	\$30.637
With Rescission (Revised estimate)	\$28.887
(Effect of action on 1976 Outlays	0 )

The Bureau has been relatively successful in acquiring "free" property to construct new institutions. Every effort will contine to acquire surplus federal or state property for future construction. It may also be necessary to delay some initial site development until such time as the total construction funds are made available.

# DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Federal Prison System Bureau of Prisons Buildings and Facilities

Appropriations provided under this head in the State,

Justice, Commerce, Judiciary and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of
\$1,750,000.



Agency		
Department of Justice	New budget authority	\$135,000,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-433</u> )	
Drug Enforcement Administration Appropriation Title & Symbol	Other budgetary resources	6,562,000
Salaries and Expenses	Total Budgetary Resources	141,562,000
1551100	Amount proposed for	The state of the second st
2332100	rescission	2,400,000

### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This reduction will delay the development of certain communications and detection equipment projects to be used in the drug enforcement program. It is not anticipated that these delays will significantly affect the current enforcement operations of DEA.

The funds proposed for rescission have been made available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

#### Estimated Effects

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$135.875
Without rescission (Current estimate)	\$135.978
With rescission (Revised estimate)	<u>\$133.578</u>
(Effect of action on 1976 Outlays	0 )

The reduction in the research program will have the effect of extending the period from formulation to final prototype of several of the enginering projects, causing some delay in the provision of these tools to the enforcement community. When the full effect of the reduction can be determined, revised research program requirements will be presented in the normal budget cycle.

A GREAT THE CONTRACT OF THE CO

ong kalang digensia semilang kalanger sa pengangan pengangan

# DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Drug Enforcement Administration Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the State,
Justice, Commerce, Judiciary and Related Agencies Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of
\$2,400,000.

Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-35
------------	----------	------	--------

Agency Department of State	New budget authority	\$ 205,903,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-433) Other budgetary resources	None
Appropriation Title & Symbol Contributions to International Organizations	Total Budgetary Resources	205,903,000
1951126	Amount proposed for rescission	2,000,000
1951126		2,00

#### Justification:

The Department of State Appropriation Act, 1975 (Title I, Public Law 93-433, approved October 5, 1974) provides budget authority of \$205,903,000 only for fiscal year 1975 "for expenses, not otherwise provided for, necessary to meet annual obligations of membership in international multilateral organizations, pursuant to treaties, convention, or specific Acts of Congress." From funds appropriated in that account the State Department pays the United States' assessed shares of the budgets of some 38 international organizations in which the U.S. has membership, including the United Nations and its specialized agencies, the Inter-American organizations, and other regional and technical bodies.

Each year, the amount estimated for this account in the President's February Budget and the amount appropriated by the Congress are based on actual, approved budgets of most of the various organizations. However, in a few cases the budgets have not received final approval by the organizations' legislative bodies in time, so the President and the Congress must act on estimates of their probable action. Also, the exchange rates at which U.S. contributions are actually paid to a few organizations sometimes differ from the rates used in calculating the budget estimates.

This year, these two factors have caused some U.S. assessments to be less than estimated; the principal ones are:

	Reduction in U.S. assessment
Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural	\$978,000
Organization Organization of American States	913,000 505,000

Other assessments are greater than estimated; the principal ones are:

Increase in U.S. assessment

International Telecommunications
Union \$265,000
Inter-American Institute of
Agricultural Sciences 202,000

These changes in assessments have resulted in net U.S. contributions of \$2,000,000 less than the amount appropriated. Accordingly, \$2,000,000 is proposed for rescission, pursuant to the Antideficiency Act (31 U.S.C. 665) which authorizes the establishment of reserves for savings.

# Estimated Effects:

This rescission reflects an outlay reduction of \$2,000,000 in 1975 which, however, will have no programmatic effect.

Total 1975 Outlays do	llars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	214
Without savings (current estimate)	206
With savings (revised estimate)	204
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	

#### DEPARTMENT OF STATE

CONTRACTOR OF THE STANDARD STA

International Organizations and Conferences

Contributions to International Organizations

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of State Appropriations Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$2,000,000.

Agency Department of State	New budget authority	\$ 2,000,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-433) Other budgetary resources	None
Appropriation Title & Symbol International Trade Negotiations	Total Budgetary Resources	2,000,000
1951147	Amount proposed for rescission	100,000

#### Justification:

The Department of State Appropriation Act, 1975 (Title I, Public Law 93-433, approved October 5, 1974) provides budget authority of \$2,000,000 for fiscal year 1975 "for necessary expenses of participation by the United States in international trade negotiations," etc. These funds are available only in fiscal year 1975. From funds appropriated in that account the State Department pays for the 1975 costs of the U.S. delegation and certain support staff in Washington for U.S. participation in the multilateral trade negotiations that began in late 1973 at Geneva under the sponsorship of the contracting parties of the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade (GATT).

Progress of the negotiations has been slow, due, in part, to the delay in the enactment of negotiating authority for the President of the United States, which would be available pursuant to the Trade Reform Bill (H.R. 10710, 93rd Congress) now pending in the Congress. That Bill passed the House of Representatives on December 11, 1973, but has not yet been brought to the floor of the Senate. The estimate of \$2,465,000 in budget authority for international trade negotiations for fiscal year 1975 in the President's February Budget was based on enactment of the Trade Reform Bill earlier in this session of the Congress and faster progress in the negotiations. Since full buildup of the planned U.S. negotiating delegation and support staff has now been even further delayed, \$100,000 of the \$2,000,000 appropriation will not be required during fiscal year 1975. Accordingly, \$100,000 is proposed for rescission, pursuant to the Antideficiency Act (31 U.S.C. 665) which authorizes the establishment of reserves for savings.

### Estimated Effects:

This rescission reflects an outlay reduction of \$100,000 in 1975 which, however, will have no programmatic effect.

# Total 1975 Outlays 1975 Budget (February transmitted)... Without savings (current estimate)... With savings (revised estimate)... (Effect of action on 1976 outlays....

# DEPARTMENT OF STATE

# International Organizations and Conferences International Trade Negotiations

Appropriations provided under this head in the Department of State Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$100,000.

Agency The Department of the Treasury	New budget authority	25,955,000
Bureau Office of the Secretary	(P.L. 93-38] ) Other budgetary resources	1,500,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Salaries and expenses	Total Budgetary Resources	27,455,000
Office of the Secretary of the Treasury	Amount proposed for rescission \$	310,000
2050101	Landa de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la companya de l	

# Justification:

This appropriation provides the staff assistance to the Secretary in the discharge of his responsibilities. Included are the immediate assistants to the Secretary, their staffs, the Office of Revenue Sharing, general administrative support services and the maintenance, repair and improvement of the Treasury Building and Annex.

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### Estimated Effects:

The reduction would be achieved by delaying the lease of automated data processing and communication switching equipment and the curtailment of official travel.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal and May budget amendment)	\$26.7
Without rescission (current estimate)	25.5
With rescission	<u>25.2</u>
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-0-)

# DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY Office of the Secretary Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the Treasury, Postal Service, and General Government Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$310,000.

Agency The Department of the Ireasury Buresy	New budget authority (P.I. 93-381)	\$ 3,100,000
Federal Law Enforcement Training Cente	r Other budgetary resources	The distance distance where twee index represents a risk spanner introduction facilities. I sp. 1
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	3,100,000
Salaries and Expenses		generalistica de colonidado de la consistencia en con con con con con con con con con co
2050104	Amount proposed for rescission	\$60,000

The second of the second

# Justification:

The consolidated Federal Law Enforcement Training Center provides the necessary facilities and equipment for conducting recruit, advanced, specialized, and refresher training for law enforcement personnel of the participating agencies, plus instructors who teach the basic and some advanced courses in the various curricula. This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

# **Estimated Effects:**

The reduction would be achieved by eliminating the contracting of selected educational services and deferring the purchase of certain equipment and inventory supplies maintained by the Center for classroom instruction.

Rescission of the amount shown above will not demonstrably interfere with the Bureau's ability to train law enforcement personnel sent by participating agencies.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$3.2
Without rescission (current estimate)	3.0
With rescission (revised estimate)	2.9
(Effect of action on 1976 Outlays	-0-)



# DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY Federal Law Enforcement Training Center Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the Treasury, Postal Service, and General Government Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$60,000.

Agency		
The Department of the Treasury	New budget authority	\$ _173,278,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-381)	
Accounts	Other budgetary resources	3,332,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
Salaries and expenses, Bureau	Total Budgetary Resources	116,610,000
of Accounts*		
	Amount proposed for	The state of the s
2051801	rescission	\$630,000
	Marketine Committee (Marketine Committee)	

#### Justification:

This appropriation enables the Bureau to provide disbursing services for nearly all civilian executive Government agencies, process check claims, provide Government-wide central accounting services and perform other central fiscal operations. This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

# Estimated Effects:

The rescission would be achieved by eliminating various phases of employee training and related travel, and by reducing the inventory of check envelopes to less than a two month supply. The proposed reduction involving employee training would have no immediate effects on the Bureau's programs nor would the reduction in check envelope inventory unless unusual procurement or transportation problems arise.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal and May budget amendment)	\$100.5
Without rescission (current estimate including transfer from Office of the Treasurer)	112.0
With rescission (revised estimate)	111.4
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-0- )

<sup>\*</sup>The Bureau of Accounts was merged into the new Bureau of Government Financial Operations on February 1, 1974, as the result of Treasury Department Order 229.

# DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY Bureau of Accounts Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the Treasury, Postal Service, and General Government Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$630,000.

New budget authority	\$ 284,800,000
Other budgetary resources	+44,465,000
Total Budgetary Resources	329,265,000
Amount proposed for rescission	\$3,000,000
	(P.L. 93-381 ) Other budgetary resources Total Budgetary Resources Assount proposed for

#### Justification:

The United States Customs Service, as an enforcement arm of the Department of the Treasury, has been vested with authority to collect and protect the revenue on imports and enforce Customs and related laws. The fundamental authority for the activities of Customs is contained in the provisions of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1202 et. seq.). In addition, the U.S. Customs Service administers and enforces or assists other Federal agencies in the administration and enforcement of numerous other laws. This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this witholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

# Estimated Effect:

The reduction would be achieved through a general cutback in Customs programs or a delay in implementing new or expanded 1975 programs. This approach would effect immediate and actual savings this year towards the overall reduction of Federal expenditures and aid in lowering the spiralling inflation of our economy. This approach would have the least adverse effect on the long range Customs programs in that programs are delayed but not eliminated. The rescission of \$3,000,000 in new obligating authority delays planned replacement of equipment due to age and/or condition until the following fiscal year. Planned implementation dates for expansion of the Treasury Enforcement Communications System and the Automated Merchandise Processing System will slip further into the fiscal year. Planned co-location or expansion of existing space will be delayed until Fiscal Year 1976. Implementation of program increases approved for Fiscal Year 1975 will be forced further into the fiscal year. Training of some employees will be delayed until the following fiscal year.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal and May budget amendment)	\$287.9
Without rescission (current estimate)	300.6
With rescission (revised estimate)	297.6
(Effect of action on 1976 Outlays	-0-)

# U. S. Customs Service Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the Treasury, Postal Service, and General Government Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$3,000,000.

Agency		
The Department of the Treasury	New budget authority	\$ 41,000,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-381)	
Internal Revenue Service	Other budgetary resources	2.185.000
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
	Total Budgetary Resources	43,185,000
Salaries and Expenses		
	Amount proposed for	
2050911	rescission	\$530,000

#### Justification:

This appropriation provides for the overall direction of the Internal Revenue Service, for program planning and determining resource needs, for managing its administrative support, and for the maintenance of employee integrity and internal controls. This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### Estimated Effects:

The reduction would be achieved by deferring training, delaying staff expansion, purchase of equipment, space programs, and operational travel. These rescissions will not affect adversely the IRS program.

Dollars in Millions

1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$42.0
Without rescission (current estimate)	42.0
With rescission (revised estimate)	41.5
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-0-)

# DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY Internal Revenue Service Salaries and Expenses

Appropriations provided under this head in the

Treasury, Postal Service, and General Government Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$530,000.



Agency		
The Department of the Treasury	New budget authority	\$ _712,600,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-381</u> )	
Internal Revenue Service	Other budgetary resources	4,082,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
Accounts, Collection and	Total Budgetary Resources	716,682,000
Taxpayer Service		
	Amount proposed for	
2050912	rescission	\$ 9,230,000
		T and the state of

### Justification:

This appropriation provides for the mailing of tax return forms and instructions, receiving and processing tax returns, scheduling refunds, issuing notices, accounting for revenues, collecting unpaid taxes, securing unfiled returns, assisting taxpayers in filing timely and accurate returns, providing post-filing account information, and preparing statistical information on income. This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

### Estimated Effects:

The reduction would be achieved by deferring training, acquisition of equipment, site preparation and related space alterations, supplies and materials, and travel, reducing evening and Saturday taxpayer service during the filing period, delaying the Tax Administration system redesign effort, and eliminating county data transcription for revenue-sharing statistical purposes. This rescission will have a neglible effect upon revenues collected by the Internal Revenue Service.

Total 1975 Outlays

Dollars in Millions

1975 Budget (February transmittal and May budget amendment)	\$724.4
Without rescission (current estimate)	721.7
With rescission (revised estimate)	712.5
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-0-)

# DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY Internal Revenue Service Accounts, Collection and Taxpayer Service

Appropriations provided under this head in the Treasury,

Postal Service, and General Government Appropriation Act,

1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$9,230,000.

Rescission	Proposal	No.:	R75-43	
------------	----------	------	--------	--

## PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency	New budget authority	è 701 000 000
The Department of the Treasury		\$ _791,000,000
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-381</u> )	17 406 000
Internal Revenue Service	Other budgetary resources	+1,436,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
'	Total Budgetary Resources	<u>792,436,000</u>
Compliance		
•	Amount proposed for	
2050913	rescission	\$ 10,240,000
		*

#### Justification:

This appropriation provides for determining and establishing tax liabilities, for assuring compliance with the tax laws, for investigation and enforcement activities, for carrying out special law enforcement programs assigned to the Revenue Service. It also provides for rulings and advice necessary for a correct and uniform interpretation and application of the Code, for issuing rulings to taxpayers, and for publishing precedent rulings. Further, it provides for representation in Tax Court cases, for furnishing legal advice and assistance in other civil and criminal litigation, and for providing consultative legal services in matters ranging from labor relations to interpreting the complex provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The funds proposed for rescission are available only in fiscal year 1975.

#### **Estimated Effects:**

The reduction would be achieved by imposing hiring restrictions, deferring regular travel, training, space programs, and purchase of equipment. This rescission will have a negligible effect upon revenues collected by the Internal Revenue Service.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal and May budget amendment)	\$801.2
Without rescission (current estimate)	797.5
With rescission (revised estimate)	<u>787.3</u>
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-0-)

## DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY Internal Revenue Service Compliance

Appropriations provided under this head in the Treasury,

Postal Service, and General Government Appropriation Act,

1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$10,240,000.

Rescission	Proposal Proposal	No.:	D75 11
------------	-------------------	------	--------

i

### PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency General Services Administration	New budget authority	\$
Bureau Public Buildings Service	(P.L) Other budgetary resources	
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	1,008,870,700*
Federal Buildings Fund Limitations on Availability of Revenue	Amount proposed for rescission	20,022,900
47 X 4542		

#### Justification:

This proposed rescission is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated. The Federal Buildings Fund is used to finance space and services provided Federal agencies by the General Services Administration. The income for the fund is derived from Standard Level User Charges, the availability of which is subject to limitations enacted by the Congress. For 1975, the Congress limited reserve availability to \$1,008,870,700 of which \$98,000,000 is available for alterations and major repairs of public buildings. This proposal will reduce the 1975 obligational authority for repairs and alterations to \$77,977,100 and will require the cancellation of low priority work which has not yet been started.

#### Estimated Effects:

The effect of the reduction in obligational authority will be to reduce outlays by \$10,000,000 in 1975 and \$10,022,900 in 1976. The net effect of the rescission on Federal Buildings Fund outlays is as follows:

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	-119
Without rescission (current estimate)	-44
With rescission (revised estimate)	<u>-54</u> -10)
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-10)

This reduction would impact on about 1,200 man-years of employment in the private sector. The termination of scheduled repair and alteration work will not adversely affect the ability of Federal agencies to carry out essential Government services. The following repair and alteration projects would be canceled in 1975:

<sup>\*</sup>Excludes increase of \$30,000,000 which would be available upon enactment of pending supplemental request.

<u>Project</u>	Estimated Obligations
Boston, MA, McCormack PO CT Brooklyn, NY., FB (225 Cadman) New York City, NY., Foley Square Washington, D.C., Agriculture South Washington, D.C., Commerce Washington, D.C., Post Office (new) Washington, D.C., Post Office (old) Washington, D.C., State Philadelphia, PA., 5000 Wissahickon Arlington, VA., Pentagon Wheeling, WV., PO CT Jacksonville, FL., PO CT Nashville, TN., US CH Kansas City, MO., FB 1500 E. Bannister Denver, CO., FC Cheyenne, WY., FOB Tucson, AZ., PO CT Los Angeles, CA., CT Portland, OR., Pioneer CT	\$ 239,000 447,600 3,952,500 1,200,000 407,000 3,813,100 1,200,000 495,000 529,900 438,000 935,800 485,000 674,000 746,000 963,400 1,819,900 490,500 274,600 813,600 98,000
Total	\$20,022,900

# GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION Real Property Activities Federal Buildings Fund Limitation on Availability of Revenue

The amount made available under this head in the Treasury, Postal Service, and General Government

Appropriations Act, 1975, is hereby reduced in the amount of \$20,022,900, which reduction shall apply specifically to the limitation on alterations and major repairs.

## PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Special Action Office for Drug Abuse Prevention Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-38]) Other budgetary resources	\$ 4,000,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Pharmacological Research, Special Action Office for	Total Budgetary Resources	4,000,000
Drug Abuse Prevention 1152455	Amount proposed for rescission	2,760,000

#### Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

The funds provided in this annual account support pharmacological studies connected with the development and testing of long-acting methadone, narcotic antagonists, and other related special studies.

The funds proposed for rescission are for the development of a more effective narcotic antagonist to block the effects of opiate addiction in humans. This effort will be funded out of the "Special Fund" account of this agency because by so doing the effort will not be tied specifically to the figures of \$2,760,000. The Special Action Office indicates that it is at least several months away from funding the actual grant. Until the point is reached at which the grant is ready for award, the precise sum needed cannot be determined. By rescinding the funds in this account and funding this pharmacological research from the "Special Fund", where other project funds are located, optimum flexibility can be retained for funding the narcotic antagonist research program. In addition, similar research activities are already being undertaken within the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.

#### Estimated Effects:

No effect because this research activity will still be undertaken. Some lower priority drug abuse related research activities in HEW may be delayed if additional funds are necessary to complete this study.

Total 1975 Outlays	(\$	in thousands)
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	•	11,840
Without rescission (revised estimate)	•	18,826
With rescission (revised estimate)	•	17,826
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays		-1.760)

•

•



## SPECIAL ACTION OFFICE FOR DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION Pharmacological Research

Appropriations provided under this head in the Executive Office Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$2,760,000.

## PROPOSED RESCISSION OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1012 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Special Action Office for Drug Abuse Prevention Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-381 )	\$ _11,000,000
Dureau	Other budgetary resources	age anni
Appropriation Title & Symbol  Special Fund, Special Action	Total Budgetary Resources	11,000,000
Office for Drug Abuse Prevention 1153455	Amount proposed for rescission	2,240,000

#### Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

For the most part this annual account provides funds through interagency transfers that support innovative management improvement, outreach, treatment, rehabilitation, and education approaches in drug abuse prevention activities.

The funds proposed for rescission are for lower priority efforts. Similar activities are already being undertaken by other Federal agencies.

The legislative authority for the Special Action Office for Drug Abuse Prevention, expires on June 30, 1975. Many of the activities supported through funds provided in this account have already been transferred to other agencies and are being funded in those agencies.

#### Estimated Effects:

About 13 of the 43 planned projects would not be undertaken and about 24 of the remaining 30 projects would be reduced in scope. No important objectives would, however, be adversely affected by the rescission. Most of the projects involved can be effectively carried out at a reduced level of funding. Only those projects considered most marginal to the total Federal drug abuse prevention effort would be completely eliminated.

Total 1975 Outlays	(\$ in thousands)
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	21,250
Without rescission (current estimate)	23,420
With rescission (revised estimate)	22,300
(Effect of action in 1976 outlays	1,120)

## SPECIAL ACTION OFFICE FOR DRUG ABUSE PREVENTION Special Fund

Appropriations provided under this head in the Executive Office Appropriation Act, 1975, are rescinded in the amount of \$2,240,000.

#### Part 7. Deferrals

Reports are included in this part for 41 deferrals of obligations and expenditures totalling \$393 million in obligations and \$10 million in deferrals of expenditures only. These reports are transmitted under the provisions of Title X of the Impoundment Control Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-344). Congressional approval of the actions contemplated would reduce Federal spending in 1975 by \$317 million. An agency summary of the outlay reductions that would be effected follows:

## EFFECT OF DEFERRAL ACTIONS ON OUTLAYS

(Outlay reductions in millions of dollars)

	1975	1976
Agriculture	- 2 - 19 - 42 1/ - 1 - 18 - 45 1/ - 80 - 70 - 10	- 2 - 6  -1 - 40 +30* +52*
Small Business Administration	<u>- 22</u>	-14
Total	-317	+18*

The outlay reductions for each item are identified in the reports in this part. As noted in the individual reports, the withholding associated with the deferrals in this part will generally be delayed until December 16, 1974.

In addition to the deferrals reported herein, other deferral actions have already been taken. They were reported in special messages of September 20, and October 4 and 31, and November 13

<sup>1/</sup> Includes outlay reduction as a result of deferrals reported in the President's Special Message of October 31.

<sup>\*</sup> Outlay increase.

(the November 13 message amended some earlier deferral reports). These deferrals of obligational authority include the following major items:

Obligational authority in millions of dollars

Environmental Protection Agency: Construction grants	9,000
1975 and prior programs	4,370
1976 programs	6,358
Agriculture: Forest Service,	
Forest roads and trails	420
Interior road construction programs Housing and Urban Development:	452
Grants for basic water and sewer	
facilities	402
Homeownership assistance	264
Public Facility loans	184

The effect of the deferrals previously reported is to reduce Federal spending by more than \$0.4 billion in 1975 and more than \$2.0 billion in 1976.

## SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEFERRALS (Dollars in thousands)

Defer- ral #	Item	Budget Authority
	Deferrals:	
	Agriculture:	
	Forest Service:	
D75-90	Construction and Land Acquisition	6,865
	Commerce:	
	Social and Economic Statistics	
	Administration:	
D75-91	Periodic Censuses and Programs	327
	Domestic and International Business	
	Administration:	
D75-92	Operations and Administration	750
	United States Travel Service:	
	Inter-American Cultural and	
D75-93	Trade Center	1,420
	National Oceanic and Atmospheric	
	Administration:	6 000
D75-94	Operations, Research and Facilities	6,800
D75-95	Coastal Zone Management	1,000
	National Fire Prevention and	
	Control Administration:	
D75 06	Operations, Research, and	E00
D75-96	Administration	500
	Office of Telecommunications:	
	Scientific and Technical Research	
D75 07	and Services	2 710
D75-97	Maritime Administration:	3,718
D75 00	Ship Construction	5,750
D75-98 D75-99	Research and Development	3,468
D75-100	Operations and Training	1,300
D75-100	operations and italining	1,300
	Health, Education, and Welfare	
	Health Resources Administration:	
D75-101	Health Resources (Health Manpower)	3,590
	Health Resources (Program	
D75-102	Management)	1,400
	Office of Education:	
•	Elementary and Secondary Education:	
D75-103	Supplementary Services	9,278
D75-104	Equipment and Minor Remodeling	6,562
D <b>75-10</b> 5	Nutrition and Health	1,900
	Office of the Secretary:	3 000
D75-106	Departmental Management	1,902

Defer- ral #	Item	Budget Authority
	Deferrals (cont):	
	Housing and Urban Development:	
	Community Planning and Development:	
D75-107	Comprehensive Planning Grants	50,000
	Policy Development and Research:	•
D75-108	Research and Technology	8,000
	Interior:	
	Bureau of Outdoor Recreation:	
D <b>75-1</b> 09	Land and Water Conservation	20,000
	Atomic Energy Commission:	$(10,000)\dot{1}$
D7F 110	Operating Expenses:	4 000
D <b>75-11</b> 0	Weapons Program	4,000
D75-111	and Development	8,000
D/3-111	Civilian Reactor Research	0,000
D75-112	and Development	6,700
D75-113	Physical Research	2,700
D75-113	Controlled Thermonuclear Research	8,100
D73-114	Biomedical and Environmental	0,700
D75-115	Research and Safety	4,000
	Operating Expenses/Plant and	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	Capital Equipment:	
D75-116	Weapons Program	4,700
	Plant and Capital Equipment:	
D75-117	Nuclear Materials	12,000
D75-118	Nuclear Materials	12,000
D75-119	Civilian Reactor Research	10 000
DID-IIA	and Development	10,000
D75-120	and Development	1,500
0.3 120	Civilian Reactor Research	1,300
D75-121	and Development	12,100
	Civilian Reactor Research and	
	Development and Controlled	
D75-122	Thermonuclear Research	13,000
D75-123	Other Capital Equipment	13,900
	National Aeronautics and Space	
	Administration:	
D76 103	Research and Development:	00.000
D75-124	Manned Space Flight	20,000
D75-125	Space Science and Applications Aeronautical Research and	16,000
D75-125	Space Supporting Activities	36,000
	phace publicated uccasteres	30,000

<sup>1/</sup> Deferral of outlays only.

Defer- ral #	Item	Budget Authority
	Deferrals (cont):	
	Other Independent Agencies: National Foundation on the Arts and Humanities:	
D75-127	Salaries and Expenses	18,000
D75-128	Salaries and Expenses	15,000
D <b>75-12</b> 9	Energy R&D Appropriation Act, 1975) Small Business Administration: Business Loan & Investment	5,000
D75-130	Fund	36,000
Total Def	errals	3 <b>93,</b> 090



Deferral No.	: D75-90	
--------------	----------	--

Agency Department of Agriculture	New budget authority	\$	30,908,000
Bureau Forest Service	(P.L. ) Other budgetary resources	·	13,017,154
Appropriation Title & Symbol  Construction and Land	Total Budgetary Resources		43,925,154
Acquisition, Forest Service 12X1103	Amount to be deferred part of year		
	Amount to be deferred for entire year		6,865,000

#### Justification:

Deferral of \$6,865,000 for construction of recreation and research facilities is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. The timing of construction of the facilities proposed for deferral is not critical to the specific local areas or to the Nation as a whole. These funds are available until expended with construction expected to be undertaken in FY 1976.

#### Estimated Effects:

Deferral of these funds, which remain available until expended, will postpone construction and use of the projects involved for one year. Employment would be reduced in fiscal year 1975 by about 15 direct Federal and 100 non-Federal man-years. Deferral would reduce outlays by \$2,400,000 in fiscal year 1975 and \$2,100,000 in fiscal year 1976 if funds are obligated in fiscal year 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate) (Effect of action on 1976 outlays	33.9 36.2 33.8 -2.1)

#### Recreation-Public Use

Council Bluffs Projects, Clark NF, Missouri......\$500,000

Work includes completions of culvert through dam, stilling basin, construction of the remaining portion of the dam and spillway, including excavation of the remaining portions of the spillway, concrete spillway crest sections, additional cleaning, seeding and mulching, cleaning Moll Creek, relocation of utilities, construction of earth fill for dam, and installing riprap on the dam surface.

#### Mueller Park Recreation Area, Wasatch NF Utah ...... \$100,000

Work at the site would include: (1) improving the water and sanitation, (2) riprapping of streambanks, (3) providing new tables and grills, (4) paving under new tables and path systems, (1) planting of trees and shrubs, (6) installing more effective signing, and (7) providing trailhead facilities for the North Canyon Mueller Park Trail.

#### Robert S. Kerr Memorial Arboretum and Nature Center, Ouachita NF, Oklahoma.. \$450,000

Construction of basic facilities including plaza, orientation building, and restrooms is planned. Or-site utilities of electricity, sewage disposal, and water would also be developed. Construction of nature trails and paving access roads and parking area would be done.

Would construct a second cave tour and expand the sewage treatment facilities.

Construction of a 100,000-gallon water storage tank and water line, four recirculating oil vault toilets, and five group camping areas.

Work would consist of a feasibility study to determine the most desirable sewer system to be designed and installed. Subsequent phases will include the planning, contracting, and construction of a sewer system or systems that will serve all recreation developments within the two Canyons.

#### Lamoille Canyon-Ruby Mountain Recreation Area, Humboldt NF, Nevada ....... \$365,000

Improvement work is planned for a 3-year period to allow the public to use portions of the Canyon. Initial work will be restoration and expansion of Thomas Canyon campground, installation of information signs and traffic control barriers at roadside vistas, construction of public comfort stations, installation of sanitation parking and traffic control facilities, and landscaping roadend-trailhead

Eagle Lake Dam, Monongahela National Forest, West Virginia .... \$815,000

Funds for this project were appropriated in fiscal year 1974. Feasibility studies were in process but no environmental studies had been made as required by the National Environmental Policy Act.

Feasibility studies have since been completed and we are in the process of reviewing environmental impacts. A draft environmental statement has been completed and it was circulated for agency and public comment. These comments are being analyzed and a final statement will be issued toward the en' of fiscal year 1976.

At this point the environmental feasibility of the reservoir is still unresolved pending issuance of a final environmental statement. The decision on whether to proceed with construction will be made concurrent with issuance of the environmental impact statement. Therefore, deferring construction funding at this time will have no affect on the project.

#### Research Construction

#### Forestry Sciences Laboratory, Auburn, Alabama ......\$400,000

In fiscal year 1972, \$110,000 in planning funds were appropriated to develop plans and specifications for the Forestry Sciences Laboratory proposed for construction on a 6-acre plot donated by Auburn University. These funds would be used to complete facilities in the main laboratory.

#### Forestry Sciences Laboratory, West Laboratory Wing, Corvallis, Oregon ..... \$2,800,000

In 1962 a Forestry Sciences Laboratory was completed on the campus of Oregon State University. In 1967 Congress appropriated funds to plan a major addition to the laboratory. These plans were completed in 1969. Congress appropriated \$500,000 in 1970 and \$500,000 again in fiscal year 1971, which permitted completion of wings containing service facilities, library and mechanical plant. In fiscal year 1974, \$1,500,000 was appropriated to complete the East Research Wing. These funds would be used to complete the West Wing.

#### Forestry Sciences Laboratory, Fresno, California ...... \$175,000

The Forest Service research program at Fresno, California, is focused on integrated, multiple use management of the varied vegetation types of the Sierra Nevada, which encompass grassy foothills a few hundred feet above sea level to the 14,000-foot crest less than 50 miles away. These funds would be used for planning and design of a laboratory on land now being considered for lease by the California State University.

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433)	\$ 22,250,000
Bureau		
Social and Economic Statistics	Othor hudgeters magnines	. 1, 007, 000
- Administration	Other budgetary resources	\$_4,021,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol,	Total budgetary resources	\$ 26,271,000
Periodic Censuses and Programs	Amount to be deferred part of year	\$
13X0450	Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$ 327,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This appropriation provides funds to conduct periodic censuses and surveys, pertaining to the major economic and demographic areas once or twice each decade. Funding also covers the maintenance of geographic support activities that relates to the various censuses and the acquisition of large scale data processing equipment. These funds are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

The 1975 appropriation includes funds for rental of a central processor for the Bureau of the Census computer facility. Rental of this processor, originally scheduled to be operational by February 15, 1975, would be delayed for three months to May 15, as a result of this deferral action.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

Minor delays only are expected in computer processing during the three month deferral period. Other computer equipment, now installed, will continue to perform the required processing.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	23.0
Without deferral (current estimate)	25.1
With deferral (revised estimate)	<u>24.7</u>
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	0)

Deferral No.: D75-92

## DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency	New budget authority	¢ 58 750 000
Department of Commerce	(P.L. <u>93-433</u> )	\$ <u>58,750,000</u>
Bureau		
Domestic and International Business Administration	Other budgetary resources	\$
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total budgetary resource	\$ 58,750,000
Operations and Administration	Amount to be deferred	
13X12 <b>50</b>	part of year	\$
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$ 750,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The "Operations and Administration" appropriation is the primary source of funding for the myriad of programs conducted by the Domestic and International Business Administration. The overall mission of the Domestic and International Business Administration is to assist in strengthening the economy of the United States through programs ranging from those developed to assist American business to improve its operations and competitiveness in American markets to those designed to encourage American business to engage in export trade.

Within the "Operations and Administration" appropriation, the deferral will delay the use of funds in three areas: travel costs (\$200,000), contract costs for the competitive assessment program (\$100,000), and export promotion/development activities (\$450,000). Funds provided for these programs are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

The deferral of travel expenditures until FY 1976 reflects fewer foreign inspection trips of operations overseas, and revised scheduling of business seminars, conferences, and other DIBA initiated events where planning is still incomplete.

The deferral of contractual services in the competitive assessment program occurs in the major studies segment of the program. Since there was some several months of delay in the general implementation of the entire program while a restructuring of the program design was completed, the requirement for these longer-range studies can be deferred. Specifications for the major studies must await the completion of the initial basic data analysis.

The trade promotion/development expenses previously scheduled for the spring of FY 1975 are being delayed until early 1976. The associated delay in promotional events will be:

- 1. FY 1975 trade fairs will be reduced from 27 to 25 (no impact in East-West activities). The two fairs will take place in FY 1976.
- 2. FY 1975 trade missions will be reduced from 44 to 38 (2 related to East-West activities). The 6 missions will take place in FY 1976.
- 3. FY 1975 reduction in special techniques activities are in-store promotions plus 5 other events in the special activities area (one technical sales seminar is in the East-West activities).

Market research, trade analysis and other activities related to the development of future events are being correspondingly delayed.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:														DOLLARS	IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal).	•		•			•	•				•	•			60.1
Without deferral (current estimate)	•		٠		•	•	•	•		•			•		59.4
With deferral (revised estimate)		•	•		•	٠	•	•		٠	•	•	•	,	<u>58.9</u>
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays				•		•	•		٠.	•	•	•	٠		-0.3)

Deferral No.: D75-93	Def	erral	No.	: D75-93	
----------------------	-----	-------	-----	----------	--

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority	\$
Bureau	(P.L. )	
United States Travel Service	Other budgetary resources	5,050,729
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
	Total Budgetary Resources	5,050,729
Inter-American Cultural and		
Trade Center	Amount to be deferred	
	part of year	
13X1804	-	
1	Amount to be deferred	
	for entire year	1,419,729

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Funds were appropriated in 1966 for a Federal exhibit at the Inter-American Cultural and Trade Center (Interama) in Dade County, Florida. The funds are to be used for the design and operation of a Federal exhibit. The delay in the use of the funds has resulted from the difficulties experienced by Interama in obtaining financing. These funds are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

It previously was planned to defer \$1,419,729 for only part of fiscal year 1975, and defer the use of \$3,471,000 for the entire year. This was reported in Deferral No. D75-28. In order to restrain 1975 outlays, it is now proposed to defer \$4,890,729 for the entire year. This report serves to eliminate the part-year deferral of \$1,419,729 as previously reported in Deferral No. D75-28. This change will be reflected in the appropriate cumulative report.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

This deferral will prevent further efforts in 1975 on design of a Federal exhibit. This deferral may have little or no delaying effect on the project because of continued difficulties by Interama in obtaining financing. If financing for the Center is obtained, there would not be a serious impact on the success of the project by deferring the use of these funds until 1976.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	0.1
Without deferral (current estimate)	1.4
With deferral (revised estimate)	0.3
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-1.1)

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433)	\$ 440,930,000
Bureau National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration	Other budgetary resources	\$ 4,175,851
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	\$ 445,105,851
Operations, Research and Facilities	Amount to be deferred part of year	\$
13X1 <sup>1</sup> 450	Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$ 6,800,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The operations, research and facilities appropriation encompasses many of the Nation's major civil programs involving the oceans and the atmosphere. Included are mapping, charting, and surveying services; ocean fisheries and living marine resources programs; marine ecosystems analysis and ocean dumping programs; marine technology programs; the Sea Grant program, basic environmental services; environmental satellite services; public weather forecast and warning services; environmental data and information services; and administrative services for NOAA. It is proposed that a total of \$6,800,000 of the appropriation be deferred for the entire year. Projects that would be deferred include a portion of State-Federal Fisheries Management grant funds; construction, maintenance, and operation of four salmon and steelhead rearing ponds in the Columbia River hatchery system; initiation of the Puget Sound MESA project; a portion of the FY 1975 Sea Grant increase; deployment of several data buoys; procurement of radar data processing units; a portion of university grants to study satellite remote sensing techniques; a portion of the acquisition of minicomputers and display systems to automate the field operations and services of the Weather service; and establishment of a National Severe Storms Forecast Center in Kansas City, Missouri. These funds have been made available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

Of the \$5.8 million available for State-Federal Fisheries Management grants, \$600,000 is proposed for deferral. The deferral will have a minimum impact since adjustments will be made to the funds available to the participating states on a pro rata basis.

The deferral of \$1.3 million for construction, maintenance and operation of the Columbia River hatchery system will result in the delay of completion of four additional salmon and steelhead rearing ponds in 1975. Twenty one fish hatcheries are presently operated at an annual cost of \$5.1 million.

The deferral of \$500,000 for a Puget Sound marine ecosystems analysis (MESA) project will delay initiation of the project.

The deferral of \$1,034,000 in the FY 1975 Sea Grant program will result in a total of \$21,200,000 remaining available for grants to universities, private institutions and industry exclusive of program management. The amount remaining available is \$1.4 million more than in 1974.

The number of data buoys deployed as part of NOAA's marine observations program will be reduced in 1975 from 13 to 9 by the deferral of \$927,000. \$7.9 million will remain in the NOAA budget for the marine observations program in 1975.

The proposed deferral of \$800,000 for procurement of radar data processing units for long-range weather radars will delay their installation by two years. In the interim, existing operations will be continued.

The \$100,000 of contracts and grants to universities for work on development of satellite remote sensing techniques proposed for deferral will lengthen completion times of some projects in 1975. \$300,000 remains budgeted in 1975 for these programs.

The deferral of \$1,266,000 of the FY 1975 AFOS increase will extend the completion time of the project by one year. \$2,180,000 will remain available to begin implementation of AFOS in 1975.

The deferral of \$273,000 to establish the severe storm unit in Kansas City will result in some delay on research efforts to improve severe storm forecast techniques.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$415.1
Without deferral (current estimate)	419.8
With deferral (revised estimate)	413.0
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	0)



Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433)	\$ 12,000,000
Bureau National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration	Other budgetary resources	\$ 3,251,443
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	\$ <b>15,</b> 251,443
Coastal Zone Management	Amount to be deferred part of year	\$
13X1451	Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$ 1,000,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated. The Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 authorized estuarine sanctuary grants to enable states to acquire, develop and operate estuarine sanctuaries for the purpose of creating natural field laboratories to gather data and to study the effects of natural and human processes upon the controlled environments.

In FY 1974, \$4 million was made available from the initial Coastal Zone Management appropriation of \$12 million for estuarine sanctuaries. One grant of \$825,000 was awarded to Oregon on June 30, 1974, to establish an estuarine sanctuary program. The remaining \$3,175,000 is available until expended. It is proposed to defer \$1 million of this remaining balance until FY 1976 which will leave \$2,175,000 available for obligation in FY 1975.

Deferral No. D75-30 transmitted in the special message of October 4, 1974, reported that the \$3,175,000 was being deferred for part of the year. This report serves to reduce Deferral No. D75-30 by \$1,000,000. This transaction will be reflected in the appropriate cumulative report. ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

No formal applications have been submitted for estuarine sanctuary grants thus far in FY 1975, and it is anticipated that \$2,175,000 will provide adequate funding for those grants that are projected for the remainder of FY 1975. The deferral of \$1 million of estuarine sanctuary grant funds beyond FY 1975 should not have an adverse program effect.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$15.5
Without deferral (current estimate)	21.1
With deferral (revised estimate)	20.1
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	0)

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433 )	\$ 6,000,000
Bureau National Fire Prevention and Control Administration	Other budgetary resources	\$
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	\$ 6,000,000
Operations, Research, and Administration	Amount to be deferred part of year	\$
13x50800	Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$ 500,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

Funds are appropriated in FY 1975 for the National Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, including \$4.7 million for research and development. This deferral of \$500,000 will limit the expansion of this new R&D program in 1975. Due to the delay in enactment of the new authorization, it will be difficult for the new Administration to effectively use all of the funds. The funds proposed for deferral are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

Deferral of \$500,000 will still permit a small increase in total Federal funding for fire research and development in FY 1975 compared to 1974.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$9.0
Without deferral (current estimate)	5.7
With deferral (revised estimate)	<u>5.3</u>
Effect of action on 1976 outlays	0)

Deferral	No.	•	D75-9	7	

Agency		ngin, gilar refinantialisti inima de Sport Asiando, refinantia initia di producti di producti di producti di p
Department of Commerce	New budget authority	\$ 61,400,000
Bureau National Bureau of	(P.L. 93-433)	
Stds, Off. of Telecommunica-	Other budgetary resources	10,310,054
Appropriation Title & Symbol tions		
	Total Budgetary Resources	71,710,054
Scientific and technical		
research and services	Amount to be deferred	
	part of year	
13X0500		
	Amount to be deferred	
	for entire year	3,718,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This appropriation funds the activities of the National Bureau of Standards (NBS), which conducts research and develops standards to support the Nation's physical measurement system and equity in trade and performs technical services to promote public safety, National Technical Information Service (NTIS), and the Office of Telecommunications (OT). These funds have been made available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

It is proposed to defer NBS new initiatives in the following areas: radiation safety, water pollution and clinical measurements. On-going activities in electromagnetics, flow measurements, chemical materials, polymeric materials and experimental technology incentives will be deferred. Finally, it is proposed that programs in engineering mechanics and inventor assistance in NBS, and ionospheric research in OT, be terminated.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

Deferral of NBS new initiatives will have the following effects: Delays in initiating aspects of the radiation safety program (\$256,000) will defer by 18 months the implementation of a national system of radiation calibrations; there will be a one-year delay in water pollution data gathering and development of detection methods (\$80,000); and research on clinical measurement methods and materials (\$190,000) will be delayed by one year.

Deferrals in on-going programs would have the following impacts: Slowing development of an electromagnetic measurement capability (\$153,000) will delay beyond FY 1976 the improved handling of data from research on broadcast waves. A two-year delay in implementing a field calibration program for flow measurement, postponement of achievement of improved methods for predicting pollution levels and a one-year delay in developing standards for high voltage distribution systems will result from proposed deferrals in flow measurements, chemical materials and polymeric materials (\$245,000). The slowdown in the number of technology incentive experiments initiated (\$2,629,000) will make possible a systematic evaluation of experiments which have already been initiated.

Termination of the activities in engineering mechanics (\$91,000) will eliminate dissemination of some engineering data and development of new fiberglass test methods. Termination of National Inventors Council support (\$50,000) will make it necessary for inventors to seek government assistance without benefit of a central advisory service. Termination of OT research in ionospheric modification (\$24,000) will delay development and implementation of further application of this technique.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$64.8
Without deferral (current estimate)	64.4
With deferral (revised estimate)	62.0
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-1.3)

Deferral No.: D75-98

## DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Department of Commerce Bureau Maritime Administration	New budget authority (P.L. 93-433)	\$ 275,000,000
Appropriation Title and Symbol	Other budgetary resources	\$17,003,836
Ship Construction	Total budgetary resources	\$ 292,003,836
13x1708	Amount to be deferred part of year	\$
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$ 5,750,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This appropriation provides subsidies for the construction of ships in United States shippards, and has been made available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

The proposed deferral will delay the conversion of one containership planned for 1975.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

The deferral will have no adverse effect on improving the international competitive position of U.S. shipyards because the yards will have a good backlog of orders without this conversion.

TOTAL 1975 OUTLAYS:	DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	282.8
Without deferral (current estimate)	260.0
With deferral (revised estimate)	256.0
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	$\frac{\overline{-1.8}}{}$

Deferral No.: D75-99

## DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Department of Commerce Bureau	New budget authority (P.I. <u>94-433</u> )	\$_	25,900,000
Maritime Administration Appropriation Title	Other budgetary resources	\$_	193,000
Research and Development	Total budgetary resources	\$_	26,093,000
1 <b>3</b> X1716	Amount to be deferred part of year	* <u>-</u>	• • •
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$_	3,468,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This appropriation provides for research and development activities directed toward increasing the competitiveness of the U.S. merchant marine. Work is principally conducted through contracts on a cost-sharing basis with **private** industry.

The deferral will reduce nuclear R&D funding by \$1,468,000, and other R&D projects by \$2,000,000.

These funds are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

The reduction in the nuclear R&D program will leave \$2,582,000 in FY 1975 to continue high priority nuclear projects. The other R&D program reductions represent about a 9% decrease in funding for the non-nuclear R&D projects in FY 1975. Recent uncertainties concerning the commercial viability of nuclear-powered merchant ships have resulted in the need to reevaluate the supporting nuclear R&D program. Thus, a portion of the program relating to the development of nuclear system components can be deferred in FY 1975. Deferrals, principally due to program slippages will also be made in shipboard automation efforts, the start up of the ship operations simulator, ports and terminals development, and advanced communications systems development.

Table 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	24.3 25.8 <u>24.0</u> -1.7)

Deferral No.:

D75-100

## DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Department of Commerce	New budget authority (P.f. 93-433 )	\$_40,333,000
Bureau Maritime Administration	manta de caracterista de carac	
Appropriation Title and Symbol	Other budgetary resources	\$198,000
Operations and Training	Total budgetary resources	\$_40,531,000
13X1750	Amount to be deferred part of year	\$
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$_1,300,000

#### JUSTIFICATION:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This appropriation provides for the overall headquarters and field staff direction of the Maritime Administration programs; the operation of the U.S. Maritime Academy; financial assistance to State marine schools; maintenance of the National Defense Reserve Fleet; and other related programs. These funds are available without regard to fiscal year limitation.

A deferral is proposed for a portion of the U.S. Merchant Marine Academy modernization program.

#### ESTIMATED EFFECTS:

Because bids for the modification of the physical fitness facilities at the Academy were in excess of funds appropriated, it is proposed to defer the modification of O'Hara Hall facilities. Additionally, the start of Samuel's Hall modification (which will be fully funded in FY 1975) will be delayed by about 3 months.

Total 1979 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	38.8 39.8
With deferral (revised estimate)	$\frac{39.1}{6}$

Deferral No.: D75-101

## DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency Department of Health, Education, and Welfare	New budget authority	\$	62,500,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-488)	•	•
Health Resources Administra	tiOther budgetary resources	_	
Appropriation Title & Symbol Health Resources	Total Budgetary Resources		62,500,000
7550712 (Health manpower "special projects" activities)	Amount to be deferred part of year		3,550,000
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	-	

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. This withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The Administration is recommending a \$7 million reduction in budget authority for new grant awards in the health manpower "special projects" activities. These savings will be distributed in relatively small amounts among several activities. An ample number of new grant awards will be made, after this reduction has been taken, in the higher priority areas, such as improving the geographic and specialty distribution of health professionals.

The funds proposed for deferral are made available under Continuing Resolution which remains in effect until adjournment of the 93rd Congress.

#### Estimated Effects

The following effects would result from approval of both the amendment and deferral being proposed:

Total 1975 Outlays	dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	84.5
Without deferral (current estimate)	84.5
With deferral (revised estimate)	82.5
Effect of action on 1976 outlays	<b>=5.</b> 0

Agency Department of Health, Education, and Welfare	New budget authority	\$ 32,323,000
Bureau Health Resources	(P.L. <u>93-488</u> )	•
Administration	Other budgetary resources	
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
Health Resources	Total Budgetary Resources	32,323,000
7550712	Amount to be deferred	1,400,000
(Program Management)	part of year	17100700
(-1051	Amount to be deferred for entire year	

#### Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 outlays. This withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

The Administration is recommending a \$2.8 million reduction in program management funds for the Health Resources Administration. This sum represents the agency's share of a \$30 million reduction in the health agencies' general overhead expenses.

The funds proposed for deferral are made available under Continuing Resolution which remains in effect until adjournment of the 93rd Congress.

#### Estimated Effects:

The following effects would result from approval of both the amendment and deferral being proposed:

Total 1975 Outlays	dollars in millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	43
Without deferral (current estimate)	43
With deferral (revised estimate)	40
Effect of action on 1976 outlays	

These savings will result in less travel and fewer consultants, and are not expected to cause major disruption or inability to manage the programs for which the agency is responsible.

Agency Department of Health,		
Education and Welfare	New budget authority	\$64,039,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-448)	*
Office of Education	Other budgetary resources	
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
Elementary and Secondary		
Education - 7550279	Total Budgetary Resources	64,039,000
(Supplementary Services)	Amount to be deferred	
-	part of year	9,278,000
	Amount to be deferred	
	for entire year	

#### Justification:

The 1975 President's Budget proposed a total of \$146,393,000, the same as the 1974 level, for supplementary services. The program was continued at this level during the first quarter under the original Continuing Resolution with an amount of \$32,487,000 made available.

However, subsequent action by the House on the supplemental appropriation bill would reduce the program to a total of \$125,000,000. The Senate Committee has recommended reducing the program even further to a total of \$120,000.

Even though the extended Continuing Resolution technically authorizes maintaining the program at the \$146,393,000 level, it appears that the most judicious course of action during the second quarter is to operate at the House allowance level of \$125,000,000. This will preserve the flexibility of the Congress and the Administration in arriving at a final decision on the level at which this program should be continued.

The discretionary portion of the program (15 percent is reserved for the Commissioner) is not affected by this action since the bulk of these funds is not obligated until later in the year. The deferred amount of \$9,278,000 is for the State grant portion only, and represents the difference between the \$146,393,000 and the \$125,000,000 levels on a half-year basis. The deferred funds are not available beyond fiscal year 1975.

#### Estimated Effects:

The effect of this deferral is to fund the State grant portion of the program at a level of \$53,899,000 for the first half of FY 1975, as contrasted to \$63,177,000 per half in FY 1974. The deferral will have little or no programmatic effect because it involves the approval of new projects which would not start until a later time. Therefore, States can just as effectively utilize these funds later in the year. The President's 1975 Budget included estimated outlays of \$2,320,000 in 1975 and \$6,958,000 in 1976 against the amount being withheld. The deferral will merely shift the \$2,320,000 from the first to the second half of 1975.

Agency Department of Health, Education, and Welfare	New budget authority \$14,250,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-448)
Office of Education	Other budgetary resources
Appropriation Title & Symbol	
Elementary and Secondary Education - 7550279	Total Budgetary Resources 14,250,000
	Amount to be deferred
(Equipment and Minor Remodeling)	part of year 6,562,500
	Amount to be deferred for entire year

#### Justification:

The 1975 President's Budget proposed a total of \$28,500,000, the same as the 1974 level, for equipment and minor remodeling. This program consists of grants to States for equipment acquisition (\$26,250,000) and for State administration of the program (\$2,000,000), and loans to nonprofit private schools (\$250,000). The program was continued at this level during the first quarter under the original Continuing Resolution with an amount of \$7,100,000 made available.

However, subsequent action by the House on the supplemental appropriation bill would reduce the program to a total of \$15,000,000 - \$12,750,000 for equipment grants, \$2,000,000 for State administration, and \$250,000 for loans. The Senate Committee has recommended restoring the program to the \$28,500,000 level.

Even though the extended Continuing Resolution technically authorizes maintaining the program at the higher level, it appears that the most judicious course of action during the second quarter is to operate at the level of the House allowance. This will preserve the flexibility of the Congress and the Administration in arriving at a final decision on the level at which this program should be continued.

Therefore, an amount of \$6,562,500 for equipment grants to States is reported as being deferred. This action does not affect the operating expenses of State agencies or loans to non-profit private schools, both of which are being funded in the second quarter. The deferred funds are not available beyond fiscal year 1975.

### Estimated Effects:

The effect of this deferral is to fund the equipment grants to States at a level of \$6,562,500 for the first half of FY 1975, as contrasted to \$13,125,000 per half in FY 1974. The deferral will have little or no programmatic effect because States can just as effectively utilize their equipment grants later in the year. The President's 1975 Budget included estimated outlays of \$1,637,500 in 1975 and \$4,900,000 in 1976 against the amount being withheld. The deferral will merely shift the \$1,637,500 from the first to the second half of 1975.

Agency Department of Health,		1 000 000
Education, and Welfare Bureau Office of	New budget authority \$ (P.L. 93-448)	1,900,000
Education	Other budgetary resources	
Appropriation Title & Symbol Elementary and Secondary Education - 7550279	Total Budgetary Resources	1,900,000
(Nutrition and Health)	Amount to be deferred part of year	1,900,000
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	ugulu alikali mahaminin kurup da 180, 180 kutususaki († * - v

#### Justification:

The 1975 President's Budget proposed an amount of \$1,900,000 for demonstration projects in school nutrition and health services. House action on the supplemental appropriation bill would eliminate the program. The Senate Committee has recommended restoring the program to the \$1,900,000 requested level.

Even though the extended Continuing Resolution technically authorizes maintaining the program at the \$1,900,000 level, it appears that the most judicious course of action during the second quarter is to hold the program in abeyance. This will preserve the flexibility of the Congress and the Administration in arriving at a final decision on the level at which this program should be continued. The deferred funds are not available beyond fiscal year 1975.

#### Estimated Effects:

This deferral will have little or no programmatic effect since the funds would support the continuation of 85 existing projects whose renewals fall due at a later time. Therefore, these awards can be delayed beyon the second quarter without adverse effect. The President's 1975 Budget included estimated outlays of \$500,000 in 1975, \$1,000,000 in 1976, and \$400,000 in 1977 for this program. The deferral will merely shift the \$500,000 from the first to the second half of 1975.



Deferral	No.	:	D75-106	

Agency Health, Education, and Welfare Bureau Office of the Secretary	New budget authority (P.L. 92-448) Other budgetary resources	\$ 57,649,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	57,649,000
Departmental Management 7550120	Amount to be deferred part of year	1,902,000
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	

#### Justification

For FY 1975, \$118,769,000 (excluding trust fund transfers) was requested for this appropriation. The House allowance was \$114,800,000 and the Senate allowance was \$99,593,000 in the Labor - HEW Appropriation bill.

The "Amount to be deferred part of the year" represents the second quarter portion of our best estimate of Congressional reduction in the FY 1975 appropriation request. This deferral will preserve flexibility of Congress and the Administration in arriving at a final decision on this appropriation.

The deferred funds are not available beyond fiscal year 1975.

Total 1975 Outlays	dollars in	millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)		121
Without deferral (current estimate)		121
With deferral (revised estimate)		120
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays		-1)

#### Estimated Effects

Of the total \$1,902,000 deferral through the 2nd quarter \$902,000 will be in salaries and expenses activities. This deferral will result in a reduction primarily in temporary and part-time employment, travel, and equipment purchases. This will result in a decrease of \$812,000 in outlays in FY 1975.

The balance of the deferral, or \$1,000,000 will be in the Policy Research program. This will result in the deferral in FY 1975 of the planned funding of certain grants and contracts until FY 1976. This will result in a decrease of \$500,000 in outlays in FY 1975.

Deferral	No.	;	075-107	

Agency Department of Housing and Urban Development	New budget authority	\$_	100,000,000
Bureau Community Planning and Development	(P.L. <u>93-414</u> ) Other budgetary resources		293,856
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	_	100,293,856
Comprehensive Planning Grants 86X0104	Amount to be deferred part of year		
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	******	50,000,000

### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Section 701 of the Housing Act of 1954, as amended, authorizes grants (normally two-thirds) to support State and local programs financing comprehensive planning and management programs concerned with urban and rural development. Deferral of \$50 million out of amounts appropriated is proposed. This action is recommended in order to help reduce Federal expenditures and to help curb inflation. This action would result in a new savings in FY 1975 outlays of \$10 million.

The funds proposed for deferral will be used to reduce the appropriation needed to finance the 1976 commitment level.

#### Estimated Effects

The proposed deferral would reduce the level of assistance to 701 recipients to about two-thirds of the 1974 level. This amount would allow HUD to continue support for high priority planning and management activities at the State and local level. The proposed deferral would leave \$50 million from FY 1975 appropriations available for commitment. Since this program uses an advance funding arrangement, FY 1975 programs are financed, in part, with funds committed in FY 1974. Therefore, there will be some time to adjust work programs to the reduced funding level. The total outlay savings will be \$50 million, \$10 million in 1975 and \$40 million in 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	\$ in Millions
1975 Budget	118
Without Deferral	120
With Deferral	<u>110</u>
Effect on 1976 Outlays	40

Deferral	No.	:	D75-108	

Agency Department of Housing and Urban Development	New budget authority	\$_	65,000,000
Bureau Policy Development and Research	(P.L. <u>93-414</u> ) Other budgetary resources	_	506,665
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	-	65,506,665
Research and Technology 864/50108-865/60108	Amount to be deferred part of year		
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	-	8,000,000

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Research and Technology contracts and grants are authorized by Title V of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1970, as amended. The funds appropriated pursuant to this authority support programs of research, studies, testing and demonstrations relating to the mission and the programs of the Department. The funds proposed to be deferred are available for 2 years by the terms of the Appropriations Act, and would be available for use in FY 1976.

### **Estimated Effects**

The proposed action would allow the Department to continue priority research activities, but would not allow for the expansion of research activities in FY 1975. This action would result in an estimated savings in 1975 outlays of \$8 million.

Total 1975 Outlays	<pre>\$ in Millions</pre>
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without Deferral (current estimate)	67 64
With Deferral (revised estimate)	<u>56</u>
Effect on 1976 Outlays	

Deferral	No.	:	D75-109
----------	-----	---	---------

Agency Department of the Interior	New budget authority	\$ 330,000,000
Bureau of Outdoor Recreation	(P.L. 93-404) Other budgetary resources	34,202,641
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	364,202,641
14 X 5005	Amount to be deferred part of year	0
Land and Water Conservation	Amount to be deferred	
	for entire year	20,000,000* 1/ 10,000,000 2/

### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

The Land and Water Conservation Fund Act (16 U.S.C. 460 1) provides funds for grants to States and for the National Park Service, Fish and Wildlife Service, Forest Service, and Bureau of Land Management to purchase lands for specifically authorized national parks, national recreation areas, wild and scenic rivers, national trails, etc. Also, funds from this source may be utilized under such general authorities as preservation of endangered species habitat or acquisition of national forest inholdings.

To effect an outlay saving, \$20,000,000 of Federal land acquisition funds will be deferred until 1976. The \$20,000,000 proposed for deferral was made available without regard to fiscal year limitation in the Department of Interior and Related Agencies Appropriation Act of 1975 (P.L. 93-404).

The Land and Water Conservation Fund Act also provides for a program of grants-in-aid to States for acquisition and development of recreation lands and facilities. Grants are approved for the States on a 50-50 matching funds basis. The grant system is operated on a reimbursable basis for work performed or for projects completed. While a State project may be approved in one year, thereby showing up as an obligation, the time for actually completing the project may be 1-3 or more years. The State may not request reimbursement for several years and, therefore, outlays related to the initial obligation may not occur for several years hence.

An additional \$10,000,000 outlay saving is anticipated due to delays in requests for reimbursement from the States. This delay of outlays will have no effect on the State obligational program and will require no deferral of funds.

<sup>\*30,000,000</sup> of contract authority has been reserved for contingencies under the Anti-Deficiency Act, as previously reported in D75-55.

<sup>1/</sup>Obligations and outlays.

 $<sup>2/\</sup>text{Outlays only.}$ 

#### Estimated Effects:

Total 1975 outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	256
Without deferral or administrative slippage (cur. est.	
including congressional action)	286
With deferral	266
With deferral and administrative slippage (rev. est.)	<u>256</u>
(Effects of action on 1976 outlays	+30)

As virtually all of the Federal land purchases made are on an opportunity (willing seller) basis, deferral of the funds may result in the Federal agencies passing up opportunities at this time. However, the deferral will have no serious programmatic implication; program goals can still be achieved.

Slippage of \$10,000,000 of State outlays will have no effect on the State obligational program for the reasons cited above.

Neither the deferral nor the administrative action will have any effect on Federal or non-Federal employment.

# Summary of FY 1975 AEC Budget Deferrals (\$M)

	Outlays
1975 Budget	3,013.7
Without deferral (current estimate	2,997.6
Deferrals:	
Operating Expenses Appropriation*	(27.0)
Weapons program	3.0
research and development	6.0
Gas-cooled reactor research and development	5.0
Physical research	2.0
Controlled Thermonuclear Research (CTR)	6.0
Biomedical and environmental research	3.0
Laser fusion research	2.0
Plant and Capital Equipment Appropriation	(53.0)
High Energy Laser Facility	1.0
Uprating Program	9.0
Atmospheric Pollution Control Facility	1.0
Fire and safety project	2.2
Fast Flux Test Facility (FFTF)	6.0
demonstration plant (preliminary planning) High Temperature Gas-cooled Reactor fuel	1.5
cycle facilities	6.9
Capital equipment for CTR and other civilian	
reactor research	9.0
Other capital equipment	16.4
Total AEC	80.0
With deferral (revised estimate)	2,917.6

<sup>\*</sup> Some portion or all of the funds to be deferred may be identified at a later date for reprogramming to implement the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974.

Deferral	No.	: _	D75-110
----------	-----	-----	---------

Agency U. S. Atomic Energy Commission	I NEW DUCKEL AUCHOLILA	\$ 3,229,325,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	3,284,192,407
Operating Expenses 89X0101	Amount to be deferred part of year	
(Weapons Program)	Amount to be deferred for entire year	4,000,000*

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

### Estimated Effects:

### Weapons Program, Weapons Activities (Production and Surveillance)

A deferral of \$4.0 million will stretch-out some new occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and fire and safety improvements within the production complex. Since this requires deferral of several plant improvement projects, only the highest risk conditions will be immediately corrected with others deferred for correction until FY 1976.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollar	s in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$	3013.7
Without deferral (current estimate)		2997.6
With deferral (revised estimate)		2994.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	\$	0
19/0 Ouclays,	•	

Deferral No	). :	_D75-	111	***
-------------	------	-------	-----	-----

Agency .U. S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	\$	3,229,325,000
Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	·	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources		3,284,192,407
Operating Expenses 89X0101	Amount to be deferred	***	
(Civilian Reactor	part of year		
Research and Development)	Amount to be deferred for entire year		8,000,000*

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Estimated Effects: Civilian Reactor Research and Development - Operating Expenses

The deferral of \$8.0 million of budget authority will stretch-out development of some systems and components for the Clinch River Breeder Reactor demonstration project. This will result in a delay in the pace of the project which has the objective of demonstrating Liquid Metal Fast Breeder Reactor technology. However, essential design and long-lead component development will be continued.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dolla	ars in Millions
1975 Budget (February Transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$	3013.7 2997.6 2991.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	\$	0

Deferral	No.	:	D75-112
		-	U/5-112

Agency U. S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	\$	3,229,325,000
Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	·	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources		3,284,192,407
Operating Expenses 89X0101	Amount to be deferred	<del></del>	
(Civilian Reactor	part of year		
Research and Development)	Amount to be deferred for entire year		6,700,000*

#### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Estimated Effects: Civilian Reactor Research and Development - Operating Expenses

Deferral of \$6.7 million of budget authority will reduce efforts on developing a direct cycle gas turbine to be used in conjunction with high temperature gas cooled reactors and delay research and development on experimental fuels, materials, and safety activities for the gas cooled fast breeder reactor.

Total 1975 Outlays	<u>Dolla</u>	ars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$	3013.7 2997.6 2992.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	\$	0

Deferral	No.	:	~D75-113
----------	-----	---	----------

Agency . S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	\$3,229,325,000	
Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407	
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	3,234,192,407	
Operating Expenses 89X0101	Amount to be deferred part of year		
(Physical Research)	Amount to be deferred for entire year	2,700,000*	

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

### Estimated Effects:

This deferral in the Physical Research program will stretch-out some on-going research projects and defer some new research activities in molecular sciences and materials sciences planned for FY 1975. This will delay research which supports long-term energy development programs. However, a substantial increase over FY 1974 funding levels will still be allowed for energy-related research.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dolla	ars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$	3013.7 2997.6 2995.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	\$	0



Deferral No.	,	D75-114
--------------	---	---------

Agency U. S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	\$ 3,229,325,000
Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	3,284,192,407
Operating Expenses 89X0101	Amount to be deferred part of year	
(Controlled Thermonuclear Research)	Amount to be deferred for entire year	8,000,000*

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

### Estimated Effects:

The deferral in the Controlled Thermonuclear Research program will reduce somewhat the planned acceleration of research on tokamak impurity control, stretch-out experiments with theta pinch devices, and defer some new activities in CTR technology development and explository research. This may result in some delay in the next generation of experiments.

Total 1975 Outlays	DOTTA:	rs in Millions	-
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$	3013.7 2997.6 2991.6	
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	\$	. 0	

Deferral	No.	:	D75-115	

Agency United States Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	\$ 3,229,325,000
Bureau	(P.L. ) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol Operating Expenses	Total Budgetary Pesources	3,284,192,407
89x0101	Amount to be deferred	nag ay dagan atawa sa maga a maga ay ay aka ay
(Biomedical and Environ- mental Research & Safety)	part of year	
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	4,000,000*

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

### Estimated Effects:

This deferral in the Biomedical and Environmental Research and Safety program will be applied to AEC's portion of the Artificial Heart program, resulting in a close-out of AEC's effort to develop a nuclear power source for an artificial heart. Similar research and development by HEW will be continued.

\* Some portion or all of the funds to be deferred may be identified at a later date for reprogramming to implement the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974.

### Total 1975 Outlays:

	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	\$3,013.7 2,997.6 2,994.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	0

Deferral No.: D75-136
-----------------------

Agency United States Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	\$3,229,325,000
Bureau	(P.L. ) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Pagouros	3,284,192,407
Operating Expenses	Total Budgetary Resources	3,204,132,407
89X0101	Amount to be deferred	2,000,000
Plant and Capital	part of year	2.,000,000
Equipment 89X0103	Amount to be deferred for entire year	2,700,000*
(Weapons Program)		

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

### Estimated Effects:

Weapons Program - Laser-Fusion Operating - The deferral of \$2.7 million will delay the initiation of some new contracts with outside industrial and research organizations and educational institutions as well as reduce the FY 1975 in-house effort directed toward this long-range program. This may result in delay in achievement of near-term goals in laser and target development.

Weapons Program - Laser Fusion Plant and Capital Equipment (Project 75-3-b, High Energy Laser Facility, Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory) The deferral of \$2.0 million against this project will delay the start of the project. This slippage will probably delay the demonstration of the scientific feasibility of laser fusion.

Total 1975 Outlays:	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	0

Deferral	No.	:	D75-11	7

U.	Agency S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	\$ 3,229,325,000	
į	Bureau	(P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407	
~	Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	3,284,192,407	
	Plant and Capital Equipment 89X0103	Amount to be deferred	12,000,000	
	(Nuclear Materials)	part of year	12,000,000	
		Amount to be deferred for entire year	-	

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Estimated Effects: Nuclear Materials Program - Project 74-1-g, Cascade uprating program, gaseous diffusion plants and Project 71-1-f, Process equipment modifications, gaseous diffusion plants. The deferral of \$12 million in Projects 71-1-f and 74-1-g for our Cascade Improvement and Cascade Uprating Programs (CIP/CUP) would result in a one year delay in uprating electrical switchyards at the three gaseous diffusion plants. This will result in a one time loss of 500 metric tons of separative work.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$ 3013.7 2997.6 2988.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	+9.0

Deferral No.: D75-118		
-----------------------	--	--

Agency U. S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority (P.L. 93-393 )	\$ 3,229,325,000	
Bureau	(P.L. 93-393 ) Other budgetary resources Total Budgetary Resources	54,867,4 7	
Appropriation Title & Symbol  Plant and Capital Equipment 89X0103		3,284,192,407	
	Amount to be deferred part of year	12,000,000	
(Nuclear Materials)	Amount to be deferred for entire year		

#### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Estimated Effects: Nuclear Materials Program - Project 75-1-f, Atmospheric pollution control facility, Savannah River, South Carolina. Deferral of \$7.0 million in 1975 budget authority will delay by one year compliance with South Carolina state standards for particulate emissions.

Weapons Program - Project 71-9, Fire, safety and adequacy of operating conditions projects, various locations. The \$5.0 million deferral for this project will result in some possible slippage in the final completion date. Some planned corrections to fire and safety problems will not be achieved for the period of deferral. The deferral may increase the total cost of the project, which is now scheduled for completion in the late 1970s.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dolla	rs in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$	3013.7 2997.6 2994.4
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)		+3.2

Deferral	No.	: 1075-110-
		1 / / )     1

Agency U. S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority (P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	\$ 3,229,325,000	
Bureau			54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol Plant and Capital Equipment	Total Budgetary Resources		3,284,192,407
89X0103 (Civilian Reactor	Amount to be deferred part of year		10,000,000
Research and Development)	Amount to be deferred for entire year		

#### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Estimated Effects: Civilian Reactor Research and Development - Plant & Capital Equipment

The deferral of \$10.0 million of budget authority will constrain FY 1975 funding for the construction of the Fast Flux Test Facility which may delay the availability of this facility. Until the FFTF is completed, the U.S. will have to continue to rely upon the Experimental Breeder Reactor II (EBR II) for data on the performance of fuels in a Liquid Metal Fast Breeder Reactor. Since the EBR II does not possess the testing capabilities of the FFTF, a significant further delay in the completion of the FFTF would be undesirable for the LMFBP program. However, any delay resulting from this deferral action would be relatively brief.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$ 3013.7 2997.6 2991.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	+6.0



Deferral	No.:	D75-120	
----------	------	---------	--

Agency J. S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority		3,229,325,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol  Plant and Capital Equipment 89X0103  (Civilian Reactor	(P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	•	54,867,407
	Total Budgetary Resources		3,284,192,407
	Amount to be deferred part of year	-	
Research and Development)	Amount to be deferred for entire year		1,500,000

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Estimated Effects: Civilian Reactor Research and Development - Plant Capital Equipment

Deferral of \$1.5 million of budget authority will reduce support of the Molten Salt Breeder Reactor program. Ongoing Molten Salt Breeder Reactor program technology development efforts will continue to resolve important technical problems of this reactor concept. The deferral will delay initiation of preliminary planning for a possible future Molten Salt Breeder Reactor demonstration project.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$ 3013.7 2997.6 2996.1
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	+1.5

Deferral	No.	: D75-121-
		11/13-1/1

Agency U. S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	\$ 3,229,325,000
Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol  Plant and Capital Equipment	Total Budgetary Resources	3,284,192,407
89X0103 (Civilian Reactor	Amount to be deferred part of year	12,100,000
Research and Development)	Amount to be deferred for entire year	

#### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Estimated Effects: Civilian Reactor Research and Development - Plant & Capital Equipment

Deferral of \$12.1 million of budget authority for high temperature gas reactor pilot plant reprocessing and refabrication facilities will result in some delay for these facilities which will be needed to demonstrate fuel recycle technology for commercial high temperature gas cooled reactors.

The two projects will require much more complex processes and systems then had been conceived earlier. AEC will proceed with project design to permit resolution of technical uncertainties and improved cost estimates.

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$ 3013.7 2997.6 2990.7
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	+6.9

Deferral	No.	:	D75-122
----------	-----	---	---------

Agency U. S. Atomic Energy Commission		\$ 3,229,325,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-393 ) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Total Budgetary Resources	3,284,192,407
Plant and Capital Equipment 89X0103	Amount to be deferred	 12 000 000
(Civilian Reactor Research and Development and Con-	part of year	 13,000,000
trolled Thermonuclear Research)	Amount to be deferred for entire year	

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Estimated Effects: Civilian Reactor Research and Development & Controlled Thermonuclear Research - Plant and Capital Equipment

The deferral of \$13.0 million of budget authority will result in a delay until FY 1976 of acquisition of new computer capability in the Controlled Thermonuclear Research program (\$11.0 million). In addition, it will reduce equipment procurements for civilian reactor research activities (\$2.0 million). This will result in a delay until FY 1976 of the acquisition of a scientific computer dedicated to the fusion program, which is expected to improve the design of next generation experiments and the understanding of plasma behavior.

Total 1975 Outlays	Doll	ars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$	3013.7 2997.6 2988.6
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)		+9.0

#### Deferral No.:

D75-123

# DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency U. S. Atomic Energy Commission	New budget authority	<b>\$</b> 3,229,325,000
Bureau	New budget authority (P.L. 93-393) Other budgetary resources	54,867,407
Appropriation Title & Symbol Plant and Capital Equipment	Total Budgetary Resources	3,284,192,407
89X0103	Amount to be deferred part of year	13,900,000
(Other Capital Equipment)	Amount to be deferred for entire year	

### Justification:

Deferral of no-year funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

#### Estimated Effects:

Other Capital Equipment - Computers - The deferral of computer fundatotaling \$9.5 million will delay additional computer capability for Nuclear Materials (\$2.3 million), Weapons (\$6 million), Physical Research (0.7 million) and Biomedical and Environmental Research (0.5 million). Consequences will include some delays in a) improvement of nuclear materials production processes at the Savannah River plant and b) installation of additional computational capability for the weapons program at Sandia Laboratory.

Other Capital Equipment - General - Deferrals totaling \$4.4 million in general equipment will: 1) delay procurement of a \$1.0 million electron microscope in the Physical Research program (deferring a program which will simulate neutron damage to reactor materials); 2) delay a \$2.4 million procurement of two currently leased airplanes in the Weapons program (increasing cost of later procurement by about 10%); and 3) delay procurements totaling \$1.0 million in the Nuclear Materials program for replacement of reactor and plant support equipment (increasing risk of plant down-time as a result of equipment failures).

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal) Without deferral (current estimate) With deferral (revised estimate)	\$ 3013.7 2997.6 2981.2
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays)	+16.4

#### Deferral No.:

D75-124

# DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency National Aeronautics and Space Administration	New budget authority	\$ 109,600,000		
Bureau	(P.L. <u>93-414</u> )	The Manufacture of the Control of th		
	Other budgetary resources			
Appropriation Title & Symbol	Ī			
	Total Budgetary Resources	\$ 109,600,000		
Research and Development	(See coverage below)			
	Amount to be deferred			
27-00-0108-0-1-250	part of year			
()	Amount to be deferred	22 222 222		
(Manned Space Flight)	for entire year	20,000,000		

#### Justification:

m=4=1 1075 0....

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

This action would defer \$20 million in FY 1975 obligations planned for the U.S./U.S.S.R. docking mission scheduled for launch in July 1975. Funds provided for this activity remain available until expended. Rephasing of funding is possible in this program because of excellent progress to date in preparing for the mission. Estimated Effects:

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February	
transmittal)	117
estimate)	117
estimate)	98
(Effect of action on	_
1976 outlays	)

This deferral is not expected to adversely affect the launch schedule for the mission. However, the amount of contingency available to handle unforeseen technical problems would be reduced. This mission is an important cooperative project with the Soviets and is expected to contribute to improved understanding and cooperation between the U.S. and the U.S.S.R.

De	fe	rr	<b>a</b> 1	No	. :
νe	TC	: L L	$a_{\perp}$	110	• •

D75-125

# DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

New hudget authority	٠	65,700,000
	٧	03.700.000
Other budgetary resources		
Total Budgetary Resources (See coverage below)	\$	65,700,000
Amount to be deferred part of year		
Amount to be deferred for entire year	\$	16,000,000
	Total Budgetary Resources (See coverage below)  Amount to be deferred part of year  Amount to be deferred	(P.L. 93-414 ) Other budgetary resources  Total Budgetary Resources \$ (See coverage below)  Amount to be deferred part of year  Amount to be deferred

#### Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

This deferral of \$16,000,000 of no year funds would delay the rate of buildup for several new NASA science and application flight projects including Pioneer-Venus, a scientific mission; SEASAT-A, an ocean observation satellite; NIMBUS-G, a pollution monitoring satellite; TIROS-N, an advanced weather satellite; and the Heat Capacity Mapping mission, a thermal sensing satellite.

#### Estimated Effects:

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February	
transmittal)	40
estimate)	40
With deferral (revised	
estimate)	24
(Effect of action on	
1976 outlays	<b></b> )

The deferral of the rate of buildup on these projects could delay their launch dates by several months. These schedule slippages are not expected to have a significant programmatic impact.

De	£	_		- 1	N.	'n	:
De	I	e	ш	aı	LN	U	

D75-126

# DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

gency National Aeronautics and Space Administration	New budget authority	\$ 681,800,000
Bureau _	(P.L. <u>93-414</u> ) Other budgetary resources	
Appropriation Title & Symbol		
Research and Development	Total Budgetary Resources	\$ 681,800,000
	Amount to be deferred	
27-00-0108-0-1-250	part of year	
(Aeronautical research and space supporting activities)	Amount to be deferred for entire year	36,000,000

#### Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit congressional review of the action contemplated.

Funds provided in this account remain available until expended. This deferral would delay FY 1975 obligations in several of NASA's program support elements. The affected areas would include research and technology related to advanced systems for space exploration and aeronautics, analysis of data in the space science program, and the maintenance and upgrading of equipment for the tracking and data acquisition program.

### Estimated Effects:

Total 1975 Outlays	Do.	llars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	·. ·	678
Without deferral (current estimate)		678
With deferral (revised estimate)		643
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays		)

These deferrals would affect a wide range of NASA's supporting activities planned for FY 1975, but would not have a major schedule impact on specific project milestones.

Deferral	No.:	D75-127

Agency National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanities	New budget authority	\$159,600,000
Bureau N.A.	(P.L. <u>93-404</u> ) Other budgetary resources	24,930,930
Appropriation Title & Symbol National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanities -	Total Budgetary Resources	184,530,930
Salaries and Expenses	Amount to be deferred part of year	18,000,000
59 X 0100	Amount to be deferred for entire year	

#### Justification

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16,1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

#### Estimated Effects

This action would delay obligation of \$18M into the 2nd half of the fiscal year to insure an \$8 million outlay saving. The effect of this deferral will be a somewhat delayed beginning for some projects anticipated to be begun in FY 1975. There will be no increase in FY 1976 outlays.

Total 1975 Outlays	<u>Dollars in Millions</u>
1975 Budget (February transmittal	
and May budget amendment)	\$164
Without reduction (Current estimate)	164
With reduction	<u> 156</u>
Effect of action on 1976 outlays	-0-



Deferral	No.	:	D75-128	

Agency National Science Foundation	New budget authority	\$ 661,500,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-414 ) Other budgetary resources	5,000,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Salaries and Expenses	Total Budgetary Resources	666,500,000
495/60100	Amount to be deferred part of year	
	Amount to be deferred for entire year	 15,000,000

#### Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This action would defer spending within the following NSF program categories:

National Research Centers (\$2.5M) for improvement of computer at National Center for Atmospheric Research, selected purchases and schedule shifts for the Very Large Array radioastronomy facility, deferral of purchases at other Centers.

Research Applied to National Needs (\$3M) for Disaster and Natural Hazard Research including the areas of Earthquake Engineering and Fire Research. Science Education (\$4M) in selected areas, including problem assessment and educational program restructuring.

<u>Institutional support for science</u> (\$5.5M) for discretionary formula grants to colleges and universities.

#### Estimated Effects:

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	<b>ა</b> 30
Without deferral (Current estimate)	625
With deferral (Revised estimate)	617
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	)

The specific deferrals were made selectively in lower priority activities where such deferrals would not unduly impede program development. The deferrals would have the effects in

- National Research Centers of delaying 1975 purchases and schedules, but not slipping project completion dates.
- Research Applied to National Needs of reducing level of support in 1975 but still maintaining a significant national effort in these longer range research areas.
- Science Education of reducing support in lower priority areas based on programmatic judgments but not impeding overall program development.
- <u>Institutional Grants for Science</u> of delaying the obligation of formula grants providing discretionary funds to colleges and universities.

Nα	f A	٠,	- 0	1	No.
1747			-		141)

D75-129 ----

# DEFERRAL OF BUDGET AUTHORITY Report Pursuant to Sec. 1013 of P.L. 93-344

Agency National Science Foundation	New budget authority	\$ 101,800,000
Bureau	(P.L. 93-322 ) Other budgetary resources	625,000
Appropriation Title & Symbol Salaries and Expenses	Total Budgetary Resources	102,425,000
(Special Energy R & D Appropriation Act, 1975)	Amount to be deferred part of year	
49 x 0100	Amount to be deferred for entire year	5,000,000

#### Justification:

This withholding of funds is one of several special actions proposed by the President to restrain 1975 budget outlays. Since these restraints are being proposed after Congressional action affecting most 1975 funds has been completed, this withholding will be delayed until December 16, 1974, to permit Congressional review of the action contemplated.

This action would defer until 1976 the spending of \$5 million in budget authority from the NSF solar and geothermal research programs.

#### Estimated Effects:

Total 1975 Outlays	Dollars in Millions	
1975 Budget (February transmittal)	45	5. 1 j. 6.
Without deferral (current estimate)	45	
With deferral (revised estimate)	#3 6 JAR	
(Effect of action on 1976 outlays	)	

The 1975 program of solar and geothermal energy research--after the deferral of \$5 million in budget authority--will still increase over 250% above the 1974 level. The remaining program funds in NSF (\$67 million in budget authority) will allow for

- a vigorous research program in NSF
- the implementation of recently passed legislation on solar and geothermal energy development and demonstration, and
- the successful 1975 transfer of lead agency responsibility for solar and geothermal energy R & D to the new Energy Research and Development Administration from the NSF

m. god march

### **EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT**

#### OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20503

MAR 11 1975

M

March 10, 1975

SIGNATURE

MEMORANDUM FOR:

THE PRESIDENT

FROM:

JAMES T. LYNN (signed)

SUBJECT:

Senate action on rescission bill

#### Background

The House has passed a rescission bill (H.R. 3260) covering rescission proposals pending since the last session of Congress. While the Senate Appropriations Committee has reported on the bill, the Senate leadership has not scheduled floor action. It is doubtful that the Senate will act unless pushed.

#### Discussion

The following summarizes the effect of the House action on H.R. 3260:

	(In millions)			
•	Amount of	Outlay	effect	
	rescission	1975	1976	
Proposed by Administration	\$685	\$205	\$140	
Added as rescission by Comptroller General (HUD "235" program for				
Home ownership assistance) <u>a</u> /	<u>264</u>	Annual An	85	
Total considered as			•	
rescissions by House	949	205	225	
Less House-approved rescissions	242	101		
Not approved by House	708	104	147	

a/ The Attorney General does not agree that this item is subject to rescission.

In the view of the Comptroller General, the statutory 45-day period under the Impoundment Control Act expired for \$949 million on March 1, 1975. We disagree with respect to the HUD "235" program as noted above and with respect to another \$12.7 million that you did not propose for rescission until January 30, 1975. All other funds have been released in compliance with the law.

The release does not prevent the Congress from rescinding funds. It can always rescind funds that have not been obligated. However, since we cannot now stop agencies from obligating the released funds, it is desirable to get quick action if the Congress is to be persuaded to rescind funds.

The House also passed, on Monday, March 10, another rescission bill (H.R. 4075) after considering \$1.2 billion in rescission proposals (involving proposed outlay savings of \$300 million in 1975 and \$550 million in 1976). The House acted to rescind only \$16.5 million of that total. However, if the Senate leadership fails to move on the first of the session's rescission bills, they are not likely to act on the next one.

#### Recommendation

That you sign the attached letter to the Majority Leader of the Senate.

Attachment

cc: Mr. Jack Marsh



# THE WHITE HOUSE WASHINGTON

Dear Senator Mansfield:

On February 25, 1975 the House of Representatives passed H.R. 3260, a bill to rescind a portion of the budget authority which I had proposed for rescission in my special message of November 26, 1974. I am deeply disappointed that, while this bill was reported by the Senate Appropriations Committee on February 27, the legislation has not been scheduled to come to the Senate floor.

Some members of the Senate apparently believe that further action is precluded by the elapse of the Impoundment Control Act's 45-day period for Congressional action on rescission proposals. Of course, as you know, no such obstacle to Senate action exists because the Congress has the constitutional authority to rescind appropriations at any time prior to their obligation. The 45-day period provided in the Impoundment Control Act is a triggering device to require the Executive Branch to release funds if the Congress has not acted; the provision does not, and indeed could not, limit the legislative power of the Congress.

Clearly, it is the prerogative of the Senate, together with the House of Representatives, to determine which appropriations it wishes to rescind and which it wishes to be released. Just as clearly, the members of the Senate should have an opportunity to express their will. Under present plans they will not be able to do so. I urge you and your colleagues to bring this matter before the Senate without delay.

I also urge the Senate to make all the rescissions I have requested, both those considered in connection with H.R. 3260 and those considered under H.R. 4075 which has just passed the House. Some of the funds cannot be used in any case. Other funds should not be used, in my view. Most importantly, we all need to work together to keep this year's and next year's budget deficits from rising to unacceptable levels and to keep down the size of the budget in the future.

Respectfully,

Honorable Michael J. Mansfield United States Senate Washington, D. C. 20510



#### THE WHITE HOUSE

#### WASHINGTON

Dear Senator Mansfield:

On February 25, 1975 the House of Representatives passed H.R. 3260, a bill to rescind a portion of the budget authority which I had proposed for rescission in my special message of November 26, 1974. I am deeply disappointed that, while this bill was reported by the Senate Appropriations Committee on February 27, the legislation has not been scheduled to come to the Senate floor.

Some members of the Senate apparently believe that further action is precluded by the elapse of the Impoundment Control Act's 45—day period for Congressional action on rescission proposals. Of course, as you know, no such obstacle to Senate action exists because the Congress has the constitutional authority to rescind appropriations at any time prior to their obligation. The 45-day period provided in the Impoundment Control Act is a triggering device to require the Executive Branch to release funds if the Congress has not acted; the provision does not, and indeed could not, limit the legislative power of the Congress.

Clearly, it is the prerogative of the Senate, together with the House of Representatives, to determine which appropriations it wishes to rescind and which it wishes to be released. Just as clearly, the members of the Senate should have an opportunity to express their will. Under present plans they will not be able to do so. I urge you and your colleagues to bring this matter before the Senate without delay.

I also urge the Senate to make all the rescissions I have requested, both those considered in connection with H.R. 3260 and those considered under H.R. 4075 which has just passed the House. Some of the funds cannot be used in any case. Other funds should not be used, in my view. Most importantly, we all need to work together to keep this year's and next year's budget deficits from rising to unacceptable levels and to keep down the size of the budget in the future.

Respectfully,

Honorable Michael J. Mansfield United States Senate Washington, D. C. 20510



# EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET WASHINGTON, D.C. 20503

M

FEB -7 1975

MEMORANDUM FOR THE PRESIDENT

FROM:

Paul H. O'Neill

SUBJECT:

Possible Spending Actions

There are two kinds of actions you could take administratively to add Federal spending to the economy without Congressional concurrence.

- You could order the withdrawal of all (or some) rescissions or deferrals now pending before the Congress.
- 2. You could order the speedup of the normal spending pattern of some Federal activities.

The effect of the first action, if you chose to withdraw all rescissions and deferrals, would be to add \$1.2 billion to spending in FY 75 and \$2.5 billion in FY 76. It should be noted, however, that the long-term impact would be significantly greater because budget authority released would total \$22.9 billion.

- -- Two cautionary notes on such an approach:
  - 1. Release of all rescissions and deferrals would perpetuate some very low priority programs.
  - In many cases, release of deferred or rescinded funds would create a new level of spending that would be difficult or impossible to reverse in the future.

The possible speedup of normal spending patterns does not appear to have great potential but there is one possibility that we believe should be explored further; shortening the contract period for public service job projects. The \$875 million appropriated in December for public service jobs is being made available to State and local governments under twelve-month contracts. This arrangement will produce about 97,000 job slots for the period. If you were to shorten the contract period to, say six months, the available job slots for the next six months could be doubled to about 190,000.

### Rescissions and Deferrals

(In millions)

		(In millions)	
	Budget	•	
	Authority	Effect on	spending
	Withheld	1975	1976
Deferrals			
Agriculture:			
Forest Service	453	5	10
Other	20		
	*	**************************************	***************************************
	473	. 5	10
Commerce:		*	
EDA Job opportunities	125	-19	19
Other	40	23	5
Other	-20	23	
	3.65		24
	165	4	24
Corps of Engineers:			
Construction	59	42	ARREST STORY ARREST.
DOD Military	1,403	-	
HEW:			
Health facilities construction	301	tinto mine man	
Basic Opportunity Grants	299	Marie ante	-
Other	193		, 1000, 1000 444
		<del>yangi Manana</del>	-
	793	1	-1
HUD:			•
Water and sewer grants	401		10
Homeownership assistance	264	بالهيار ملسمه بالبيش	85
Public facility loans	184	gam date street	13
Comprehensive planning grants	50	10	40
Other	74	13	8
OCHEL	1.2	. I.J	
	973	23	156
	373	43	130
Interior:			
the state of the s	. 175		
Indian road construction	135		
Parks road construction	249	***	
Land and water conservation	50	30	-30
Other	223	30	_14
La Landing Control of the Control of			
(3" 21	657	60	-16
2			

(In millions)

	_	(TH MILLIONS)		
	Budget			
	Authority	Effect on	Effect on spending	
	Withheld	1975	1976	
	ATCIMETO	1973	1970	
DeferralsContinued:				
Justice:				
Prison facilities	19	. March worm with	-	
DOM .				
DOT:				
Federal aid highways	10,728	350	1,600	
FAA facilities	261			
Other	115			
	11,104	350	1,600	
	11,101	330	1,000	
AECERDA	112	00	F 2	
AECERDA	113	80	-52	
			•	
EPA:				
Construction grants $\frac{1}{2}$	5,000		20	
Other	32	6	6	
•	E 022		3.4	
·	5,032	6	14	
	1			
Other Agencies	<u>377</u>	169	23	
Total, all agencies	21,168	740	1,758	
, ,	•		·	
Rescissions:				
Rescissions:				
Defense	280	117	87	
REAP	156	35	121	
Hill-Burton	285	11	32	
Education	286	65	121	
Alcohol, Drug Abuse Administration.	104	16	57	
	672	303	279	
Other	0/2	303	219	
		·		
Total	1,783	547	697	

<sup>1/ \$4</sup> billion released earlier this month, making approximately \$9 billion now available and not yet contracted.